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Narrative report

Foreword by the Chief Executive

| am pleased to introduce the
statement of accounts for the
2022/23 financial year.

The financial statements set
out both the single entity
accounts for Lancashire
County Council and the
" consolidated group position,
incorporating its subsidiary
Lancashire County Developments Limited. The accounts for the Lancashire
County Pension Fund are also included, for which Lancashire County Council
is the administering authority.

Performance

Our performance report for 2022/23 sees a continuation in improved
delivery against a challenging backdrop. As well as ensuring we continue to
respond to the growing number of increasingly complex cases for our
vulnerable residents, we also remain focused on good quality basic services
which impact on day to day living for everyone. We are also transforming
our practice model in both adults and children's social care to ensure they
continually improve, as well as delivering significant change programmes
including Oracle Fusion. There is a lot going on with much to celebrate and
some real challenges to address too.
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Levelling up funding

January also saw us secure just under £50 million in Levelling up funds for
safer, greener, healthier neighbourhoods, public transport and active travel
improvements. In total Lancashire received over £200 million, the highest
support per head of population in England reflecting the strengthening
partnerships across the county under the Lancashire 2050 framework.
Partnerships are particularly important as resources continue to be
constrained and this is good evidence of our improvements as a place
leader, a convenor, and a deliverer of services.

Cost of living

Inflation is having a significant impact across the board. We have responded
positively with support to residents and businesses including our warm and
welcome spaces and fair funding for adult social care providers. We have
also taken the opportunity to support our partners, particularly in health, to
ensure public funding in Lancashire is maximised. However, this is also
impacting our costs and supply chains, particularly in construction, and we
are reviewing how this may impact the sequencing of a number of our larger
projects.

Outlook for the future

Our people strategy, designed to make us an employer of choice, has also
been developed and is being socialised with stakeholders ahead of formal
approval and then launch in the summer. This is one of our key responses
to address the recruitment and retention challenges which remain as one of
our highest corporate risks.
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The council set a balanced budget for 2023/24 in February and teams have
now completed their business plans for the coming year to ensure our
resources are prioritised on achieving the ambitions set out in the corporate
strategy. Significant work has been undertaken to strengthen the
performance management framework creating the golden thread between
corporate ambition, service delivery and individual performance.

Achievements

It was really pleasing to receive positive feedback from Ofsted when their
report was published in January rating all aspects of children's social care as
'good'. This is a great recognition of the hard work and commitment from
across the council and we are already mapping out our pathway to
'‘outstanding' which is nothing less than our children and families deserve.

Finally, Adult Social Care has been shortlisted for two national awards: the
Municipal Journal awards for hospital aftercare and Local Government
Chronicle awards for the mental health trailblazer. This showcases the best
practice and innovative approach adopted by our staff and the council.
Fingers crossed for the finals.

A Ridgwells

Angie Ridgwell
Chief Executive

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23
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The county of Lancashire

The county of Lancashire lies in the northwest of England. It is bordered by Cumbria, Greater
Manchester, Merseyside and Yorkshire with a coastline to the Irish Sea.

Lancashire contrasts a network of densely populated urban centres set within countryside of
outstanding natural beauty. At £27 billion, it is one of the largest economies in the north of
England, with around 44,000 businesses.

Lancashire has a diverse heritage and a track record of innovation and productivity with
manufacturing still retaining a key presence, providing around one eighth of total
employment. Lancashire is home to the world's fourth largest aerospace cluster, as well as
core strengths and capabilities in advanced manufacturing, energy, digital and health
innovation.

Demographic profile of Lancashire

The Office of National Statistics (ONS) mid-year population estimate for Lancashire in 2021
showed that there were 1,236,035 people living in the county. The population is projected to
increase to 1.3 million by 2043, with significant increases forecast in the age over 65
population.

The profile of the population is an important determinant of the demand for services provided
by the council, such as the need for adult and children's social care. The age profile chart
highlights some challenges with a forecast lower proportion of working age adults relative to
an increasing older population. This highlights the importance of our economic development
activity to attract working age people into Lancashire.
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About Lancashire County Council

Lancashire County Council is the fourth largest council in the UK covering a geographic area of 2,894km?2. It provides services to residents of the 12 district
areas of Burnley, Chorley, Fylde, Hyndburn, Lancaster, Pendle, Preston, Ribble Valley, Rossendale, South Ribble, West Lancashire and Wyre.
Its responsibilities include:

e Schools and education;

e Adult and children's social care;

e Highways and transport;

e Registration of births and deaths;
e Public health;

e Waste and minerals management;
e Libraries and heritage; and

e Economic development.

Our vision

"Here at Lancashire County Council we are helping you to make Lancashire
the best place to live, work, visit and prosper."

Our Vision for Lancashire forms part of the county council’s planning and performance framework. It sets
out our priorities in an open and transparent way.

We want Lancashire to be the county people choose to create a home, raise their children, develop a
career and grow old in. We are committed to developing and celebrating our diverse communities,

heritage and landscape to create a strong sense of place we can all be proud of.

Our vision is focused around five objectives, which we set out on the following pages.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23
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Lancashire will be the place to live

Lancashire is a county of diverse communities.

It is a place where people are valued and will feel able to have their say. It will be a county where housing
meets the needs of all ages, where people are safe and feel safe, surrounded by clean, green spaces
where everyone can enjoy a good quality of life and be happy.

It will be a county where:

e Children of all abilities do well in our first class schools, colleges and universities, gaining skills for life
e People have good housing

e People live healthier lives for longer

e People can travel on good quality, reliable public transport

e People get on well together and are connected to their local community

e Our most vulnerable people are protected and supported

e People make use of technology to access services, support and information

Lancashire will be the place to work

Lancashire will be a county that supports a flexible and inclusive labour market, where skills development is championed and where
talented individuals choose to live and work.

It will be a county where:

e We support people of all ages and abilities to learn and develop their skills
e Significant new, good job opportunities are created

e We support and encourage business investment, innovation and growth

e We aim to increase the earning power of our residents and communities

e We build and develop effective infrastructure and transport links
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Lancashire will be a county that promotes strong economic growth in both urban and rural economies.
It will be a county that actively boosts productivity and prosperity for everyone.

It will be a county where:

Lancashire will be the place to visit

; 5
;‘
i
[ | )

vy

i-

We invest in industry, and promote innovation to secure Lancashire’s growth potential

Businesses are supported to start up, to thrive and to grow

We build on the strengths and resilience of local industry

Our residents, businesses and places are enabled to be more productive

We promote Lancashire as a national and globally connected destination and a well performing place to do business

Lancashire is a beautiful county with a wealth of culture.

From green fields and rolling hills to coastal towns and country villages — Lancashire really does have it all
as a place for people to enjoy.

It will be a county where:

We celebrate our beautiful, clean landscapes

We encourage the visitor economy and the opportunities for growth

People enjoy our culture and heritage, diverse communities and local attractions
We promote our wonderful sporting attractions and hidden gems
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Lancashire will be the place where everyone acts responsibly

The county council will work closely with our partners to enable people in Lancashire to develop and
thrive.

We will listen to the needs of people and work with our partners and communities to empower them to
meet their own needs. We will help people to look after themselves and help them to provide care and
support to their families, friends, neighbours and colleagues.

It will be a county where:

e We will equip our most vulnerable people with the support and skills they need to do more for themselves
¢ We commission, procure and provide services that provide maximum benefit to Lancashire residents

e We recruit and retain a workforce that meets service needs

e We prevent waste and use money wisely

e We learn from others

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23
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Our corporate priorities

DELIVERING CARING FOR THE
BETTER SERVICES VULNERABLE
¢ Provide services that are effective, * Protect, safeguard, support and
efficient and appropriate to local enable the most vulnerable residents
circumstances. in our society.
» Improve services by changing the way we ¢ Challenge and reduce areas of inequality
do things. and provide opportunity for all.
¢ Help people and families live healthier * Ensure children of all abilities do well
lifestyles and enjoy a better quality of life. in our schools and colleges, gaining

important skills and expertise for life.

PROTECTING OUR SUPPORTING
ENVIRONMENT ECONOMIC GROWTH
¢ Lead on environmental improvement » Develop and build effective infrastructure
schemes and renewable energy and transport networks, to help people
initiatives. and businesses connect and grow.
* Work with businesses and communities ¢ Secure inward investment, to boost and
on flood prevention, decarbonisation level up the county.
projects and climate change resilience. « Invest in skills and innovation, to
* Promote more recycling and better waste secure economic growth and maximise
management. Lancashire’s potential.
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Our governance structure

The political management structure of the council is shown below.

Council meetings are broadcast live on our website as part

of our ambition to bring decision-making closer to the J

public.
Scrutlny management
board Devel . Pension
oy . evelopmen — —
The chart below shows the political structure of the council control ol fund
Task groups committee | | | Committee | [ committee
as at 31 March 2023.
Tl < /| —r
Community, )
cultural and fChhlllAdren,d Audit, risk Lancashire
Political structure 2022/23 corporate amllflf an Regulatory —| and a local
services L SKills committee | governance pension
S A ) committee y board
: Nt
Environment,
Rk Health and
economic L adult Urgenc
growth and . Employment — o 5 Y =
services A committee
= Labour transport committee L
v, v,
31 | ) )

There are 84 county councillors elected to cover all the
electoral divisions in the 12 Lancashire district areas.
County councillors represent their communities in the
council's decision-making processes.

Overview and scrutiny

Other committees J

Lancashire
healthand —
wellbeing
board

® Conservatives__——
49

¥ Green

\ 2
¥ Liberal Democrats

2 Further details of the council's governance arrangements are provided in the Annual
Governance Statement.
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Our staff

The council is managed by the Chief Executive together with four executive directors. They are accountable to the county councillors who determine policy
and agree spending priorities. The council is supported by administrative, professional, technical and operational employees whose role is to advise the council
on all aspects of its functions and to put into effect decisions, which are taken in order to provide services to the public. The council has responsibilities
spanning public health, social care, the economy and the environment and employs over 12,900 people in full time and part time contracts with around a
further 28,800 people employed in schools.

The council's management structure on 31 March 2023 is shown below.

1=
'l Chie! Executive

Elaina Quesada

Kashif
Dire

John Morrissy
Director of

Simon Louise
Lawrence Anderson

Andy
Mullaney
Director of

Phil Durmell
Director of
Highways

and Transpont

Julie Bell
{Acting) Director
of Education,
Culture and Skills

Paul Lee Samantha Baron
Dires of Director of Quality
tmprovement and

Principal Social Worker

Mike Kirby

i Organisational

Development and
Change

rector of Director o
Dot it Strategy and

Environment Growth and 8 " of Chidren's Performance

Regeneration Social Care

and Planning

David Herne and
Ruksana Sardar-Akram,
DPH Interim/Contingent

Dr Aiden

Kirkpatrick and
Paula y - =
Hawley-Evans Mlé(e -"91’!5'9" Vacant Ir{a‘rne:‘ r\r:l-':).
Prconeant SO Director of Digital il diahie
Investment g of People

Fiona Wood
(Emerging Tasent)
PH Consultant

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23 10



Narrative report

Our performance

The corporate performance report provides information on performance across the key performance indicators which monitor progress towards achieving our
four priorities: delivering better services, caring for the vulnerable, protecting the environment, and supporting economic growth. The full performance report

can be found using the following link: Performance report and is summarised in this section.

{3} )\ DELIVERING CARING FOR THE
=7 | BETTER SERVICES VULNERABLE

ofifed

REPAIRING 67,000+
POTHOLES ON OUR ROADS

MORE THAN 95%

OF PARENTS GOT THE PREFERRED SCHOOL
PLACE CHOICES FOR THEIR CHILDREN

smon )

1.5M DIGITAL BOOK DOWNLOADS

RECYCLED OVER
OF ROAD MATERIALS AS PART OF
OUR RESURFACING PROGRAMME

oL PREDICTED
rontst or sowiao TO SAVE
more THAN 174,000 roues o: CO2

HOSTING OUR FIRST LANCASHIRE r-’?

CLIMATE SUMMIT \@4

‘GOOD’ OFSTED
RATING FOR OUR
CHILDREN'S SERVICES

OPENING 150 &t
COMMUNITY WARM SPACES

SUPPORTED ‘m
11,000 .22,

DISABILITIES SUI
COVID VACCINATIONS = e nEPENDENT LIVES

PROTECTING OUR SUPPORTING
ENVIRONMENT ECONOMIC GROWTH

£50M o ror

EAST LANCASHIRE TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENTS

sueporTING 3 000+
rﬂ%‘fgﬁﬁnb St scheme

PROGRESSING OUR

E207ms /AN
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DELIVERING

BETTER SERVICES

v
!
X

Key

Achieving the target/expected level of performance
Slightly below desired level

Requires improvement

Quartile 2 High 2022723 % of parents who get one of three preferred school places (Primary)
Quartile 2 High 2022/23 % of parents who get one of three preferred school places (Secondary) 85.9 v
80% High 2023 3 Autumn term Final % of 2 year old children eligible for free funded education 93.3 v
M":‘i’;’,’ﬁ”" High 2023 3 Autumn term Final % of 3 and 4 year old children eligible for free funded education 100.6 v
2°22"‘\‘,?si2ts MNOn | g 2022/23 Q4 Number of visits to libraries (annual cumulative indicator) 655434
2022/23200,000 High 2022/23 Q4 Libraries — PNET sessions 72,044
2022/22 3,000,000 High 2022/23 Q4 Libraries - Physical issues & e- downloads combined 1,439,366 v
= % of NoWecards processed and dispatched within 5 working days of receipt of initial
OP 85% High 202303 application a) OP 98.8 v
- % of NoWcards processed and dispatched within 5 working days of receipt of initial
DP 80% High 202303 application b) disabled 97.3 v
) % of NoWcards processed and dispatched within 5 working days of receipt of initial
Renewals 20% High 202208 application c) Renewals 100.0 v
w?zeoggz?)ﬁy High 2022/23 Q4 Safety carriageway defects repaired within 4 hours (emergency) % 87.5 I
0% Quarinly: | oy 2022/23 Saf i defects repaired within 2 working d t) % v
(2022/23) ig /23 Q4 ety carriageway defects repaired within 2 working days (urgent) 926
90203‘2“,’2?)”’ High 2022/23 Q4 Safety carriageway defects repaired within 5 working days (non-urgent) % 87.3 I
9020(;;,‘2';“" High 2022/23 Q4 Safety carriageway defects repaired within 10 working days (non-urgent) % 924 v
w?;ogg‘,’:;)ﬁy High 2022/23 Q4 Safety carriageway defects repaired within 20 working days (non-urgent) % 96.0 v

T e
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Targed
80% CQuarterly (2022523)
80% Quarterly [2022523)
90% Quarterly [(2022723)
98 5% Quarterly (2022:23)
B8.75% Quarterly (2022723)
20% Quarterly [2022/23)

100% of the eligible population
over & 5 year peniod

Mational ambition is 75%
Targets io achieve 5% or more
of the Lancashire smokers to
sat 3 gquit date per year
5% of smokers in Lancashire to
set 3 4 week guit date. OF
those, 50% of those to quit.

Mational 85%

Mational 85%

Mational 5%

Mational 85%

Maticnal 85%

zood ls
High
High
High
High
High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

As of Date

20224

2022y

20224

2304

2304

23104

2023 03

20224

2022,

2022y

23104

23104

23103

2022423

202223

20224

20224

2022,

2022

2022y

2303

23104

23104

23104

2304

202223

Medric Mama

Mon-Traffic Managemeant (MTM) lamp-out faults repaired within 5 working
days %

Traffic Management (T} lamip-cut fauliz repaired within 20 working days %
Highwways safety inspections on fime %

% of imes that a child with SEMD is successfully ransporied to school

% of calls presented fo the Cusfomer Access Service answered

Customer Access Service - Customer Satisfaction %

Patients invited for an NHS Health Check (proportion of eligible population per
year) %

MHS Health Checks undertaken {proportion of eligible population per year) %

Tobacco Control: Tofal persons setting a quit date %

Tobacco control: Total persons successfully quit %

PH 0-19: Methers who received a first face to face antenaial coniact with a
health visitor at 28 weeks or above %

PH 0-12: Infaniz that receive a face-io-face NEWV within 14 days by a health
visitor 3%
PH 0-12: Infanis who received a 6-3-week review by the time they turned 3
weeks %

PH 0-12: Children whao turned 12 months in the guarier who received a 12-
month review, by the age of 12 months 9%

PH 0-19: Children who received a 2-2 1/2-year review by the time they turned
212%

Latest Value |RAG Stafus

8.62
100.0
99.38

39,72
87.08

9232

118.24

4445

69.71

58.51

7240

7240

G600

7400

6900

e

S N N
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N N S A T

Upward trend High 202223 03 Sexual Health: Number attending for confraception 4 481 "
45% High 202223 03 Sexual Health: LARCG is the main method of confracepiion % 70,40 e
3 -l F"a”””ﬁi review a"'d'j Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH 2015) and Radiation (Emergency &

s ’;E"‘:’“‘: = govems | O 202223 Public Information) Regulations (REPPIR 2019) Report meetings with ColMAH . o

e TR = = '=* Competent Authority (HSE/EA) and for REPPIR (ONR); deadiines sef out in i

¥ R=EES statute. - see link for RAG Status
applicable
T5% High 202722 EOQSV percentage buy in (75%+) by Academies across Lancaszhire 84.00 vy
— High 5022/23 ggrr:gzles Level Agreement for all aspects of Health and Safety for Lancashire 55,00 o
Mg | ) Trading Standards - Submizsion of compliant statutory performance returns to

Fintain 2l stEluory retums Other 2021722 and production of plans for central government agencies & departmeniz and 0.00 W

and plans requirements met - see link for RAG Status

To protect Lancashire
Consumers and mazimise the Crther 2022/23
evel of detriment avoided.

Trading Sfandards -Estimate of Consumer detriment saved or prevented for

Lancashire Consumers £ 7,191,863.00

Maintain and improve Zcientific Services - Customer and Client Satisfaction Survey- se2 link for RAG

satifaction rates thes 202V epatys 0.00 '
0 Percent Low 202223353 % Revenue forecast cutiurn variance fo budged 0.27 !
4 ear Target of § absence
days per FTE by 2025/28 Year Low 202223 034 Sickness Abzence days per FTE 3.34

End
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CARING FOR THE

VULNERABLE

Targed Good ks A of Data Mitric Hama Latsat Vahue RAG Sfatus

30473 Low 2022/23 O I';.Ig:-nba of Mew Requests received for support from New Clients, per % of population 15 o
oo High 2022/23 Q4 % of CQC registerad locations rated Good or Qutstanding vs. Target - Comnmnunity ge 0 iy
Based
ad High 202223 Q4 % of CQC registered locations rated Good or Outstanding ws. Target - Residential 205 2
. ) Making Safeguarding Parsonal - % of Section 42 Safeguarding enquiries where desired _
2 High 2022/23 4 outcomes were asked for and expressad, where outcomes were Fully Achisved. 63.5 !
1264 Lo 202223 Q4 Mumber of people waiting over & days for an Adult Social Care Assessment 1183.0 w
18,1 High 2021722 Social Care-Related quslity of life score 193 e
. Pemanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,000 population
132 Low 2022723 Q4 aged 18-54 during tha year 188 x
- ) Pemanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,300 population
9278 Law 2022/23 4 aged G5+ during the year 7101 X
- ) ) Proporiion of Registered carers receiving formal support from the County Council {via
a3 High SH22/E3 08 arars divect paymenis) a8 v
160 Low 2022/23 4 Total nu.mber of people in receipt of long term support plus trend ower fime | per % 18 %
population
. ) The Proportion of people aged 85 and over who were still at home 81 days after -
&t High 2022/23 Q4 discharge frorm hospital into reablementrehabibtation services % 287 I
) The Proportion of adults with s learning disability who live in their own home or with their
an High 2022723 Q4 famity %pa g &l 922 W’
520 Low 2022723 04 £ Long Term Support Average Cost Per Person Per Wesk vs. Budget AT g |

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23 15
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o Joooon | moows | wewerame | taestuens | mao s
: e ., ¥ ofchildren and young peopie who received targeted early help support from -
e High | 20202308 |\opien and Famiies Wellbeing service which successfly met their idenfiied needs 734 v
a0 High 20222304 % of children looked after actually living in Lancashire 206 vy
Mot Appropiate Low 20222334 Children becoming looked after (Rate and Mumber) ] e
Crher Crter 20222304 Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation: Referrals for service 3300
Criher Orther 20222304 Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation: Families supported in safe accommedation % 230
&0 per yaar High 2022/23 Eﬁumeﬁc Abuse Perpetrator Programmne: Referrals completed (ing partial completion) 200 |
Above national High 2022/23 033 Substance Misuss and Alcohol: Proportion of all in treatment, who successtully 470 iy
average =" completed treatment and did not re-present within & months: alcohol %
Abowe national High 2022/23 03 Substance Misus= and Alcohol: Proportion of all in treatment, who successfully ca o
Swarage d "= completed treatment and did not re-present within & months: opiates %
um me oubstance Misuse and Alcohol: The estimated proportion of people in your area who
5 mo i dependent on Alcohol not in the treatment system % 839 I
_ . Substance Misuse and Alcohol: The estimated proporfion of people in your area who
<€ mow AELISEE g dependent on opiates, not in the treatment systam % 414 v
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PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT

Targat Good I Ap of Date

G5% by 2035 High 2022/23 04

G0% Cuarterdy (2022/23)  High 2022523 Od

2% by end 202223, 5% by
end 23724, 15% by end
24/25 25% by end 25728, High 2022723 04
50% by end 30¢31 and
100% by end 35/36

Metric Hame

%% of Waste Re-used. Recycled and Composted

%% of Waste Re-used, Recycled or Composied at Household Waste Recyoing

Centres [Excluding Inert Waste)

% of LOC Vehicle Fleet that is Ultra-low Emission

Lateat valua

4200

E5.60

210

RAG Status
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17



Narrative report

SUPPORTING

ECONOMIC GROWTH

As of Date Metric Hame Latest Value | RAG Status

To be agread High 2021722 % Good Level of Development at Early Years Foundation Stage G2.1

To ba agresd High 2021/22 b Final % Expected Standard in Reading. Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 570

To be agresad High 2021422 % SEND Pupils Expected Standard in EWH at K52 1610

To be agread High 2021422 Revised  Pupils Average Attainment 8 Score at Hey Stage 4 ATH

To be agread High 2021422 Revised SEMD Pupils Average Attsinment 8 Score at Hey Stage 4 334
PremDUETEE;:E?I;i?qEW service High 02z2/2104 % of Young People in Employment Education or Training g5.1 et

Previous _argegﬁ;l% [eaw Target: High 2022/21 04 ?;T—,,:;u rg People with SEND in Emgployment. Education or a0

5% High 20222104 % of Care Leawvers in Education, Employment or Training A37

S-year revised targef is £8.77Tm
covering circa 57 investments (July High 202272104 £ Mumber Rosebud Loans Provided to Mew or Existing Businesses 540,000 e
PG - o 3

Mew contract target {Jan 22 to June 23)

a1 High 20222304 Mo of Jobs Created by Boost 11.6 4
r izl
New cantract target {Jan 22 to June 23) High 2z2/2104 Mo of Mew Businesses Established by Boost 0.0 }(

103

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23 18



Narrative report

Our risk management

In delivering our services, we are faced with a range of risks, which can threaten the quality and availability of the services we provide. The corporate risk and
opportunity register is reported quarterly to Cabinet and the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee. Some of the most significant of these risks are highlighted

below:

Risk description

Possible consequences

Mitigating actions

Financial sustainability

Services become unsustainable and we
cannot fulfil our statutory duties resulting in
an adverse impact on clients/residents.

The council has an appropriate level of reserves available to manage the
financial risks it is facing to 2026/27. However, additional savings will be
required to bring the council to a financially sustainable position.

Workforce recruitment and retention

Unable to attract and recruit candidates and
retain staff leading to an inability to deliver
services.

Corporate people strategy developed and is subject to approval which will
give a coherent and cohesive direction of travel for the business in terms of
attraction, recruitment, retention and development.

Talent attraction team to be in place as part of People Services operating
model.

Leadership capability framework drafted pending approval and adoption, to
further develop leadership capability.

Succession planning work commenced.

Increased service
community and services

demand

impact

on

Potential adverse impact on quality of
service provision.

Additional pressure on services which are
already under strain.

Could result in safeguarding alerts.

New practice focussed project Living Better Lives in Lancashire will
fundamentally change the approach and ways of working particularly around
current front-line assessment and determination of services.

Undertaking an evaluation in terms of demand and capacity to ensure we
have the right capacity within our workforce to respond to the demand.

Working closely with providers to review capacity in the domiciliary care
sector and how to improve.

Winter resilience planning in progress in collaboration with the NHS.
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Our financial performance

Revenue summary

The council receives funding from three main sources:
e Government grants

Council tax

Business rates

Gross expenditure by service 2022/23 (£m)
Total £2,672.7m

= Chief executive
services
£0.6

® Schools
£1,132.7

\'

N

The council also generates income from fees and charges for services it provides. The charts illustrate the funding received and how it was spent on services.

Sources of funding 2022/23 (Em)
Total £2,698.7m " Other income
£59.4

Adult services and
health and wellbeing = Non-domestic rates
-
£34.8
" Fees, charges and
specific grants i i
£1,568.1 L ggzgclll tax income
" General government
grants
£343.3

£791.3

Education and
children’s services
£321.9

Growth, environment
and transport

£267.4

® Other COVID-19 Capital grants and
Resources grants contributions
£158.8 £12.1 £113.9

20
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Revenue outturn

In February 2022, the council approved a net revenue budget of £948.107 million. The revenue budget shows the annual cost of delivering against the council’s
duties and responsibilities to the community, many of which are given to the council under statute.

The following table shows what Lancashire County Council actually spent compared to the planned spending for the year. The difference between the two is
shown in the (under)/overspend column. The negative figures are those where spend is less than planned and the positive figures are where spend is more

than planned.

Service Approved Outturn (Under)/
budget overspend

£m £m £m

Adult services and health and wellbeing 421.237 413.685 (7.552)
Education and children's services 229.376 241.266 11.890
Growth, environment and transport 158.488 160.495 2.007
Resources 155.149 151.701 (3.448)
Chief executive services (16.143) (18.290) (2.147)
Sub total 948.107 948.857 0.750
Schools 0 17.995 17.995
Total 948.107 966.852 18.745

The overspend reported is 0.08% of the 2022/23 budget
(excluding schools) and includes a mixture of variances across
services. Pressures continue to be experienced across social
care, particularly in relation to commissioned services at
home in Adult Services, and transport and placement costs in
Children's Social Care. The council has received funding from
the NHS and government grants to support the 2022/23
position. The outturn position is also supported by good
investment return performance on cash balances.

The level of schools' in-year spending in 2022/23 has shown
an increase over historic levels with energy and general price
pressure and the reinstatement of one off delayed project
spend during the covid lockdown driving the increase. The
deficit has led to the decrease of ringfenced schools' reserves.

The outturn position is reconciled to the figures shown in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement in Note 5 - expenditure and funding analysis.
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Ca pltal |nvestment progra mme Capital expenditure by service 2022/23 (£m)
Schools (excluding DFC)
In February 2022, the council approved an initial capital budget of £206.263 Schools devolved formula capital
million for 2022/23. The final capital programme for the year following Highways
review and subsequent investment decisions totalled £223.115 million, and franseert
|nc|uded; Externally funded schemes
Central systems and ICT
e Enhancements and improvements to schools and buildings the Adultsocial care
council delivers services from including residential care homes; Corporate - property
e Upgrading of carriageways, street lighting and improvements to road Feonamic develapment
junctions; South Lancaster growth ca:ﬂ::st
e Investment in the council's ICT infrastructure to support corporate R : fd

priorities;

0.0 5.0 10.0 150 20.0 250 30.0 350 400 450 500 550

e Investment in improvements to transport networks;
e Delivery of the awarded transforming cities programme;

Budget Expenditure

e Support for schemes to deliver economic growth in the county. Revised | Expenditure Variation
budget

The total spend on capital works in 2022/23 was £138.585 million which £m £m £m
represents 62.1% of the budgeted programme. Schools (excluding DFC) 24.768 22.099 (2.669)
Schools devolved formula capital 2.338 2.098 (0.240)

Highways 49.962 42.130 (7.832)

Transport 23.591 12.659 (10.932)

Externally funded schemes 3.072 1.675 (1.397)

Central systems and ICT 13.989 12.100 (1.889)

Adult social care 17.255 17.197 (0.058)

Corporate — property 22.285 10.016 (12.269)

Economic development 41.565 8.236 (33.329)

South Lancaster growth catalyst 4.828 2.560 (2.268)

Vehicles 4.212 2.323 (1.889)

East Lancashire levelling up fund 0 0.406 0.406

Transforming cities fund 15.250 5.086 (10.164)

Total expenditure 223.115 138.585 (84.530)
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Assets and liabilities

The balance sheet summarises the council's financial position at the year-end and reports the assets, liabilities and reserves of the council which show what
the council owns and how much it owes. The net assets of the council have increased by £1,635.2 million from £1,528.0 million at 31 March 2022 to £3,163.2
million at 31 March 2023, with the main balance sheet variations shown in the following chart:

Summary financial position 31 March 2022 restated 31 March 2023 Movement
£m £m £m
What we own (assets) 4,469.6 5,039.3 569.7
What we owe (liabilities) (2,941.6) (1,876.1) 1,065.5
Net financial position (assets less liabilities) 1,528.0 3,163.2 1,635.2
The net financial position is held in reserves as follows:
General reserves available to the council (usable) (713.8) (704.6) 9.2
Other reserves held for statutory or specific purposes (unusable) (814.2) (2,458.6) (1,644.4)
Total reserves (1,528.0) (3,163.2) (1,635.2)

Main balance sheet variations (Em)

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

1

Other long term liabilities

W2021/22 [2022/23
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Unusable reserves

Other long term liabilities

The movement in long term liabilities results from a reduction in the
pension liability valuation which has moved into a surplus position. The
contra entry is reflected in the unusable reserves.
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Pension fund asset/liability

The council has a net future pension asset of £690.9 million and a net liability
of £75.1 million for the local government pension scheme and teachers'
pensions respectively (£1,108.1 million liability as at 31 March 2022) on an
International Accounting Standard (lAS) 19 basis.

Actuarial valuations are carried out every three years. The last actuarial
valuation of the Lancashire County Pension Fund was carried out as at 31
March 2022 by an independent firm of actuaries. The pension figures are
revised annually based on updated assumptions.

The financial assumptions depend on AA-rated corporate bond yields at the
accounting date which increased significantly, and in addition to a decrease
in assumed Consumer Price Index inflation (CPI) the combined effect has
significantly decreased pension liabilities and resulted in a surplus position
for the council.

Further details of the pension liability and assets are set out in the technical
annex section of these financial statements.

Reserves

The reserves on the balance sheet represent the council's net worth and are
split into usable reserves and unusable reserves.

The following chart shows the balance of reserves over the last three years.

Usable reserves are shown in green, unusable reserves are shown in red and
reserves belonging to schools are shown in orange.
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Reserves (£m)

3500

3000
2500
2000 2,458.6
1500
814.2
1000
300.2
132.2 [ 1088 |
00 1168
526.6 581.6 595.8
0
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

OUsable reserves  @Schools reserves @ Unusable reserves

Usable reserves

Usable reserves are those reserves that can be spent on future services and
include general reserves as well as those earmarked for specific purposes.

Unusable reserves

The council also holds a number of unusable reserves, which arise as a result
of statutory or accounting adjustments and cannot be used for expenditure
on services. These include unrealised gains and losses, particularly in



Narrative report

relation to the revaluation of property, and adjustment accounts, which
absorb the timing difference between the outcome of applying accounting
practice and the amounts required to be charged to the financial statements
under statute. The adjustments are described in more detail in the following
section - 'explanation of the accounting statements'.

The following accounts normally represent the most significant movements
in unusable reserves and are explained further in Note 31:

e Revaluation reserve;
e Pensions reserve;
e Capital adjustment account.

The decrease in unusable reserves is largely due to changes in the pension
liability.

Financial sustainability

The council has to plan for the long term to ensure that it can continue to
deliver its services in future years and be able to deal with any unexpected
events. As a result, it is important that our financial standing (or
sustainability) is robust.

Lancashire County Council has a fully developed medium term financial
strategy covering a period of three years, which includes looking at risks and

future demands on services.

The biggest medium-term financial risks identified are:
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e Population growth and age profile — this is likely to lead to increased
service demand.

e Schools balances — we have funding pressures due to government
education grants being less than expenditure.

e Safeguarding the financial position of the council — the council looks
at ways to improve efficiency through delivering services in different
ways. These plans should remain on track.

Raising debt to finance council investment

The council has a borrowing requirement arising from current and past
years' capital programmes. This is met by a mixture of long and short term
borrowing, the balance of which can vary year on year depending upon
maturities and market conditions. Decisions made on borrowing will also
affect cash available for investments. Councils can borrow to invest in
property or other infrastructure that supports the delivery of services, but
they must ensure that they can pay this amount back.

The council sets out its approach to borrowing and investment in its annual
treasury management strategy, and this is monitored throughout the year
by the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee, with advice from external
specialists as appropriate.
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Financial interests in other organisations

The group accounts show the full extent of the county council's economic activities by reflecting the county council's involvement with its group companies.
Inclusion in the Lancashire County Council group is dependent upon the extent of the county council's interest and control over the entity. Where an entity is
considered to be below materiality levels, it is not included in the group accounts.

Type Number
Subsidiaries 6
Associates 2
Joint ventures 2

In 2022/23, the group accounts include the county council's interest in Lancashire County Developments Limited, which is an economic development agency
for the county. Lancashire County Developments Limited is the holding company in the group structure, the subsidiary company is Lancashire County
Developments (Property) Limited.

The financial position of the council is as follows with the inclusion of Lancashire County Developments Limited:

Summary financial position 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 Movement
restated

£m £m £m
What we own (assets) 4,554.3 5,119.5 565.2
What we owe (liabilities) (2,946.4) (1,882.6) 1,063.8
Net financial position (assets less liabilities) 1,607.9 3,236.9 1,629.0
The net financial position is held in reserves as follows:
General reserves available to the council (usable) (713.8) (704.6) 9.2
Other reserves held for statutory or specific purposes (unusable) (814.2) (2,458.6) (1,644.4)
Subsidiary reserves (79.9) (73.7) 6.2
Total reserves (1,607.9) (3,236.9) (1,629.0)

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23
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Prior period adjustments

The council has restructured its services during 2022/23. The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure.
The council has corrected it's accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions in 2021/22.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23
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Explanation of the accounting statements

The statement of accounts has a key part to play in accountability to
taxpayers and other stakeholders as to how public money is used. It
provides information on:

e The cost of the council’s services for the year;
e How the services were funded;
e The council’s assets and liabilities at the year end.

Local authority accounts are complex due to the need to produce financial
statements that address both an accounting framework and a legislative
framework. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) set out how
items should be presented in the statement of accounts, however, these are
mainly designed for the private sector so are adapted for local government.

In addition, the government makes statutory requirements, which are

specific rules that local authorities must follow when they prepare their
accounts, which limit the amounts that can be charged to council taxpayers.

Comprehensive income and expenditure
statement

The comprehensive income and expenditure statement reflects the cost of
providing the council’s services in line with accounting practices.

The comprehensive income and expenditure statement has two sections:
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The top section reflects the full cost of providing services under
International Financial Reporting Standards and shows whether the
council's operations resulted in a surplus or deficit.

The bottom section 'other comprehensive income and expenditure'
includes details of the gains or losses in the measurement of the assets and
liabilities of the council which arise as a result of changes in market
valuations, interest rates or changes in measurement assumptions in
relation to pension assets and liabilities.

Movement in reserves statement

The movement in reserves statement shows the movement from the start
to the end of the year on the different reserves held by the council, analysed
into usable and unusable reserves. The usable reserves show the resources
currently available to spend on services.

As local authorities are tax-raising bodies, they are subject to specific rules
as to how tax rates are to be set in relation to the income and expenditure
of the council. As outlined above, the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement shows the cost of providing services in line with
International Financial Reporting Standards; however, the amounts
chargeable to council tax are limited by statutory requirements. The
movement in reserves statement includes details of the income and
expenditure that is recognised under accounting rules but then removed
from the accounts by legislation to give the amount of expenditure that has
been funded by the local taxpayer.
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The statutory adjustments largely relate to arrangements for funding capital
expenditure or the timing with which some items, for example pension
costs, are charged to council tax. Further details of the adjustments are
shown in Note 14 — adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations.

Expenditure and funding analysis

The expenditure and funding analysis reconciles the outturn position
reported to management with the movement in reserves statement and the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, detailing the
adjustments described above.

Balance sheet

The balance sheet summarises the council’s financial position at the year-
end and shows the assets, liabilities and reserves of the council. The
council's net assets, represents the value of assets the council would hold
after settling all its liabilities, which is balanced by the various reserves of
the council.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement shows the reason for changes in the council’s cash
balances during the year, and whether that change is due to operating
activities, financing activities or new investment.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

Notes to the financial statements

The notes to the accounts provide further detail on material items within
the core financial statements.

Group accounts

The group accounts show the full extent of the council’s economic activities
by reflecting the council’s involvement with its group companies.

Pension fund accounts

The pension fund accounts provide a summary of pension fund performance
over the year and the net assets of the pension fund at the end of the year.

Annual governance statement

The annual governance statement sets out the governance structures of the
council and its key internal controls.



Statement of responsibilities

This statement defines the responsibilities of the council and the Chief
Financial Officer in respect of the council’s financial affairs.

The council’s responsibilities

The council is required to:

e Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial
affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility
for the administration of those affairs under Section 151 of the
Local Government Act 1972. In this council, that officer is the Chief
Executive and Director of Resources;

e Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use
of resources and safeguard its assets;

e Approve the statement of accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s responsibilities

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the council’s
statement of accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Section 151 Officer has:

o Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them
consistently;

e Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent;

e Complied with the local authority Code.
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The Section 151 Officer has also:

e Kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
e Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Certification of accounts

| certify that the statement of accounts gives a true and fair view of the
financial position of the council and its income and expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Angie Ridgwell
Chief Executive and Director of Resources
21 June 2024

Approval of accounts

| confirm that these accounts were approved at the meeting of the Audit,
Risk and Governance Committee on 22 April 2024 and reconfirmed on 21
June 2024 (as delegated).

A Schofield
Chair of Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
21 June 2024
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Gross

£m
745.8
264.2
259.6
136.8
2.4
1,097.8
2,506.6
23.8
57.3

0
2,587.7

! The council has restructured its services during 2022/23.

expenditure

2021/22
restated

Gross
income

£m
(344.6)
(42.8)
(61.5)
(50.5)
(6.3)
(1,029.4)
(1,535.1)
(6.0)
(35.1)
(1,009.4)
(2,585.6)

Net
expenditure

£m
401.2
221.4
198.1
86.3
(3.9)
68.4
971.5
17.8
22.2
(1,009.4)
2.1
(85.6)
(538.4)

37.5

(586.5)
(584.4)

Adult services and health and wellbeing *

Education and children’s services *

Growth, environment and transport ?

Resources *.2

Chief executive services !

Schools

Cost of services 2

Other operating income and expenditure (Note 6)

Financing and investment income and expenditure (Note 7)
Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure (Note 8)
(Surplus)/deficit on provision of services 2

(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (Note 31)
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit pension liability/(asset)
(Note 31)

(Surplus)/deficit on financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (income) and expenditure
Total comprehensive (income) and expenditure 2

The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure.

2The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Gross
expenditure

£m
791.3
321.9
267.4
158.8
0.6
1,132.7
2,672.7
103.6
77.8

0
2,854.1

2022/23

Gross
income

£m
(316.5)
(67.7)
(75.2)
(52.7)
(3.2)
(1,065.0)
(1,580.2)
(16.8)
(42.6)
(1,059.1)
(2,698.7)

Net
expenditure

£m
474.8
254.2
192.2
106.1
(2.5)
67.7
1,092.5
86.8
35.2
(1,059.1)
1554
(111.1)
(1,861.7)

182.2

(1,790.6)
(1,635.2)



Balance at 1 April 2022
Movement in reserves during 2022/23

Total comprehensive income and expenditure (Note 5)

Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 14)

(Increase)/decrease in year
Balance at 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021
Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total comprehensive income and expenditure (Note 5) !

Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 14) !

(Increase)/decrease in year
Balance at 31 March 2022 !

General fund
/ earmarked
reserves

£fm
(563.2)

155.4
(110.4)

45.0
(518.2)

General fund
/ earmarked
reserves

£fm
(492.9)

2.1
(72.4)

(70.3)
(563.2)

Capital
receipts
reserve

£fm
(10.3)

(10.8)

(10.8)
(21.1)

Capital
receipts
reserve

£m
(8.4)

0
(1.9)

(1.9)
(10.3)

1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Capital grants
unapplied

£m
(140.3)

(25.0)

(25.0)
(165.3)

Capital grants
unapplied

£m
(142.1)

1.8
(140.3)

Total usable
reserves

(Note 31)
£m
(713.8)

155.4
(146.2)

9.2
(704.6)

Total usable
reserves

(Note 31)
£m
(643.4)

2.1
(72.5)

(70.4)
(713.8)

Unusable
reserves

(Note 31)
£m
(814.2)

(1,790.6)
146.2

(1,644.4)
(2,458.6)

Unusable
reserves

(Note 31)
£m
(300.2)

(586.5)
72.5

(514.0)
(814.2)

Total
reserves

£fm
(1,528.0)

(1,635.2)
0

(1,635.2)
(3,163.2)

Total
reserves

£fm
(943.6)

(584.4)
0

(584.4)
(1,528.0)



31 March 2022
restated
£m
3,231.1
28.7
17.4
605.4
39.5

0
3,922.1
132.4
4.0
228.4
18.5
164.2
547.5
(325.1)
(311.2)
(66.3)
(15.2)
(71.5)
(789.3)
(35.6)
(881.0)
(1.3)
(1,234.4)
(2,152.3)
1,528.0
(713.8)
(814.2)
(1,528.0)
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Property, plant and equipment
Heritage assets

Intangible assets

Long term investments
Long term debtors
Pension fund asset

Long term assets

Short term investments
Inventories

Short term debtors
Payments in advance
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets

Short term borrowing
Short term creditors
Receipts in advance

Short term provisions
Other current liabilities
Current liabilities

Long term provisions
Long term borrowing
Long term creditors
Other long term liabilities *
Long term liabilities *

Net assets *

Usable reserves

Unusable reserves !

Total reserves *

Note

18
20

26
21

26

22

23

26
24
24
25
27

25
26
26
28

31
31

31 March 2023

£m
3,288.8
28.7
24.4
413.5
37.7
690.9
4,484.0
125.8
4.0
277.6
27.1
120.8
555.3
(310.4)
(339.2)
(82.6)
(9.7)
(27.2)
(769.1)
(41.2)
(870.8)
(1.3)
(193.7)
(1,107.0)
3,163.2
(704.6)
(2,458.6)
(3,163.2)

1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the
early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.



2021/22
restated
£m

(2.1)
248.6

(130.4)

116.1
(12.9)
(206.1)
(102.9)
267.1
164.2

1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services !

Adjustments to net surplus/deficit on the provision of services for
non-cash movements !

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus/deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Note

32

32

33
34

23

2022/23

£fm
(155.4)
297.8

(131.8)

10.6

0.2
(54.2)
(43.4)
164.2
120.8
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General notes to the financial statements

Note 1 - Accounting standards issued, but not
yet adopted

The council is required to disclose the impact of an accounting change
required by a new accounting standard that has been issued on or before 1
January but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). The 2023/24 Code will
introduce the following amendments:

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors

The amendments introduced a definition of accounting estimates to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates "are
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty".

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements

The amendments to IAS 1 provide additional guidance on the disclosure of
accounting policies in the accounts.

IAS 12 Income taxes (Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction)

Amendments to IAS 12 address uncertainty in practice about how an entity
applies the initial recognition exemption to transactions that give rise to
both an asset and liability.
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IFRS 3 Business combinations

The amendments update an outdated reference in IFRS 3 without
significantly changing its requirements.

These amendments are not anticipated to have a significant impact on the
council's accounts.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will lead to a substantial change in accounting practice for
lessees, the current distinction between finance and operating leases will be
removed. Instead, lessees are required to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases i.e. the lessee will recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the leased asset; and a lease liability representing the lessee's
obligation to make lease payments for the asset.

Lessees will have a single accounting model for all leases with two
exemptions:

e Low-value assets
e Short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less)

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred until 1 April 2024.
The council is currently reviewing its leases to assess the impact of the
change.
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Note 2 - Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies, the council has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty
about future events. The critical judgements made in the statement of
accounts are:

Funding

There continues to be a high degree of uncertainty around future levels of
funding for local government. The council's medium term financial strategy
assesses the on-going pressures from reduced funding and increased
demand for services, which are mitigated by further savings and use of
reserves. The council is of the view that this uncertainty is not sufficient to
provide an indication that the assets of the council might be impaired as a
result of the need to dispose of assets at less than their current value.

Private finance initiative (PFI)

The council is deemed to control the services provided under the private
finance initiative (PFl) agreements and also to control the residual value of
the properties at the end of the agreements. The accounting policies for PFI
schemes and similar contracts have been applied to the arrangement and
the buildings have been recognised as property, plant and equipment on the
council's balance sheet. The buildings have been valued at £205.0 million as
at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: £172.7 million).
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School assets

In assessing the most appropriate accounting treatment for balances and
transactions in relation to schools, the council has considered the
circumstances of each of the categories of school, such as ownership,
control and access to economic benefits and service potential. Further
details are included in Note 19.

The property, plant and equipment balance includes properties valued at
£838.5 million, which are not owned by the council. These are principally
voluntary aided, voluntary controlled and foundation schools for which the
trustees have legal ownership rights. It is the council's policy to include
these school assets on the balance sheet as the council benefits from using
these properties in terms of delivery of service and meets the costs of
service provision. These assets are retained on the balance sheet of the
council to fairly reflect the value of assets used in providing the service.

Interests in companies and other entities

The council conducts activities through a variety of undertakings, either
through ultimate control of, or in partnership with, other organisations. An
assessment of all of the council’s interests has been carried out to determine
whether a group relationship between the council and other entities exists
on the grounds of control and significant influence.

The council's relationships with other entities can be found within the
related parties note. (Note 36).

Group accounts have been produced to reflect Lancashire County Council's
relationship with Lancashire County Developments Limited. Other owned
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companies have been excluded from the group accounts on the basis that
they are not considered material.

The omission of these companies from the group accounts is not considered
to affect the ability of a user of the accounts to determine the financial
position and performance of the council, or its exposure to risk.

In general, there is a low level of financial risk to the council from its
involvement with group members: for example, many group members are
companies limited by guarantee, where the council's liability is limited to
f1. There is a very low level of involvement from group members in
delivering the council's statutory or core services.
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Note 3 - Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

The statement of accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the council's balance sheet at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as

follows:

recognised measurement techniques.

The value of the property, plant and equipment is dependent upon
professional judgement based on information available at the time of
valuation.

Item Uncertainties Consequence if actual results differ from assumptions

Property, The council's internal valuers provide valuations as at 31 March based | Valuations are compiled by an expert using recognised measurement
plant and on a 3-year rolling programme of valuations. The valuations are | techniques and based on professional guidance. The underlying data
equipment undertaken by qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal | is considered to be reliable and the scope to use judgement and
valuations Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) professional standards using | change assumptions limited.

The balance of assets not revalued in year are reviewed by applying
local movement in prices and appropriate cost indices to ensure that
the value of the council's assets are not materially misstated at the
balance sheet date.

A variation of 10% in the value of the council's land and buildings
would be approximately £205.6 million.

A reduction in the estimated valuations would result in a reduction to
the revaluation reserve and / or a loss charged to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement.

An increase in estimated valuations would result in the reversal of
any negative revaluations previously charged to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement and / or increases to the
revaluation reserve and / or gains charged to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement.
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Fair value
measurement

When the fair values of surplus assets and financial instruments
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets (i.e.
Level 1 inputs), their fair value is measured using the following
valuation techniques:

e ForLevel 2 inputs, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities
in active markets at the balance sheet date;

e Forlevel 3 inputs, valuations based on most recent valuations
adjusted to current valuation by the use of indexation and
impairment review.

Where possible, the inputs to these valuation techniques are based
on observable data, but where this is not possible, judgement is
required in establishing fair values. These judgements typically
include considerations such as uncertainty and risk. Changes in
assumptions used could affect the fair value of the council’s assets
and liabilities.

The fair values of financial instruments are measured using Level 2
inputs, namely using quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets at the balance sheet date. Additional information is
provided in the financial instruments disclosure notes section.

The group investment properties are valued using level 3 inputs.
Further information is provided in the group accounts section.

All valuations are undertaken by expert valuers in accordance with
the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards.

Item

Uncertainties

Consequence if actual results differ from assumptions

Pensions
liability/asset

The net liability to pay pensions is calculated every three years with
annual updates in the intervening years. A firm of consulting
actuaries (Mercer) is engaged to provide the council with expert
advice about the assumptions to be applied. Changes to these
underlying assumptions can result in significant variances in the
calculated liability. The assumptions and complex judgements
applied include the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and
expected returns on pension fund assets.

The combined effect of an increase in the discount rate assumption
from last year and a decrease in Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation
has significantly decreased liabilities with the deficit moving into an
accounting surplus.

The effects on the net pension surplus of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured. For instance,

e A 0.5% increase in the discount rate assumption would
increase the value of the net pension surplus by approximately
£295.7 million;

e A 0.25% increase in assumed earnings inflation would
decrease the value of the net pension surplus by
approximately £19.9 million;

e An increase of one year in assumed life expectancy would
decrease the net pension surplus by approximately £77.1
million.
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Note 4 — Prior period adjustments

Adjustments to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

In 2022/23 the council has restructured its services. The 2021/22 comparator figures in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement have been
restated to reflect the revised structure. The 2021/22 figures have also been adjusted to correct the accounting entries between the pension liability and the
pension reserve in respect of the early payment of pension contributions.

Net expenditure Services adjustment | Pensions adjustment Net expenditure

audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22

£m £m £m £m

Adults 402.2 (402.2) 0 0
Policy, information, commissioning and safeguarding 9.0 (9.0) 0 0
Public health and wellbeing (10.1) 10.1 0 0
Education and children’s services 224.0 (2.6) 0 221.4
Growth, environment and planning 16.0 (16.0) 0 0
Highways and transport 112.0 (112.0) 0 0
Organisational development 2.1 (2.1) 0 0
Waste management 70.1 (70.1) 0 0
Finance 18.2 (18.2) 0 0
Corporate 24.5 (24.5) 0 0
Strategy and performance 20.1 (20.1) 0 0
Chief executive services 23.7 (27.6) 0 (3.9)
Schools 68.4 0 0 68.4
Digital services 31.4 (31.4) 0 0
Adult services and health and wellbeing 0 401.2 0 401.2
Growth, environment and transport 0 198.1 0 198.1
Resources 0 126.4 (40.1) 86.3
Cost of services 1,011.6 0 (40.1) 971.5
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Gross expenditure

Services adjustment

Pensions adjustment

Gross expenditure

audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22

£m £m £m £m

Adults 657.4 (657.4) 0 0
Policy, information, commissioning and safeguarding 10.3 (10.3) 0 0
Public health and wellbeing 78.1 (78.1) 0 0
Education and children’s services 251.4 12.8 0 264.2
Growth, environment and planning 25.7 (25.7) 0 0
Highways and transport 146.0 (146.0) 0 0
Organisational development 2.1 (2.1) 0 0
Waste management 87.9 (87.9) 0 0
Finance 28.7 (28.7) 0 0
Corporate 30.8 (30.8) 0 0
Strategy and performance 48.1 (48.1) 0 0
Chief executive services 48.6 (46.2) 0 2.4
Schools 1,097.8 0 0 1,097.8
Digital services 33.8 (33.8) 0 0
Adult services and health and wellbeing 0 745.8 0 745.8
Growth, environment and transport 0 259.6 0 259.6
Resources 0 176.9 (40.1) 136.8
Cost of services 2,546.7 0 (40.1) 2,506.6
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Gross income

Services adjustment

Gross income

audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22
£m £m £m
Adults (255.2) 255.2 0
Policy, information, commissioning and safeguarding (1.3) 1.3 0
Public health and wellbeing (88.2) 88.2 0
Education and children’s services (27.4) (15.4) (42.8)
Growth, environment and planning (9.7) 9.7 0
Highways and transport (34.0) 34.0 0
Waste management (17.8) 17.8 0
Finance (10.5) 10.5 0
Corporate (6.3) 6.3 0
Strategy and performance (28.0) 28.0 0
Chief executive services (24.9) 18.6 (6.3)
Schools (1,029.4) 0 (1,029.4)
Digital services (2.4) 2.4 0
Adult services and health and wellbeing 0 (344.6) (344.6)
Growth, environment and transport 0 (61.5) (61.5)
Resources 0 (50.5) (50.5)
Cost of services (1,535.1) 0 (1,535.1)
Adjustments to the movement in reserves statement
Balance Pension adjustment Balance
audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22
£m £m £m
Total comprehensive income and expenditure (Note 5) 42.2 (40.1) 2.1
Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations (Note 14) (112.5) 40.1 (72.4)
(Increase)/decrease in year (70.3) 0 (70.3)
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Adjustments to the balance sheet

Balance Pension adjustment Balance

audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22

£m £m £m

Other long term liabilities (1,274.5) 40.1 (1,234.4)

Unusable reserves (774.1) (40.1) (814.2)
Adjustments to the cash flow statement

Balance Pension adjustment Balance

audited 2021/22 restated 2021/22

£m £m £m

Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services (42.2) 40.1 (2.1)

Adjustments to net surplus/deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 288.7 (40.1) 248.6

The following explanatory notes to the accounts have been restated as a result of the prior period adjustments:

e Note5 - Expenditure and funding analysis

e Note 14 - Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
e Note 28 — Other long term liabilities

e Group comprehensive income and expenditure statement

e Group movement in reserves statement

e Group balance sheet

e Group cash flow statement

e Note 11 - Group cash flows from operating activities
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Note 5 - Expenditure and funding analysis

The expenditure and funding analysis reconciles the cost of providing services in line with proper accounting practices included in the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement with the statutorily defined amounts chargeable to council taxpayers as shown in the movement in reserves statement. Proper
accounting practices measure the resources that have been generated and consumed in the year, including the use of property (depreciation) and the value of
pension benefits earned by the employees. Statutory provisions determine how much of the council's expenditure needs to be met from council tax each year.

Expenditure and funding analysis - 2022/23

Outturn position as | Adjustments to arrive Net expenditure Adjustments Net expenditure

reported to at the net amount chargeable to the | between the funding comprehensive

management chargeable to the general fund | and accounting basis income and

general fund * o expenditure

statement

£m £m £m £m £m

Adult services, health and wellbeing 413.7 34.9 448.6 26.2 474.8

Education and children’s services 241.3 (9.0) 232.3 21.9 254.2

Growth, environment and transport 160.5 (12.2) 148.3 43.9 192.2

Resources 151.7 (48.7) 103.0 3.1 106.1

Chief executive services (18.3) 15.8 (2.5) 0 (2.5)

Schools 18.0 (0.4) 17.6 50.1 67.7

Net cost of services 966.9 (19.6) 947.3 145.2 1,092.5

Other income and expenditure (948.1) 45.8 (902.3) (34.8) (937.1)

(Surplus)/deficit 18.8 26.2 45.0 110.4 155.4
Opening general fund balance at 1 April (563.2)
(Surplus)/deficit 45.0
Closing general fund balance at 31 March (518.2)

* Further details on the adjustments are shown in the following tables.
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Expenditure and funding analysis - 2021/22 restated

Outturn position as
reported to

Adjustments to arrive
at the net amount

Net expenditure
chargeable to the

Adjustments
between the funding

Net expenditure
comprehensive

management chargeable to the general fund | and accounting basis income and

general fund * i expenditure

statement

£m £m £m £m £m

Adult services, health and wellbeing ? 378.7 (2.1) 376.6 24.6 401.2

Education and children’s services ! 213.4 (8.3) 205.1 16.3 221.4

Growth, environment and transport * 151.8 (6.5) 145.3 52.8 198.1

Resources %2 135.4 (46.0) 89.4 (3.1) 86.3

Chief executive services ! (27.8) 23.9 (3.9) 0 (3.9)

Schools (16.0) 0 (16.0) 84.4 68.4

Net cost of services 2 835.5 (39.0) 796.5 175.0 971.5

Other income and expenditure (881.4) 14.6 (866.8) (102.6) (969.4)

(Surplus)/deficit 2 (45.9) (24.4) (70.3) 72.4 2.1
Opening general fund balance at 1 April (492.9)
(Surplus)/deficit (70.3)
Closing general fund balance at 31 March (563.2)

* Further details on the adjustments are shown in the following tables.
1 The council has restructured its services during 2022/23. The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure.

2The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Adjustments to arrive at the net amount chargeable to the general fund

These adjustments relate to items that are included within departmental budgets but excluded from the cost of services in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement e.g. levies, reserve transactions, finance and investment income and expenditure.

2021/22 restated 2022/23

Adjustments Adjustments Total Adjustments Adjustments Total

relating to other relating to adjustments relating to other relating to adjustments
income and | transfers to and income and | transfers to and
expenditure from reserves expenditure from reserves

£m £m £m £m £m £m

8.2 (10.3) (2.1) | Adult services, health and wellbeing * (1.6) 36.5 34.9

0.2 (8.5) (8.3) | Education and children’s services * 0.1 (9.1) (9.0)

(0.7) (5.8) (6.5) | Growth, environment and transport ? (1.1) (11.1) (12.2)

(0.8) (45.2) (46.0) | Resources ! (4.5) (44.2) (48.7)

0.3 23.6 23.9 | Chief executive services * 0 15.8 15.8

0 0 0 | Schools 0 (0.4) (0.4)

7.2 (46.2) (39.0) | Net cost of services (7.1) (12.5) (19.6)

(7.2) 21.8 14.6 | Other income and expenditure 7.2 38.6 45.8

0 (24.4) (24.4) | (Surplus)/deficit 0.1 26.1 26.2

1 The council has restructured its services during 2022/23. The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure. The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period
adjustments.
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Notes to the expenditure and funding analysis

The adjustments between the funding and accounting basis shown are
analysed further in the following tables.

Adjustments for capital purposes

This column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and
losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of
income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges
for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue
contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to
those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The taxation and non-specific grant income line is
credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for
which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net change for the pensions adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS
19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
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For services - this represents the removal of the employer pension
contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the
replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

For financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on

the defined benefit liability is charged to the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement.

Other statutory adjustments

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement and amounts
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

For financing and investment income and expenditure - the 'other
differences' column recognises adjustments to the general fund for the
timing differences for premiums and discounts.

For services - this represents the change in accrued employee benefits such
as annual leave.

The charge under taxation and non-specific grant income represents the
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
council tax and non-domestic rates that was projected to be received at the
start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted
accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any
difference will be brought forward in future surpluses or deficits on the
Collection Fund.



Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Adjustments between the funding and accounting basis - 2022/23

Adjustments for Net change for Other statutory Total

capital purposes the pensions differences statutory

adjustments adjustments

£m £m £m £m

Adult services and health and wellbeing 0.3 26.6 (0.7) 26.2
Education and children’s services 6.2 16.4 (0.7) 21.9
Growth, environment and transport 30.5 13.7 (0.3) 43.9
Resources 25.0 (21.5) (0.4) 3.1
Schools 20.4 31.6 (1.9) 50.1
Net cost of services 82.4 66.8 (4.0) 145.2
Other income and expenditure from the expenditure and funding analysis (60.2) 29.2 (3.8) (34.8)
Difference between general fund surplus or deficit and comprehensive income and 22.2 96.0 (7.8) 110.4

expenditure statement surplus or deficit on the provision of services
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Adjustments between the funding and accounting basis - 2021/22 restated

expenditure statement surplus or deficit on the provision of services 2

Adjustments for Net change for Other statutory Total

capital purposes the pensions differences statutory

adjustments adjustments

£m £m £m £m

Adult services, health and wellbeing * 5.2 194 0 24.6
Education and children’s services ? 5.2 11.1 0 16.3
Growth, environment and transport ! 40.4 12.4 0 52.8
Resources %2 19.5 (22.6) 0 (3.1)
Schools 45.5 39.6 (0.7) 84.4
Net cost of services 2 115.8 59.9 (0.7) 175.0
Other income and expenditure from the expenditure and funding analysis (108.6) 30.3 (24.3) (102.6)
Difference between general fund surplus or deficit and comprehensive income and 7.2 90.2 (25.0) 72.4

1The council has restructured its services during 2022/23. The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure.

2The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Expenditure and income analysed by nature

The council's expenditure and income are analysed as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
restated
£m £m
882.8 | Employee expenses (excluding voluntary aided schools) * 940.3
265.8 | Employee expenses for voluntary aided schools 269.7
1,271.3 | Other service expenses 1,403.6
86.7 | Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 59.1
26.8 | Interest payments 48.6
1.1 | Precepts and levies 1.1
30.5 | Net pension interest costs 29.2
22.7 | Loss on disposal of non-current assets 102.5
2,587.7 | Total expenditure * 2,854.1
(310.6) | Fees, charges and other service income (342.7)
(35.1) | Interest and investment income (42.6)
(550.1) | Income from council tax precept (567.1)
(26.8) | Income from business rates precept (34.8)
(1,657.0) | Government grants and contributions (1,694.7)
(6.0) | Gain on disposal of non-current assets (16.8)
(2,585.6) | Total income (2,698.7)
2.1 | (Surplus)/deficit on the provision of services ! 155.4

1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23



Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Note 6 - Other operating income and expenditure

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

1.1 | Levies for flood defences and inshore fisheries and conservation 1.1
authorities

(1.7) | (Gain) or loss on disposal of non-current assets 10.8

18.4 | Loss on transfer of schools to academy status 74.9

17.8 | Total 86.8

Note 7 - Financing and investment income and expenditure

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

22.6 | Interest payable and other similar charges 34.3
13.7 | Interest payable on PFl unitary payments 13.0
(9.5) | Impairment of financial instruments 1.3
30.5 | Net interest of the net defined benefit liability 29.2
(35.1) | Interest receivable and similar income (42.6)
22.2 | Total 35.2
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Note 8 - Taxation and non-specific grant income

The council credited the following to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(336.6) | Non-ringfenced Government grants (343.3)
(95.9) | Capital grants and contributions (123.9)
(432.5) | Total non-specific grant income (457.2)
(550.1) | Council tax income (567.1)
(26.8) | Non-domestic rates income (34.8)
(1,009.4) | Total (1,059.1)

The non-ringfenced Government grants and capital grants are analysed further in the following tables.

Non-ringfenced government grants

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(33.6) | Revenue support grant (34.7)
(158.2) | Top-up grant (business rates retention scheme) (158.1)
(17.5) | S31 grant (27.2)
(45.5) | Improved better care (47.1)
(41.9) | Adult social care (57.1)
(2.4) | New homes bonus (2.5)
(26.0) | Covid-19 grant 0
(11.5) | Other (16.6)
(336.6) | Total (343.3)
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Capital grants and contributions

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(36.3) | Department for transport (41.5)
(33.8) | Department of education (46.5)
(16.7) | Department for levelling up, housing and communities (17.1)
0.9 | Other government grants (3.4)
(10.0) | Other grants 0

0 | Other contributions (5.4)

(95.9) | Total (113.9)

Note 9 - Grant income and contributions credited to cost of services

In addition to the non-ringfenced grants, a number of service specific or ringfenced grants were credited to the cost of services as detailed below.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(893.8) | Dedicated schools grant (911.1)
(44.3) | Pupil premium grant (45.7)
(89.3) | Other Government grants (152.3)
(21.9) | PFl grant (21.9)
(70.2) | Public health grant (72.2)
(1.1) | Other grants (2.1)
(0.9) | Teachers' pension employer contribution grant (0.8)
(31.8) | Other contributions (20.3)
(71.2) | Covid-19 grants (12.1)
(1,224.5) | Total (1,237.5)
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Covid-19 grants

The government has provided a number of financial support packages in response to the Covid-19 pandemic including additional funding to support the cost of services or
offset income loss. As the council has some administrative control over the use or distribution of the grant funding, the transactions are reflected in the council's financial
statements.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(15.6) | Infection control fund for adult social care 0
(6.7) | Contain outbreak management fund 0
(4.8) | Coronavirus (COVID-19) catch-up premium 0
(10.0) | Adult social care rapid testing fund 0
(1.4) | COVID winter grant scheme 0
(10.6) | Workforce capacity fund for adult social care 0
(0.4) | Additional dedicated school and college transport 0
(0.4) | Local transport authority COVID-19 bus service support grant 0
(0.1) | Local authority emergency assistance grant for food and essential supplies 0
(2.6) | Community testing 0
(1.0) | Community discharge grant (COVID) (1.1)
(2.0) | COVID-19 self-isolation 0
(0.2) | Wellbeing for education return grant (0.2)
(0.1) | National tutoring programme academic mentors (0.1)
(4.2) | COVID Local Support Grant 0
(2.6) | Recovery Premium funding (6.0)
(2.4) | School-led tutoring grant (4.0)
(2.4) | (COVID-19) mass testing funding for schools and colleges (0.4)
(1.4) | Adult Social Care Omicron Support Fund 0
(1.2) | (COVID-19) summer schools programme funding 0
(0.7) | Vaccines grant 0
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Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

(0.3) | Kickstart Scheme grant (0.2)
(0.1) | Coronavirus (COVID 19) workforce fund (0.1)
(71.2) | Total (12.1)
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Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Note 10 - Dedicated schools grant

Central Individual Total
expenditure | schools' budget

£m £m £m

Final DSG for 2022/23 before academy recoupment (1,241.1)
Academy figure recouped for 2022/23 230.0
Total DSG after academy recoupment for 2022/23 (911.1)
Brought forward from 2021/22 (24.5)
Carry forward to 2023/24 agreed in advance 24.5
Agreed initial budgeted distribution for 2022/23 (151.0) (760.1) (911.1)
In-year adjustments 0 (1.8) (1.8)
Final budget distribution for 2022/23 (151.0) (761.9) (912.9)
Actual central expenditure relating to DSG 151.5 151.5
Actual ISB deployed to schools 761.9 761.9
Local authority contribution for 2022/23 (1.8) 0 (1.8)
In-year carry forward to 2023/24 (1.3) 0 (1.3)
Carry forward to 2023/24 agreed in advance (24.5)
Carry forward to 2023/24 (25.8)
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The council’s expenditure on schools is funded
primarily by grant monies provided by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is
ringfenced and can only be applied to meet
expenditure properly included in the Schools
Budget, as defined in the School Finance and
Early Years (England) Regulations 2017. The
Schools Budget includes elements for a range
of educational services provided on an
authority-wide basis and for the Individual
Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget
share for each maintained school.

The table details how the DSG has been
utilised.



Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Note 11 - Officers’ remuneration

The remuneration of senior employees, defined as those holding statutory posts or those reporting directly to the Head of Paid Service is set out below.

2022/23
Post holder Notes | Salary, fees and | Benefits in kind Pension Total
allowances contributions

£ £ £ £
Chief Executive (5151) - A Ridgwell 1 227,845 0 0 227,845
Executive Director of Adult Services and Health & Wellbeing - L Taylor 2 154,505 0 24,698 179,203
Executive Director of Education and Children's Services - E Grant 3 98,141 0 0 98,141
Executive Director of Education and Children's Services - J Old 3 83,572 0 13,757 97,329
Executive Director of Resources 4 0 0 0 0
Executive Director of Growth, Environment and Transport 139,137 0 22,752 161,889
Director of Finance 5 30,050 2,273 5,109 37,432
Director of Strategy and Performance 6 36,360 3,424 6,181 45,965
Director of Corporate Services 111,956 7,992 18,255 138,203
Director of Public Health 134,828 0 18,626 153,454
Head of Service Communications 7 20,694 0 3,518 24,212

Notes

1 The Chief Executive (5151) held the post of Chief Executive and Director of Resources until a new Interim Executive Director of Resources was appointed on 14 July 2022.

2 From December 2022, the post of Executive Director of Adult Services and Health & Wellbeing became shared director of both Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care Board (LSC ICB) and Lancashire
County Council's Adult Services and Health & Wellbeing. The LSC ICB are paying 80% of the costs.

3 The Executive Director for Education and Children's Services, Edwina Grant OBE left the council on 4 October 2022 and was replaced by Jacqui Old CBE who commenced in the role on 1 October 2022.

4 The Executive Director of Resources was seconded from Cheshire West and Chester Council to the council on 8 November 2022 and became permanent on 1 April 2023. The council paid £55,766 to Cheshire
West and Chester Council for the secondment. Additional cover was undertaken from 14 July 2022 until 28 February 2023. The council paid £142,643 to Tile Hill Interim & Executive Limited for this service.

5 The Director of Finance reported to the Chief Executive (S151) until 13 July 2022 and therefore only the remuneration until that date is shown in the table.

6 The Director of Strategy and Performance reported to the Chief Executive (5151) until 13 July 2022 and therefore only the remuneration until that date is shown in the table.

7 The Head of Communications reported to the Chief Executive (5151) until 13 July 2022 and therefore only the remuneration until that date is shown in the table.
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2021/22
Post holder Notes | Salary, fees and | Benefits in kind Pension Total
allowances contributions
£ £ £ £
Chief Executive and Director of Resources (5151) - A Ridgwell 1 228,019 0 0 228,019
Executive Director of Adult Services and Health & Wellbeing 148,660 0 24,371 173,031
Executive Director for Education and Children's Services - E Grant 175,925 0 0 175,925
Executive Director of Growth, Environment and Transport 2&3 148,810 0 24,371 173,181
Director of Corporate Services 4 107,558 8,103 17,928 133,589
Director of Finance 105,459 7,979 17,928 131,366
Director of Strategy and Performance 127,603 12,017 21,692 161,312
Director of Public Health 132,903 0 18,349 151,252
Head of Communications 3 71,702 0 12,164 83,866
Notes

1 The remuneration of the Chief Executive and Director of Resources (S151) includes an allowance for acting as Returning Officer for the county council elections which took place during the year.

2 The Executive Director of Growth, Environment and Transport left the council on 31 March 2022.

3 The remuneration of the Executive Director of Growth, Environment and Transport and the Head of Communications include an election fee for assisting the Returning Officer during the county council elections
which took place during the year

4 The remuneration of the Director of Corporate Services includes an allowance for acting as Deputy Returning Officer at the county council elections which took place during the year.
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Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

The number of other employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions, exceeded £50,000 during the year is set out in the following table.

2022/23 2021/22

Remuneration LCC Schools 2 Total Redundancies LCC Schools 2 Total Redundancies

Banding non-schools non-schools

£ staff ! staff !
50,000 to 54,999 310 526 836 1 181 490 671 5
55,000 to 59,999 74 311 385 1 55 278 333 1
60,000 to 64,999 47 223 270 0 36 209 245 1
65,000 to 69,999 36 150 186 0 25 140 165 0
70,000 to 74,999 25 104 129 0 20 80 100 2
75,000 to 79,999 25 48 73 1 31 28 59 0
80,000 to 84,999 6 26 32 0 0 22 22 0
85,000 to 89,999 1 23 24 0 1 18 19 0
90,000 to 94,999 0 5 5 0 2 11 13 0
95,000 to 99,999 2 13 15 0 0 10 10 0
100,000 to 104,999 1 4 5 0 0 3 3 0
105,000 to 109,999 3 3 6 0 1 2 3 0
110,000 to 114,999 2 3 5 0 4 1 5 0
115,000 to 119,999 0 1 1 0 1 0 1 0
120,000 to 124,999 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
125,000 to 129,999 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0
155,000 to 159,999 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
160,000 to 164,999 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
Total 534 1,440 1,974 3 359 1,293 1,652 9

! This table excludes staff in senior officer positions. If officers have held senior positions during the period, this element of their remuneration will be included in the Senior Officers note.
2 School leadership salaries are regulated by the School Teachers Pay and Conditions document. As Governing Bodies of maintained schools are responsible for appointing leadership staff and for annual
performance related pay increases information at an authority level is unavailable.
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Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Exit packages

No. compulsory No. other agreed Total number Total cost

redundancies departures £000 *

Banding (£) 2022/23 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2021/22
0 to 20,000 32 9 232 189 264 198 1,230 987
20,001 to 40,000 0 13 8 17 8 428 183
40,001 to 60,000 1 1 0 8 1 372 47
60,001 to 100,000 1 0 0 0 1 0 74 0
Total a4 10 246 197 290 207 2,104 1,217

* In some cases this reflects an estimate as at 31 March and may not be the actual amount paid.
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When a council employee's contract is
terminated, there are a number of costs that the
council can incur. The total cost in this table
includes;

e Enhanced pension benefits

This is a payment to compensate the pension
fund for both the employer and employee
contributions that will not be received due to
the early payment of benefits. It occurs where
the employee is able to immediately receive
any benefits they have built up on the pension
fund. The payment is calculated by an
independent actuary and is not made to the
individual.

e Redundancy payments
These are received by the employee and are
calculated in line with the relevant policies
agreed by the council.

During the year the council terminated the
contracts of a number of employees, incurring
liabilities of £2.1 million (2021/22: £1.22 million).
Of the £2.1 million, £0.5 million is enhanced
pension benefits and £1.6 million is payable to
the employees. The table shows the number of
exit packages and total cost to the council per
band.



Notes supporting the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Note 12 - Members’ allowances

2021/22 2022/23
£000 £000
1,342.5 | Allowances payable to Members 1,439.9
34.7 | Expenses payable to Members 49.1
1,377.2 | Total 1,489.0
Note 13 - Fees payable to auditors
The council incurred the following fees relating to external audit.
2021/22 2022/23
£000 £000
93.0 | Fees incurred with regard to external audit services provided by 103.1
Grant Thornton
7.0 | Fees incurred for certification work undertaken by Grant Thornton 8.5
10.0 | Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Grant 10.0
Thornton
68.4 | Fees payable in respect of additional prior year statutory audit work 53.0
(17.2) | Reimbursement from Public Sector Audit Appointment 0
161.2 | Total 174.6
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Notes supporting the movement in reserves statement

Note 14 - Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

This note details the adjustments made to the comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the council in the year, in accordance with proper
accounting practice, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Further information is provided in Note 31, which details the movements in reserves.

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations - 2022/23

Usable reserves Unusable
reserves
General Capital Capital Total
fund receipts grants
balance reserve unapplied
£m £m £m £m £m

Adjustments to the revenue resources

accordance with statutory requirements:

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in

Pensions costs (transferred to or from the pensions reserve) (96.0) 0 0 (96.0) 96.0
Financial instruments (transferred to the financial instruments adjustments account) 3.1 0 0 3.1 (3.1)
Council tax and NDR (transferred to or from the collection fund) 0.7 0 0 0.7 (0.7)
Holiday pay (transferred to the accumulated absences adjustment account) 4.0 0 0 4.0 (4.0)
Reversal of entries included in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in relation to capital (129.0) 0 37.0 (92.0) 92.0
expenditure (charged to the capital adjustment account)

Total adjustments to revenue resources (217.2) 0 37.0 (180.2) 180.2
Adjustments between revenue and capital resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 16.8 (16.8) 0 0 0
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) 34.0 0 0 34.0 (34.0)
Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new revenue expenditure (6.0) 6.0 0 0 0
Total adjustments between revenue and capital resources 44.8 (10.8) 0 34.0 (34.0)
Adjustments to capital resources

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 62.0 0 (62.0) 0 0
Total adjustments to capital resources 62.0 0 (62.0) 0 0
Total adjustments (110.4) (10.8) (25.0) (146.2) 146.2
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Notes supporting the movement in reserves statement

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations - 2021/22 restated

Usable reserves Unusable
reserves
General Capital Capital Total
fund receipts grants
balance reserve unapplied
£m £m £m £m £m

Adjustments to the revenue resources

accordance with statutory requirements:

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in

Pensions costs (transferred to or from the pensions reserve) ! (90.2) 0 0 (90.2) 90.2
Financial instruments (transferred to the financial instruments adjustments account) 3.4 0 0 3.4 (3.4)
Council tax and NDR (transferred to or from the collection fund) 20.9 0 0 20.9 (20.9)
Holiday pay (transferred to the accumulated absences adjustment account) 0.7 0 0 0.7 (0.7)
Reversal of entries included in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in relation to capital (81.8) 0 46.1 (35.7) 35.7
expenditure (charged to the capital adjustment account)

Total adjustments to revenue resources * (147.0) 0 46.1 (100.9) 100.9
Adjustments between revenue and capital resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 6.0 (6.0) 0 0 0
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) 28.3 0 0 28.3 (28.3)
Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new revenue expenditure (4.0) 4.0 0 0 0
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 0 0.1 0 0.1 (0.1)
Total adjustments between revenue and capital resources 30.3 (1.9) 0 28.4 (28.4)
Adjustments to capital resources

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 44.3 0 (44.3) 0 0
Total adjustments to capital resources 44.3 0 (44.3) 0 0
Total adjustments ? (72.4) (1.9) 1.8 (72.5) 72.5

1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Note 15 - Transfers to and from earmarked reserves

Balance at 31 | Transfers out Transfersin | Balance at 31 | Transfers out Transfers in | Balance at 31
March 2021 2021/22 2021/22 March 2022 2022/23 2022/23 March 2023
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
General fund (23.4) 0 0 (23.4) 0 0 (23.4)
Reserves held to deliver corporate priorities
Strategic investment reserve (4.8) ‘ 0.6 0 (4.2) ‘ 3.7 0 ‘ (0.5)
Reserves held to deliver organisational change
Downsizing reserve (5.7) 0.2 0 (5.5) 0.1 0 (5.4)
Risk management reserve (6.4) 2.0 0 (4.4) 1.2 (0.2) (3.3)
Transitional reserve (201.7) 24.7 (38.7) (215.7) 63.2 (14.2) (166.7)
School reserves
Individual school reserves (90.2) 10.8 (16.0) (95.4) 27.6 (8.4) (76.2)
Other school reserves (20.8) 0.8 (11.6) (31.6) 2.2 (3.2) (32.6)
Centrally managed schools maintenance reserve (5.8) 5.8 (5.2) (5.2) 5.2 (9.5) (9.5)
Reserves held to meet service priorities
Treasury management reserve (29.2) 13.8 (20.9) (36.3) 0 0 (36.3)
Business rates volatility (5.0) 0 0 (5.0) 0 0 (5.0)
Directorate reserves (98.2) 45.4 (82.4) (135.2) 35.4 (57.8) (157.6)
Election reserve (1.7) 0.4 0 (1.3) 0 (0.4) (1.7)
Total earmarked revenue and capital reserves (492.9) 104.5 (174.8) (563.2) 138.6 (93.6) (518.2)
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Reserves held to deliver corporate priorities

Strategic investment reserve

This reserve is held to support investment in areas such as economic
development and also supports delivery of priorities within the corporate
strategy.

Reserves held to deliver organisational change

Downsizing reserve

This reserve is set aside to support the council as it continues to deliver its
agreed savings and develops its strategy to reduce costs over the next four
years.

Risk management reserve

This reserve is intended to help the council manage risks to funding and
service delivery going forward.

Transitional reserve

This reserve is primarily in place to support forecast funding shortfalls in
future year budgets as outlined in the medium term financial strategy. The
reserve also contains funding to support service transformation as agreed
by Cabinet.
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Schools' reserves

Under the Education Reform Act, schools are given most of their budgets to
control. If a school does not spend its entire budget, the council holds it as
a reserve for them to use in the future. This reserve cannot be used for any
other purpose.

Reserves held to meet service priorities

These earmarked reserves consist of amounts carried forward for
specifically agreed projects within departments. Some of these reserves are
not only the funds of the county council and could relate to partners.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 16 - Capital expenditure and capital financing

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
1,109.4 | Opening capital financing requirement 1,142.2
Capital investment
126.8 | Property, plant and equipment 103.3
8.1 | Intangible assets 12.0
29.2 | Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 233
164.1 | Total capital investment 138.6
Sources of finance
(0.1) | Capital receipts 0
(97.7) | Government grants and other contributions (88.9)
Sums set aside from revenue:
(5.2) | Direct revenue contributions (3.9)
(6.5) | Write down of PFl liability (6.8)
(21.8) | Minimum revenue provision (MRP) for debt repayment (27.2)
1,142.2 | Closing capital financing requirement 1,154.0
Explanation of movement in year
39.3 | Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by Government 18.6
financial assistance)
(6.5) | Write down of PFI liability (6.8)
32.8 | Total movement 11.8
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The total amount of capital expenditure incurred
in the year is shown together with the resources
that have been used to finance it.

This statement incorporates details of the
movements in the capital financing requirement.
This is a measure of the capital expenditure
historically incurred by the council to be financed
in future years by charges to revenue.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 17 - Capital contractual commitments

At 31 March 2023, the council had not entered into any contracts for the construction or enhancement of property, plant and equipment in 2023/24 or future
years. (2021/22: £nil)

Note 18 - Property, plant and equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment valuations are detailed in the following tables:

Land and Vehicles, plant, Infrastructure Assets under Surplus assets Total
buildings furniture and construction
equipment
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Carried at historical cost 0.6 71.1 1,391.0 13.1 0 1,475.8
Valued at current value as at:
31 March 2023 1,010.3 0 0 0 20.8 1,031.1
31 March 2022 662.6 0 0 0 3.1 665.7
31 March 2021 446.3 0 0 0 0 446.3
Total cost or valuation 2,119.8 71.1 1,391.0 13.1 23.9 3,618.9
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Property, plant and equipment - movements in 2022/23

Land and Vehicles, | Assets under Surplus Total PFl assets
buildings plant, | construction assets included in
furniture, property
equipment
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2022 2,161.8 67.6 13.9 27.0 2,270.3 175.2
Additions 20.9 34 10.8 0.8 35.9 2.6
De-recognition — disposals (146.0) 0 0 (7.3) (153.3) 0
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve 59.4 0 0 1.5 60.9 124
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the surplus/deficit on 16.1 0 0 (2.0) 14.1 10.7

the provision of services
Assets reclassified 7.6 0.1 (11.6) 3.9 0 6.7
At 31 March 2023 2,119.8 71.1 13.1 23.9 2,227.9 207.6
At 1 April 2022 (98.1) (38.9) 0 (0.3) (137.3) (2.5)
Depreciation charge (45.7) (6.6) 0 (0.2) (52.5) (4.1)
Depreciation written out to revaluation reserve 50.0 0 0 0.2 50.2 2.4
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on provision of services 13.0 0 0 0 13.0 1.6
De-recognition 50.7 0 0 0.1 50.8 0
Reclassification 0.1 0 0 (0.1) 0 0
At 31 March 2023 (30.0) (45.5) 0 (0.3) (75.8) (2.6)
Net book value at 1 April 2022 2,063.7 28.7 139 26.7 2,133.0 172.7
Net book value at 31 March 2023 2,089.8 25.6 13.1 23.6 2,152.1 205.0
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Property, plant and equipment - movements in 2021/22

Land and Vehicles, | Assets under Surplus Total PFl assets
buildings plant, | construction assets included in
furniture, property
equipment
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2021 2,149.0 80.2 9.6 24.7 2,263.5 160.8
Additions 20.5 5.9 11.9 0.8 39.1 0
De-recognition — disposals (20.0) (19.4) 0 (1.4) (40.8) 0
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve 215 0 0 2.5 24.0 12.2
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the surplus/deficit on (13.0) 0 0 (2.5) (15.5) 2.2

the provision of services
Assets reclassified 3.8 0.9 (7.6) 2.9 0 0
At 31 March 2022 2,161.8 67.6 13.9 27.0 2,270.3 175.2
At 1 April 2021 (122.9) (53.1) 0 (0.3) (176.3) (5.1)
Depreciation charge (44.4) (5.2) 0 (0.1) (49.7) (3.7)
Depreciation written out to revaluation reserve 61.5 0 0 0.1 61.6 4.1
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on provision of services 6.6 0 0 0 6.6 2.2
De-recognition 1.1 194 0 0 20.5 0
At 31 March 2022 (98.1) (38.9) 0 (0.3) (137.3) (2.5)
Net book value at 1 April 2021 2,026.1 271 9.6 24.4 2,087.2 155.7
Net book value at 31 March 2022 2,063.7 28.7 13.9 26.7 2,133.0 172.7
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Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

1,098.1 | Infrastructure assets 1,136.7
2,133.0 | Other property, plant and equipment assets 2,152.1
3,231.1 | Total property, plant and equipment assets 3,288.8

Infrastructure assets movements on balances

In accordance with the Temporary Relief offered by the Update to the Code on infrastructure assets this
note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets
because historical reporting practices and resultant information deficits mean that this would not
faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial statements.

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

1,035.1 | Net book value at 1 April 1,098.1

87.7 | Additions 67.4

(24.7) | Depreciation (28.8)

1,098.1 | Net book value at 31 March 1,136.7
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Note 19 - School assets

Schools included on the council’s balance sheet

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

Number of | Value of land Number of | Value of land
schools | and buildings schools | and buildings
£m £m

244 795.7 | Community schools 242 852.4

11 127.5 | Foundation schools 10 134.5

257 637.5 | Voluntary aided schools 243 605.8

50 120.9 | Voluntary controlled schools 49 98.8

562 1,681.6 | Total 544 1,691.5

13 172.70 | Schools subject to PFI contracts 13 205.0
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The table shows the number and values
associated with each type of school included
within the council's balance sheet.

During the year 17 schools chose to take up
academy status. These are detailed in Note 39.

The council has 13 schools subject to PFI
contracts, the buildings for which are shown on
the council's balance sheet together with the
related liability.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 20 - Heritage assets

Paintings and | Other museum Manuscripts Total
furniture artefacts and books
£m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2023 3.0 11.1 14.6 28.7
At 31 March 2022 3.0 11.1 14.6 28.7

Heritage assets are those non-current assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical
or environmental qualities that are held principally for their contribution to knowledge or culture.

Paintings, furniture and other artefacts

The museum service contains around 140,000 items, which cover a variety of artefacts relevant to
Lancashire's heritage including pictures, furniture, toys, medals and archaeological objects.

Manuscripts and books

Lancashire also holds a libraries special collection that consists of publications held for their historical and
cultural importance.

Collections and their records can be accessed in a number of ways from virtual access to physical

examination of items on display in exhibitions. For any items held in store, a mutually convenient
appointment is needed to view them.
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Note 21 - Long term debtors

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

12.6 | Transferred Debt ! 12.0

26.9 | Finance Lease Debtor ? 25.7

39.5 | Total 37.7

1 Transferred debt is managed for other authorities as a result of various local government reorganisations, which is being repaid

over time.

2 Finance lease debtor is a long term debtor due to the council from Blackpool Council in respect of the new borrowing raised to pay

off the PFI liability with Lancashire County Council as the lessor (Note 30).

Note 22 - Short term debtors

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

29.5 | Council tax 37.8

1.3 | Non-domestic rates 0.7

43.0 | Other receivables 21.1

162.8 | Trade receivables 227.5

(8.2) | Less impairment allowance (9.5)

228.4 | Total 277.6
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Note 23 - Cash and cash equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

0.7 | Cash held by the council 1.3

49.2 | Bank current accounts 45.9

114.3 | Short term deposits under 3 months 73.6

164.2 | Total 120.8

Note 24 - Short term creditors and receipts in advance

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
(217.7) | Trade payables (241.8)
(27.1) | Council tax (41.5)
(5.6) | Non-domestic rates (1.4)
(60.8) | Other payables (54.5)
(311.2) | Total (339.2)
31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
(13.2) | Receipts in advance (11.8)
(0.2) | Government grants receipts in advance (revenue) (3.1)
(52.9) | Government grants receipts in advance (capital) (67.7)
(66.3) | Total (82.6)
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Note 25 — Provisions

Funds are set aside to provide for specific expenses for which the exact cost and timing are still uncertain.

Insurance provision

Balance at Additional Spending Unused Balance at

1 April provision | met from the amounts 31 March

2022 made provision reversed 2023

£m £m £m £m £m

Insurance provision (31.2) (13.5) 8.4 0 (36.3)
MMI provision (2.8) 0 0 0 (2.8)
Other long term provisions (1.6) (0.5) 0 0 (2.1)
Total long term provisions (35.6) (14.0) 8.4 0 (41.2)
Business rates appeals (6.1) (4.8) 0 6.1 (4.8)
Other short term provisions (9.1) (0.1) 4.0 0.3 (4.9)
Total short term provisions (15.2) (4.9) 4.0 6.4 (9.7)
Total provisions (50.8) (18.9) 124 6.4 (50.9)
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Funds are set aside to cover liability claims in
respect of employer's liability, public liability or
buildings insurance, which are below the
insurance excess and the self-insured limits.

Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

Provision in respect of MMI for costs due to be
paid under the Scheme of Arrangement for
managing the outstanding liabilities resulting
from claims being made.

Business rates appeals

This provision accounts for the 9% share of the
business rates appeals impact estimated by the
12 Lancashire Districts.

Early retirement provision

This provision is for future voluntary redundancy
costs.

Other provisions

All other provisions are individually insignificant.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 26 - Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract, which creates a financial asset for one party and a financial liability for another party. Non-exchange transactions such
as those relating to taxes and government grants do not give rise to financial instruments. The term covers both financial assets such as bank deposits,
investments and loans by the council and amounts receivable and financial liabilities including amounts borrowed by the council and amounts payable.
Financial instruments are classified based on the council's business model for holding the instrument and their cash flow characteristics.

Full disclosure notes in respect of financial instruments are provided in the technical annex.

The disclosures include:

e Gains and losses on financial instruments;
e Fair value of assets and liabilities;
e The nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.

Financial assets

Financial assets should be classified and measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss as they arise (FVPL), unless specific
criteria are met for classifying and measuring the asset at either amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The financial assets at fair value through profit and loss relate to LOBO loan investments with other local authorities. Further information is included in the
forward contract agreement section of the technical annex.

Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, and the council’s business model is to collect those cash flows) comprising:

e Cashin hand;

e Bank current account;

e Loans to other local authorities;

e Loans to companies;

e lease receivables, and

e Trade receivables for goods and services provided.
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Notes supporting the balance sheet

Fair value through other comprehensive income (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, and the council’s business model is to both
collect those cash flows and sell the instrument; and equity investments that the council has elected into this category). These assets are measured and carried
at fair value with gains and losses due to changes in fair value charged to the financial instruments revaluation reserve until the asset is disposed of and the
gain or loss is charged to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

These assets comprise bonds issued by banks, building societies and the UK government.

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet
their contractual commitments to the council.

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
Long term Short term Total | Category Long term Short term Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
24.5 21.0 45.5 | Amortised cost 19.5 5.1 24.6
580.9 30.9 611.8 | Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 394.0 49.7 443.7
0 80.5 80.5 | Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 0 71.0 71.0
605.4 132.4 737.8 | Total investments 413.5 125.8 539.3
0 164.2 164.2 | Cash and cash equivalents 0 120.8 120.8
26.9 154.6 181.5 | Debtors * 25.7 199.9 225.6
632.3 451.2 1,083.5 | Total financial assets 439.2 446.5 885.7

# The debtors figure stated is lower than the debtors shown on the balance sheet because it excludes the following amounts which do not meet the definition of a financial
asset — payments in advance and non-exchange transactions

12.6 73.8 86.4 | Debtors which do not meet the definition of a financial instrument 12.0 77.7 89.7

39.5 228.4 267.9 | Balance sheet total 37.7 277.6 315.3
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Financial liabilities

The majority of the council’s financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and comprise:

e Short term loans from other local authorities;

e Long term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and other local authorities;
e Private finance initiative contracts;

e Trade payables for goods and services received.

The financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss relate to the UK government bonds that the council is committed to purchase at a future date. Further
information is included in the forward contract agreement section of the technical annex.

The financial liabilities disclosed in the balance sheet are analysed across the following categories:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

Long term Short term Total | Category Long term Short term Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

(881.0) (325.1) (1,206.1) | Financial liabilities at amortised cost (870.8) (310.4) (1,181.2)

0 (64.7) (64.7) | Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 0 (19.6) (19.6)

(1.3) (246.5) (247.8) | Creditors* (1.3) (277.9) (279.2)

(126.2) (6.8) (133.0) | Other financial liabilities (PFI) at amortised cost (118.6) (7.6) (126.2)

(1,008.5) (643.1) (1,651.6) | Total financial liabilities (990.7) (615.5) (1,606.2)

#The creditors figure stated is lower than the creditors shown on the balance sheet because it excludes the following amounts which do not meet the definition of a financial
liability — receipts in advance and non-exchange transactions

0 (64.6) (64.6) | Creditors which do not meet the definition of a financial instrument 0 (61.3) (61.3)

(1.3) (311.2) (312.5) | Balance sheet total (1.3) (339.2) (340.5)
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Note 27 — Other current liabilities

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£m £m

(6.8) | PFI Liability (7.6)

(64.7) | Short positions in investments (19.6)

(71.5) | Total (27.2)

Note 28 — Other long term liabilities

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
restated

£m £m

(1,108.1) | Pension liability * (75.1)

(126.2) | PFI liability (118.6)

(0.1) | Other long term liabilities 0

(1,234.4) | Total ! (193.7)

1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Note 29 - Private finance initiative (PFl)

The council has the following PFI contracts:

Fleetwood High School

The council signed a PFl contract with Fleetwood PPP Limited in 2001 to build
and service a new single site school. The arrangement runs from September
2002 to August 2027.

Building schools for the future (BSF)

As part of wave 1 of the BSF scheme, secondary schools in Burnley and part of
Pendle have been rebuilt in four separate phases under contract with Catalyst
Education (Lancashire) Limited. Each delivers a school building (or a number
of school buildings) and the provision of on-going services including grounds
maintenance, caretaking and building maintenance.

The contractor took on the obligations to construct the schools and to
maintain them in a minimum acceptable condition. At the end of the contract
period, the buildings will revert to the council for nil consideration. The
significant risks that the council is exposed to under these PFl schemes are
changes in inflation and changes in demand for the services. There is provision
within the agreements for the termination of the contracts, under certain
conditions, either by the council or by the contractor. This may be in the form
of voluntary termination by the council, termination by the contractor on
council default, or termination by the council on contractor default.
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Compensation payments are payable upon termination and the calculation of
these is determined in the contracts.

For each contract, the council makes an agreed payment each year, which is
increased by inflation and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet the
agreed availability and performance standards in any year but is otherwise
fixed. An estimate of 12.92% is made for future inflation within the model.

Each school is made available for use in the following priority order:

(i) provision of education services;
(ii) community use, and
(iii) third party use.

The contractor may enter into arrangements for third party use, subject to
satisfying criteria laid out in the contract, and may be entitled to charge for
such use. An income sharing arrangement is in place regarding any income
received for third party use.

The assets used to provide services at the schools are recognised on the
council’s balance sheet. Movements in their value over the year are detailed
in the analysis of the movement on the property, plant and equipment balance
in Note 18.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Fleetwood High School

Payment for Repayment of | Interest charges | Total payments

services liability due

£m £m £m £m

Payment in 2023/24 0.3 0.8 0.9 2.0
Payment within 2 to 5 years 1.9 3.2 2.7 7.8
Total 2.2 4.0 3.6 9.8

Building schools for the future (BSF)

Payment for Repayment of | Interest charges | Total payments

services liability due

£m £m £m £m

Payment in 2023/24 14.4 6.8 12.3 33,5
Payment within 2 to 5 years 83.5 32.0 42.9 158.4
Payment within 6 to 10 years 157.1 60.8 62.5 280.4
Payment within 11 to 15 years 60.5 22.6 19.5 102.6
Total 315.5 122.2 137.2 574.9

Outstanding PFlI liability

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

(139.5) | Balance outstanding at start of year (133.0)

6.5 | Payments during the year 6.8

(133.0) | Balance outstanding at year end (126.2)
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The tables show payments due to be made under
the PFI contracts. The payments can be reduced
if the contractor fails to meet availability or
performance standards.

The payments made to the contractor are
described as unitary payments; they have been
calculated to compensate the contractor for the
fair value of the services they provide, the capital
expenditure incurred, and interest payable whilst
the capital expenditure remains to be
reimbursed.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 30 - Leases

Council as lessor — finance leases

Finance lease debtor (net present value of minimum lease payments)

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m

1.2 | Current 1.2

26.9 | Non-current 25.7

11.3 | Unearned finance income 10.2

39.4 | Gross investment in the finance lease 37.1

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
Gross Minimum Gross Minimum
investment lease investment lease
payments payments
£m £m £m £m
2.2 1.2 | Not later than one year 2.2 1.2
9.0 5.1 | Later than one year and not later than 5 years 9.0 5.3
28.2 21.8 | Later than 5 years 25.9 20.4
39.4 28.1 | Total 37.1 26.9
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Lancashire County Council has recognised a
finance lease debtor for the borrowing raised on
behalf of Blackpool Council to settle the PFI
liability in respect of the waste PFl scheme. The
assets underpinning the finance lease are the
land and buildings comprising the waste plants.

The council has a gross investment in the lease,
made up of minimum lease payments expected to
be received over the remaining term. The
minimum lease payments comprise settlement of
the long term debtor for the interest in the
property acquired by the lessee, and finance
income earned by the council whilst the debtor
remains outstanding.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Note 31 - Reserves

Usable reserves

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
(23.4) | General fund (23.4)
(407.6) | Earmarked reserves (386.0)
(132.2) | School reserves (108.8)
(563.2) | Total earmarked reserves (518.2)
(140.3) | Capital grants unapplied reserve (165.3)
(10.3) | Capital receipts reserve (21.1)
(713.8) | Total usable reserves (704.6)

Unusable reserves

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

restated
£m £m
41.3 | Financial instruments adjustment account 38.2
101.7 | Financial instruments revaluation reserve 283.9
(1,075.4) | Revaluation reserve (1,104.7)
(1,059.5) | Capital adjustment account (1,083.2)
1,149.9 | Pensions reserve ! (615.8)
(0.6) | Collection fund adjustment account (1.4)
28.4 | Accumulated absences adjustment account 24.4
(814.2) | Total * (2,458.6)

1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Financial instruments adjustment account

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
44.7 | Balance at 1 April 41.3
(3.4) | Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be (3.1)

charged against general fund balance
41.3 | Balance at 31 March 38.2

Financial instruments revaluation reserve
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
64.2 | Balance at 1 April 101.7
(45.7) | Amounts recycled to the surplus/deficit on the provision of services (0.4)
83.2 | Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the surplus/deficit 182.6
on the provision of services

101.7 | Balance at 31 March 283.9
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The financial instruments adjustment account
absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for income
and expenses relating to certain financial
instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting
from gains per statutory provisions.

The financial instruments revaluation reserve
contains the gains or losses arising from changes
in the value of investments that are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income.



Notes supporting the balance sheet

Revaluation reserve

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(1,024.9) | Balance at 1 April (1,075.4)
(128.9) | Upward revaluation of assets (206.4)
43.3 | Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to 95.3
the surplus/deficit on the provision of services
(85.6) | (Surplus) or deficit on the revaluation of non-current assets not posted (111.1)
to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services
22.6 | Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 23.7
depreciation
12.5 | Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 58.1
35.1 | Amount written off to the capital adjustment account 81.8
(1,075.4) | Balance at 31 March (1,104.7)
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The revaluation reserve contains the gains made
by the council arising from increases in the value
of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. The balance is reduced when
assets with accumulated gains are:

e Revalued downwards or impaired and the
gains are lost;

e Used in the provision of services and the
gains are consumed through depreciation
or;

e Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The revaluation reserve contains only revaluation
gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date
that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains
arising before that date are consolidated into the
balance on the capital adjustment account.
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Capital adjustment account

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(1,031.6) | Balance at 1 April (1,059.5)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure charged to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement
74.4 | Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 81.3
8.9 | Revaluation losses/(gains) on property, plant and equipment including assets held (27.1)
for sale
3.3 | Amortisation of intangible assets 49
29.2 | Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 233
22.7 | Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss 102.5
on disposal to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
(6.5) | Write down of PFI liability (6.8)
(35.1) | Adjusting amount written out of the revaluation reserve (81.8)
(934.7) | Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year (963.2)
Capital financing applied in the year
(99.5) | Capital grants and contributions credited to the comprehensive income and (63.9)
expenditure statement
1.8 | Application of capital grants to capital financing from the capital grants unapplied (25.0)
account
(0.1) | Application of capital receipts to capital financing from the capital receipts reserve 0
(21.8) | Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the (27.2)
general fund
(5.2) | Capital expenditure charged against the general fund (3.9)
(124.8) (120.0)
(1,059.5) | Balance at 31 March (1,083.2)
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The capital adjustment account absorbs the
timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the
consumption of non-current assets and for
financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory
provisions. The account is debited with the
cost of acquisition, construction or
enhancement as depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are charged to the
comprehensive income and expenditure
statement (with reconciling postings from the
revaluation reserve to convert fair value
figures to a historical cost basis). The account
is credited with the amounts set aside by the
council as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction or enhancement.

The account also contains revaluation gains
accumulated on property, plant and
equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that
the revaluation reserve was created to hold
such gains.
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Pensions reserve

The pensions reserve absorbs the timing

2021/22 2022/23

/ / differences  arising from the different

restated .
arrangements for accounting for  post-
(i) . i) employment benefits and for funding benefits in
1,598.1 | Balance at 1 April 1,149.9 accordance with statutory provisions. The council
(538.4) | Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (1,861.7) accounts for post-employment benefits in the
173.5 | Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to 183.2 comprehensive income and expenditure
the surplus on the provision of services in the comprehensive income and statement as the benefits are earned by

H 1

expenditure statement employees accruing years of service, updating the
(83.3) | Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners (87.2) liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
payable in the year assumptions and investment returns on any
1,149.9 | Balance at 31 March * (615.8) resources set aside to meet the costs. However,
1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions. statutory arrangements require benefits earned to

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments. be financed, as the council makes employer's

contributions to pension funds or eventually pay
any pensions for which it is directly responsible.

The credit balance on the pensions reserve,
therefore, shows a surplus in the benefits earned
by past and current employees and the resources
the council has set aside to meet them.
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Accumulated absences adjustment account

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
29.1 | Balance at 1 April 28.4
(29.1) | Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding (28.4)
year
28.4 | Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 24.4
(0.7) | Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the comprehensive (4.0)
income and expenditure statement on an accruals basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
28.4 | Balance at 31 March 24.4
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The accumulated absences adjustment account
absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the general fund balance from accruing for
annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31
March. Statutory arrangements require that the
impact on the general fund balance is neutralised
by transfers to or from the account.



Notes supporting the cash flow statement

Note 32 - Cash flows from operating activities

The net surplus or deficit on the provision of services in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement has been subject to the following adjustments in order to arrive at the net cash flows from
operating activities:

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(35.3) | Interest received (39.6)
37.7 | Interest paid 43.6

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the

following non-cash movements:

2021/22 2022/23
restated

£m £m

74.4 | Depreciation 81.3

8.9 | Impairment and downward/(upward) valuations (27.1)

3.3 | Amortisation of intangible assets 4.9

(2.9) | Increase/(decrease) in impairment for bad debts (11.2)

14.2 | Increase/(decrease) in creditors 123.5

(5.3) | (Increase)/decrease in debtors (99.9)

(1.2) | (Increase)/decrease in inventories 0.3

130.4 | Movement in pension liability ! 137.8

22.7 | Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 102.5

4.1 | Other non-cash items charged to the surplus or deficit on the (14.3)

provision of services
248.6 | Total * 297.8

1 The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the
following items that are investing and financing activities:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(28.5) | Proceeds from short term (not considered to be cash equivalents) (1.2)
and long term investments (includes investments in associates, joint
ventures and subsidiaries)
(6.0) | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, (16.8)
investment property and intangible assets
(95.9) | Capital grants credited to the surplus on the provision of services (123.9)
(130.4) | Total (131.8)
Note 33 - Cash flows from investing activities
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(134.9) | Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property (115.3)
and intangible assets
(5,885.8) | Purchase of short term and long term investments (2,980.2)
6.0 | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 16.8
investment property and intangible assets
5,900.0 | Proceeds from the sale of short term and long term investments 2,963.0
101.8 | Other capital grants and receipts from investing activities 115.9
(12.9) | Net cash flows from investing activities 0.2
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Note 34 - Cash flows from financing activities

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

1,022.3 | Cash receipts from short term and long term borrowing 1,036.6

(20.8) | Appropriate to/from Collection Fund Adjustment Account (0.6)

(1,201.1) | Repayment of short term and long term borrowing (1,065.2)

0 | Other payments for financing activities (18.2)

(6.5) | Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities (6.8)
relating to finance leases and on balance sheet PFI contracts

(206.1) | Net cash flows from financing activities (54.2)

Note 35 - Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

1 April 2022 Financing cash flows Non-cash changes 31 March 2023

Acquisitions Repayments
£m £m £m £m £m
Long term borrowing 881.0 197.6 (199.5) (8.3) 870.8
Short term borrowing * 325.1 839.0 (865.7) 12.0 310.4
PFl liabilities * 133.0 0 (6.8) 0 126.2
Total 1,339.1 1,036.6 (1,072.0) 3.7 1,307.4
1 April 2021 Financing cash flows Non-cash changes 31 March 2022

Acquisitions Repayments
£m £m £m £m £m
Long term borrowing 897.3 249.6 (260.7) (5.2) 881.0
Short term borrowing * 489.0 772.7 (940.4) 3.8 325.1
PFI liabilities * 139.5 0 (6.5) 0 133.0
Total 1,525.8 1,022.3 (1,207.6) (1.4) 1,339.1

* The short term element of PFl liabilities is shown within PFI liabilities rather than short term borrowing.
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Other notes to the financial statements

Note 36 - Related party transactions

The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties -
bodies and individuals that have the potential to control or influence the
council or to be controlled or influenced by the council. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council might
have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
council.

Central government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the
council, asit is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which
the council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the council has with
other parties (e.g. council tax). Grant income from government departments
is shown in Note 9.

Other public bodies (subject to common control by central
government)

The council's material transactions with other public bodies relate primarily to
precepts received from other local councils, the summary of which is shown
in Note 8 - Taxation and Non Specific Grants.

The council is the host to pooled budget arrangements with several Clinical

Commissioning Groups, for the Better Care Fund and for Learning
Disabilities. Transactions and balances for both funds are detailed in Note 37.
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Chief officers

Officers are appointed by the council to boards or committees of various
organisations to act on behalf of the council in their official capacities. All
officers are required to declare any relevant interests and those of their family
members.

For 2022/23, there are no transactions for services to organisations in which
chief officers have declared interests.

Members

Members of the council have direct control over the council’s financial and
operating policies. Members are also appointed by the council to boards or
committees of various organisations to act on behalf of the council in their
official capacities. The total of Members’ allowances paid is shown in Note
12. Details of Members' interests are recorded in a formal Register of Interest,
which is open to public inspection.

For 2022/23, there are no material transactions for services to organisations
in which Members have declared interests.



Other notes to the financial statements

Lancashire County Pension Fund

The Lancashire County Pension Fund is
administered by Lancashire County Council.

The council incurred costs of £1.0 million in relation
to the administration of the fund. This includes a
proportion of relevant officers' salaries in respect
of time allocated to pension and investment issues.
The council was subsequently reimbursed by the
fund for these expenses.

The council is also the single largest employer of
the members of the pension fund and contributed
£73.1 million to the fund in 2022/23.

Part of the pension fund cash holdings are invested
on the money markets by the treasury
management operations of Lancashire County
Council.

The council's Chief Executive is responsible for the
preparation and sign off of the Lancashire County
Pension Fund accounts. For this service, the
pension fund is recharged an element (2%) of the
Chief Executive's salary.
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2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

2.3 | Payments made during the year to Lancashire County Pension Fund 8.2

(1.0) | Income received during the year from Lancashire County Pension Fund (1.0)

0.8 | Amounts owed at the year end from Lancashire County Pension Fund 0.8

(2.3) | Amounts owed at the year end to Lancashire County Pension Fund (10.5)




Other notes to the financial statements

Cheshire West and Chester Council

The council paid Cheshire West and Chester
Council for the provision of key management
personnel.

Tile Hill Interim and Executive Limited

The council paid Tile Hill Interim and Executive
Limited for the provision of key management
personnel.

There were also related party transactions totalling
£742,762 to five organisations, which whilst not
material in amount for the county council, are
potentially material for the related parties.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

0 | Payments made during the year to Cheshire West and Chester Council 0.1
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

0 | Payments made during the year to Tile Hill Interim and Executive Limited 0.1
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Interests in companies and other entities

Lancashire County Council conducts activities through a variety of undertakings, either through ultimate control of or in partnership with other organisations.

The interests are detailed in the table below:

Company

Interest | Relationship

Lancashire County Developments Limited

100% | Subsidiary

Lancashire Renewables Limited

87.5% | Subsidiary

Marketing Lancashire Limited

100% | Subsidiary

Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Limited

33% | Joint venture (Dormant company)

Active Lancashire Limited

100% | Subsidiary

Local Pensions Partnership Limited

50% | Joint venture

Lancashire Partnership Against Crime Limited

25% | Associate

Lancashire Environmental Fund Limited

25% | Associate

Lancashire UDF Limited

100% | Subsidiary (Dormant company)

Lancashire UDF - SPV2 Limited

100% | Subsidiary (Dormant company)

Inclusion in the Lancashire County Council Group is dependent upon the extent of the council’s interest and control over the entity. Where the value of the
interest is considered immaterial, the company is not consolidated in the group accounts.

The transactions of Lancashire County Developments Limited are included within the council's group accounts.

Details of transactions with the companies are shown in the following tables.
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Lancashire Renewables Limited

2021/22 2022/23
Lancashire Renewables Limited is a subsidiary of £m £m
Lancashlre County Council and man?ge.|5. t.he two 28.8 | Payments made during the year to Lancashire Renewables Limited 30.7
strategic waste management facilities at (5.5) | Income received during the year from Lancashire Renewables Limited (7.8)
Leyland and Thornton. - —
1.3 | Amounts owed at the year end from Lancashire Renewables Limited 0.3
(1.2) | Amounts owed at the year end to Lancashire Renewables Limited (1.2)
0 | Payments made in advance to Lancashire Renewables Limited 0.3
Marketing Lancashire Limited
_ S o 2021/22 2022/23
Marketing Lancashire Limited is a destination tm tm
management organisation for Lancashire. Its - - —
. . . .. 0.5 | Payments made during the year to Marketing Lancashire Limited 0.6
aims include growing the visitor economy and
developing the destination as a place to visit,
work and invest in.
Active Lancashire Limited
2021/22 2022/23
Active Lancashire Limited is a county sport £m £m
partnership and charity operating in the 0 | Payments made during the year to Active Lancashire Limited 0.1
Lancashire and South Cumbria public health
regions.
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Lancashire Environmental Fund

Limited 2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

Lancashlrt? Environmental Fund L|m|.ted IS a 1.6 | Payments made during the year to Lancashire Environmental Fund 0.1
partnership between SUEZ Recycling and Limited

Recovery UK Ltd, Lancashire County Council,
The Wildlife Trust for Lancashire, Manchester
and North Merseyside and Community Futures.
The Fund distributes grants support to
community and environmental projects in
Lancashire.

Local Pensions Partnership Limited

. . . - 2021/22 2022/23
Lancashire County Council entered into a joint /£ /£
venture with the London Pensions Fund m m

0.1 | Payments made during the year to Local Pensions Partnership Limited 0.2

Authority for the pooling of the executive

functions of the two organisations together with (0.2) | Income received during the year from Local Pensions Partnership Limited

the investment assets of the two funds. 0.5 | Amounts owed at the year end from Local Pensions Partnership Limited 0

Lancashire Pensions Partnership operates the (0.4) | Amounts owed at the year end to Local Pensions Partnership Limited 0

two pension funds under legal agreements with
the administering authorities in line with the
strategies and policies agreed by the relevant
governing bodies. In the case of the Lancashire
County Pension Fund, the Pension Fund
Committee.
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Lancashire County Developments 2021/22 2022/23
.. £m £
Limited : m
- 7.8 | Payments made during the year to LCDL 0.7
Lancashire County Developments Limited (2.8) | Income received during the year from LCDL (3.9)
(LCDL) is an economic development agency for 0.1 | Amounts owed at the year end from LCDL 2.1
the County. It is classed as a subsidiary of the (0.3) | Amounts owed at the year end to LCDL (0.2)

county council.
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Note 37 - Pooled budgets

Better care fund

2021/22 2022/23
£m | Funding provided to the pooled budget £m
(16.7) | Lancashire County Council (Disabled facilities grant) (16.7)
(31.2) | NHS East Lancashire CCG (33.0)
(15.4) | NHS Greater Preston CCG (17.0)
(14.0) | NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG (14.9)
(15.2) | NHS Fylde and Wyre CCG (16.3)
(12.1) | NHS Morecambe Bay CCG (12.3)
(8.8) | NHS West Lancashire CCG (9.5)
(113.4) | Total (119.7)
Expenditure met from the pooled budget
30.6 | Lancashire County Council (Social care) 20.0
21.5 | NHS East Lancashire CCG 26.7
10.5 | NHS Greater Preston CCG 13.7
9.9 | NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG 124
10.1 | NHS Fylde and Wyre CCG 12.8
8.2 | NHS Morecambe Bay CCG 9.9
5.9 | NHS West Lancashire CCG 7.5
16.7 | Lancashire County Council (Disabled facilities grant) 16.7
113.4 | Total 119.7
0 | Net surplus/(deficit) arising on the pooled budget during the year 0
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Highlighted as a key element of public service
reform, the better care fund (BCF) has a primary
aim to drive closer integration and improve
outcomes for patients, service users and carers.
The fund is a partnership arrangement whereby
clinical commissioning groups and the council
contribute an agreed level of resource into a
single pooled budget that is then used to
commission or deliver health and social care
services.

The BCF plan sets out the council and its partners'
vision to deliver an integrated health and social
care system to reduce the demand on acute
hospital and care home provision in favour of
sustainable integrated neighbourhood health and
social care. The regulations require that one of
the partners is nominated as the host of the
pooled budget and this body is then responsible
for the budget’s overall accounts and audit. It has
been agreed that Lancashire County Council will
act as the host for the BCF agreement in
Lancashire.
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Pooled budget for learning disabilities

2021/22 2022/23

£m | Funding provided to the pooled budget £m

(113.7) | Lancashire County Council (113.7)

0 | NHS Lancashire & South Cumbria Integrated Care Board (9.3)

(1.2) | NHS Morecambe Bay CCG 0

(1.6) | NHS Fylde and Wyre CCG 0

(0.2) | NHS Blackpool CCG 0

(2.1) | NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG 0

(1.1) | NHS Greater Preston — central pool 0

(1.1) | NHS West Lancashire CCG 0

(1.9) | NHS East Lancashire CCG 0

(0.5) | Other (0.5)

(123.4) | Total (123.5)
Expenditure met from the pooled budget

148.2 | Lancashire County Council 152.8

0 | NHS Lancashire & South Cumbria Integrated Care Board 12.6

1.7 | NHS Morecambe Bay CCG 0

2.3 | NHS Fylde and Wyre CCG 0

0.3 | NHS Blackpool CCG 0

0.1 | NHS Greater Preston CCG 0

3.0 | NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG 0

1.6 | NHS Greater Preston — central pool 0

1.6 | NHS West Lancashire CCG 0

1.7 | NHS East Lancashire CCG 0

160.5 | Total 165.4

37.1 | Net (surplus)/deficit arising on the pooled budget during the year 41.9

34.1 | Council share of the net (surplus)/deficit 38.6
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The council is the host partner of the pooled
funds in respect of learning disability services and
the better care fund. The arrangements are made
in accordance with Section 75 of the National
Health Service Act 2006 and allows budgets to be
pooled between authorities and health and social
care organisations.

The council has a pooled budget arrangement
with the Lancashire Clinical Commissioning
Groups for the provision of support for people
with learning disabilities. Any surplus or deficit is
shared between the partners to the pool. The
pooled budget is hosted by Lancashire County
Council on behalf of the partners in line with the
agreement.

On 1 July 2022, integrated care systems (ICSs)
became legally established through the Health
and Care Act 2022, and CCGs were closed down.

ICSs are partnerships of organisations that come
together to plan and pay for health and care
services to improve the lives of people who live
and work in their area.

Each integrated care system has two statutory
elements, an Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)
and Integrated Care Board (ICB).
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Note 38 — Agency services

Lancashire Local Enterprise Partnership

The council acts as accountable body for the Lancashire Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) and processes transactions through its financial ledger
using the council's procedures and processes as set out in the LEP assurance
framework. The LEP is a collaboration of leaders from local businesses,
universities and local councils, who direct economic growth and drive job
creation. The council has no entitlement to retain any funds or interest
generated from funds or to direct the use of these funds.

Where the council is merely an agent for the expenditure, these
transactions are not reflected within the council's accounts. However,
where the council is the project sponsor for a scheme then expenditure
incurred will be recognised within the council's financial statements.

Income
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(42.6) | City deal * (44.1)
(17.0) | Getting building fund 0
(0.8) | LEP core activity funding (1.1)
(1.0) | LEP additional projects (1.6)
(0.3) | Growth hub (0.3)
(61.7) | Total income (47.1)

* The City deal total includes contributions of £3.8 million from Lancashire County Council in 2022/23.
(2021/22: £3.8 million)
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Expenditure

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

26.3 | Growth deal 1.1
62.3 | City deal 44.1
13.8 | Get building fund 13.7

1.0 | LEP core activity funding 0.9

1.0 | LEP additional projects 1.6

0.3 | Growth hub 0.3
104.7 | Total expenditure 61.7

In 2022/23, expenditure totalling £43.7 million was spent on LCC schemes. (2021/22: £57.6 million)

Growing places

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
4.1 | Payments out 1.8
(8.6) | Repayments (2.2)
(0.2) | Loan interest (0.2)
(4.7) | Total (0.5)
Reserves
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(82.6) | Balance at 1 April (44.4)
(61.7) | Income (47.1)
104.7 | Expenditure 61.7
(4.7) | Growing places (0.5)
(0.1) | Employment liabilities (0.1)
(44.4) | Balance at 31 March (30.4)
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Note 39 — Significant items of income and expense

Transfers to academy status

School Value
When a maintained school converts to academy status, the school’s £m
buildings held on the council’s balance sheet are treated as a disposal. The Ormskirk School 24.4
carrying value of the asset is written off to financing and investment income St Mary Magdalene's RC Primary School 1.9
and expenditure in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement. Rhyddings School 7.9
Any revaluation gains accgmulaiced for the asset in the revaluation reserve Castle View Primary School 16
are transferred to the capital adjustment account. St Mary's Catholic Primary School, Great Eccleston 09
During the year, 17 schools transferred to academy status. The value of the St Wulstan's and St Edmund's Catholic Primary School 3.8
disposals totalled £74.9 million. Christ the King RC Primary School, Burnley 2.1
Sacred Heart RC Primary School, Colne 2.4
St Teresa's RC Primary School, Preston 1.4
The Blessed Sacrament Catholic Primary School, Preston 2.6
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School, Preston 2.1
St Bernard's Catholic Primary School, Preston 2.0
St Augustine's Catholic Primary School, Preston 2.1
St Clare's Catholic Primary School, Preston 2.2
Our Lady and St Edward's Catholic Primary School 2.2
St Augustine's Roman Catholic High School, Billington 12.7
Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School, Thornton Cleveleys 2.6
Total 74.9
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Note 40 — Events after the reporting period

The statement of accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Executive
on 31 August 2023. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in
the financial statements or notes.

Pension fund payment

On 21 April 2023, the Council took advantage of the option provided by the
pension fund to make a one off payment in advance to cover its future
service and deficit recovery payments for the three years 2023/24 to
2025/26. The value of the payment totalled £140.7 million and has the
purpose of generating a cash saving to the council.

Transfers to academy status

Knuzden St Oswald's Church of England Primary School converted to
academy status on 1 April 2023. St John Southworth RC Primary School,
Nelson converted to academy status on 1 July 2023. Their values included
in the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 are shown below.

School Value

£m
Knuzden St Oswald's Church of England Primary School 2.5
St John Southworth RC Primary School 2.0
Total 4.5
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Note 41 — Significant accounting policies
General principles

Basis of preparation

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the county council to
prepare an annual statement of accounts in accordance with proper
accounting practices, mainly the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, under the assumption
that the county council will continue in existence for the foreseeable future.
The accounting convention adopted is principally historical cost modified for
the valuation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the
date when the statement of accounts is authorised for issue.

Where an event occurring after the balance sheet date provides evidence of

conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, the amounts recognised
in the statement of accounts are adjusted.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

Where an event that occurs after the balance sheet date is indicative of
conditions that arose after the balance sheet date, the amounts recognised
in the statement of accounts are not adjusted, but where this would have a
material effect, it is disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected
in the statement of accounts.

Group accounts

The county council has a material interest in a subsidiary company, which
has been consolidated into the county council’s group accounts on a line-
by-line basis, after eliminating intra-group transactions.

An entity could be material but still not consolidated if all of its business is
with the county council and eliminated on consolidation — i.e. the
consolidation would mean that the group accounts are not materially
different to the single entity accounts.

Pooled budgets

The county council is the host partner of the pooled funds in respect of
learning disability services, Better Care Fund and integrated home response
and falls lifting service. The arrangements are made in accordance with
Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and allows budgets to be
pooled between authorities and health and social care organisations.

The arrangements are accounted for as joint operations and, therefore, the
county council accounts for its share of the funds' assets, liabilities,
expenditure and income.



Other notes to the financial statements

Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies,
estimates and errors

Prior period adjustments are made where there are material adjustments
applicable to prior years arising from a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error.

Where a change to accounting policies is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected
retrospectively, by amending opening balances and comparative amounts
for the prior period.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively (i.e. in the

current and future years affected by the change) and do not give rise to a
prior period adjustment.

Accounting policies for income

Recognition of income

Income is accounted for in the financial year in which the activity it relates
to takes place, which may not be the same year in which cash payments are
received. This means that revenue from the sale of goods or the provision
of services is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred
to the service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations of
the contract.
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Interest receivable on investments is accounted for as income on the basis
of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Where income has been recognised but cash has not been received, a
debtor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.

Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Council tax and non-domestic rates income

Both council tax and non-domestic rates are collected by the 12 Lancashire
district councils (billing authorities) on behalf of the county council.

The council tax and non-domestic rates income is accounted for on an
accruals basis and included in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement within taxation and non-specific grant income. However, the
amount to be reflected in the general fund is determined by regulation,
therefore, there is an adjustment for the difference between the accrued
income and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the general
fund made through the movement in reserves statement and the collection
fund adjustment account.

The year-end balance sheet includes the council's share of debtors (arrears
and collection fund surpluses), creditors (prepayments, overpayments and
collection fund deficits) and provisions (non-domestic rates appeals).

Lancashire has a non-domestic rates pool which was established on 1 April
2016. It comprises the county council and most but not all of the local
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authorities in Lancashire, with Ribble Valley Borough Council designated as
lead authority. Lancashire County Council will receive 10% of the overall
retained levy with each district within the pool retaining 90% of their levy.
In the Lancashire non-domestic rates pool each council bears its own risk
and takes its own reward under the pool agreement.

The net retained levy for the county council is shown within non-domestic

rates retention income in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement.

Government grants and other contributions

Government grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised
when there is reasonable assurance that the county council will comply with
the conditions attached to the payments, and the grants or contributions
will be received.

Revenue grants are recognised in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement when the conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have been satisfied.

At the end of the year if any grant monies are unspent, this is transferred to
an earmarked reserve. When the grant is applied, an amount equal to the
expenditure is transferred back from the earmarked reserve to the general
fund.

Where conditions attached to the grants or contributions have not been
met, monies received to date are carried in the balance sheet as receipts in
advance and credited to the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement when the conditions are satisfied.
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Capital grants are credited to the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement when any relevant conditions have been satisfied. This income
is then reversed out of the general fund balance in the movement in
reserves statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the capital grants unapplied reserve. Where it
has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment account. Amounts
in the capital grants unapplied reserve are transferred to the capital
adjustment account once they have been applied to fund -capital
expenditure.

Where grant conditions have not been satisfied then the monies received
are carried in the balance sheet as receipts in advance.

Accounting policies for costs

Recognition of expenditure

Expenditure is accounted for in the financial year in which the activity it
relates to takes place, not simply when cash payments are made.

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their
consumption, they are carried as inventories on the balance sheet.

Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received
rather than when payments are made.
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Interest payable on borrowings is accounted for as expenditure on the basis
of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Where expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been paid, a
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.

Charges to revenue for non-current assets

Services are charged with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding property, plant and equipment during the year:

e Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

e Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service,
where there are no accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve
against which the losses can be written off.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits payable during employment

Short term employee benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave
and paid sick leave and expenses are paid on a monthly basis and charged
on an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement.

An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees

but not taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into
the next financial year. The accrual is charged to the surplus or deficit on
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the provision of services, but then reversed out through the movement in
reserves statement to the accumulated absences adjustment account.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the
county council to terminate an officer's employment before the normal
retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy.
These are charged on an accruals basis to the respective service in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, at the earlier of when
the county council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or
when the county council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions,
regulations require the general fund to be charged with the amount payable
to the pension fund rather than the amount calculated under accounting
standards. Adjustments are made in the movement in reserves statement
to transfer the accounting standards based entries to the pension reserve
and replace these with the amount payable to the pension fund.

Post-employment benefits

Employees of the county council are members of three separate pension
schemes:

e Teachers' pension scheme, administered by Capita Teachers'
pensions on behalf of the Department for Education (DfE);

e Local government pension scheme administered by Lancashire
County Council and the Local Pensions Partnership;
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e NHS pension scheme administered by NHS Business Services
Authority on behalf of the Secretary of State for Health.

Each scheme provides defined benefits to members e.g. retirement lump
sums and pensions, earned whilst employees are working for the county
council.

The county council recognises the cost of post-employment benefits in the
cost of services when they are earned by employees, although these
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire.

Statutory provisions require the general fund to be charged with the
amount payable by the county council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to accounting
standards. The real cost of post-employment benefits is reversed out of the
general fund via the movement in reserves statement and replaced with the
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners.

The balance on the pensions reserve measures the beneficial impact to the
general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the
basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

The arrangements for the teachers’ scheme and NHS scheme mean that
liabilities for these benefits cannot be identified to the county council. The
schemes are accounted for as if they were a defined contributions scheme
and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the balance
sheet. The education and public health service revenue accounts are
charged with the employer’s contributions payable to teachers’ and NHS
pensions respectively.
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Local government pension scheme

The liabilities of the Lancashire County Pension Fund attributable to the
county council are included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit method (i.e. an assessment of the future payments that
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and
projected earnings for current employees.)

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount
rate.

The assets of the local government pension fund attributable to the county
council are included in the balance sheet at their fair value:

e Quoted securities — current bid market price;

e Unquoted securities — professional estimate of market value;
e Unitised securities — current bid price;

e Property — market value.

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following
components:

Service costs:

Current service cost is the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year and is allocated in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement to the services for which the employees worked.
Past service cost is the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned
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in earlier years this is charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of
services in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability:

The expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as
they move one year closer to being paid, offset by the interest on assets;
which is the interest on assets held at the start of the year and cash flows
occurring during the period. The result is debited to the financing and
investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement.

Re-measurements:

These comprise the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest) and actuarial gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are
the changes in the net pension liability, which arise because actuaries have
updated their assumptions.

Re-measurements are charged to the pensions reserve as other
comprehensive income and expenditure.

Contributions paid to the Lancashire County Pension Fund:
Cash paid as employer’s contribution to the pension fund in settlement of
liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

Discretionary benefits
The county council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards
of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities

estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including
teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
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accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

Long term contracts

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus
or deficit on the provision of services, with the works and services received
under the contract during the financial year.

Overheads and support services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to services in
accordance with the county council’s arrangements for accountability and
financial performance.

Private finance initiative (PFI)

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where
responsibility for making available the property, plant and equipment
needed to provide services passes to the PFl contractor. As the county
council is deemed to control the services that are provided under the PFI
schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass
to the county council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge,
the county council carries the assets used under the contracts on the
balance sheet as part of property, plant and equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to
purchase the property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the
recognition of a liability, for amounts due to the scheme operation to pay
for the capital investment.
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Non-current assets related to these contracts and recognised on the balance
sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property, plant and
equipment owned by the county council.

The county council makes agreed payments each year to the operators,
increased in line with inflation where stated in the contract and similarly
reduced if performance falls below minimum standards in any year.

The charge made up of the cost of services received during the year, which
is charged to the relevant service line in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement and a charge for the property, which is split
between:

e The interest charge on the outstanding liability, debited to the
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement;

e The contingent rent, debited to the financing and investment
income line in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement;

e The payment towards the outstanding liability which is applied to
write down the balance sheet liability;

e Lifecycle replacement costs (split between revenue and capital
costs). Revenue lifecycle costs are debited to the relevant service in
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement. Capital
lifecycle costs are posted to the balance sheet as a prepayment and
then recognised as additions to property, plant and equipment when
the relevant works are eventually carried out.
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Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the county
council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement,
by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential and, a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, in the year the county
council becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected
to be met by another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only
recognised as income in the relevant service revenue account if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

Contingent assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the
county council a possible asset, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the county council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a
note to the accounts.
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Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities arise where either:

e a possible obligation has arisen from past events, whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the county council.

e a present obligation may arise from past events, but it is not
recognised because either it is not probable that the outflow of
resources will be required or, the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed
in a note to the accounts.

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Capital expenditure incurred during the year that does not create an asset
of the county council is charged to the relevant service in the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement but funded from capital sources.

An adjustment is made in the movement in reserves statement from the

general fund to the capital adjustment account to reverse out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

Value added tax (VAT)

The comprehensive income and expenditure account excludes amounts
relating to VAT and will be included as an expense, only if it is not
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recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is
excluded from income.

Accounting policies for assets and liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature or are available for recall in 3
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts and form an
integral part of the council's cash management strategy.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the county
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument.

Except for financial assets carried at fair value, all other financial liabilities
and financial assets represented by investments, borrowing, cash, debtors
and creditors are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified based on the business model for holding the
financial assets and their expected cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets are classified into one of three categories:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Where the county council’s business model is to hold investments to collect
contractual cash flows, the financial assets are classified as amortised cost.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are initially measured at purchase price and are subsequently
measured at their amortised cost.

Annual credits to the financing and investment income and expenditure line
in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement for interest
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets
held by the county council, this means that the amount presented in the
balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus accrued interest.
Interest credited to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

There is no recognition of gains or losses on fair value until reclassification
or de-recognition of the asset. Any gains or losses that arise on the de-
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recognition of the asset are charged to the financing and investment income
and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The county council also holds investments with the objective of collecting
contractual cash flows and selling assets in order to meet long term
investment requirements while ensuring the county council is not subject to
a high degree of credit risk. These assets are measured and carried at fair
value. Interest is recognised in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement on the same basis as for amortised cost financial assets, as
described above.

All gains or losses due to changes in the fair value of the assets (both realised
and unrealised) are charged to the other comprehensive income and
expenditure line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
and balanced by an entry in the financial instruments revaluation reserve.

Any gains or losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are charged
to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, along with any
accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the financial
instruments revaluation reserve.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit of loss
(FVPL)

These assets are measured and carried at fair value.
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All gains and losses due to changes in fair value are charged to the financing
and investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement as they arise.

Where a number of identical assets, e.g. bonds, are held but the cost differs
on de-recognition the gain or loss will be determined by the principal of first
in/first out. There will an exception to this where there is a clearly linked
transaction.

Expected credit loss model

The county council recognises expected credit losses on its financial assets
held at amortised cost or FVOCI, (subject to materiality) either on a 12-
month or lifetime basis.

Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not
increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of
12-month expected losses.

Lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the
county council.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on the balance sheet at fair value
and carried at amortised cost. Annual charges to the financing and
investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement for interest payable, are based on the carrying
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amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument.

The amount presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable plus accrued interest. Interest charged to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement is the amount payable for the year
according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are
credited and debited to the financing and investment income and
expenditure line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement,
in the year of repurchase or settlement. Where premiums and discounts
are charged to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement,
regulations allow the impact on the general fund balance to be spread over
future years.

The reconciliation of amounts charged to the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement to the net charge required against the general fund
balance is managed by a transfer to or from the financial instruments
adjustment account in the movement in reserves statement.

Highways network infrastructure

Highways network infrastructure assets include carriageways, footways and
cycle tracks, structures (e.g. bridges), street lighting, street furniture (e.g.
illuminated traffic signals, bollards), traffic management systems and land
which together form a single integrated network.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition or replacement of components of the
network is capitalised on an accrual basis, provided that it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Highways network infrastructure assets are generally measured at
depreciated historical cost. However, this is a modified form of historical
cost - opening balances for highways infrastructure assets were originally
recorded in balance sheets at amounts of capital undischarged for sums
borrowed as at 1 April 1994 which was deemed at that time to be historical
cost.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant
and equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the council and, the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e.
repairs and maintenance) is charged as a revenue expense when it is
incurred.
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Property, plant and equipment is recognised where the initial cost or value
exceeds £10,000.

Measurement

Assets are initially recognised at cost, comprising:

e The purchase price;

e Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management;

e The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between
fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-
specific grant income and expenditure line of the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement.

Where gains are credited to the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement, they are reversed out of the general fund balance to the capital
adjustment account in the movement in reserves statement.

Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following
measurement bases:

Category Measurement basis

Community assets and assets under | Depreciated historical cost
construction

Surplus assets and investment properties Fair value — highest and best

Operational property, plant and equipment | Current value - existing use value
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Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the
specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as
an estimate of current value.

For non-property assets, principally furniture and equipment, which have
short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is
used as a proxy for fair value.

Assets are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end
but as a minimum every three years.

Valuations are undertaken internally by Lancashire County Council's estates
service with valuations for specialist operational properties undertaken by
external professional valuers.

Valuations are provided as at 1 April and are undertaken by qualified valuers
in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
professional standards using recognised measurement techniques. Assets
which are valued using the depreciated replacement cost methodology are
updated based on cost prices at 31 March.

Revaluation gains and losses

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation reserve to
recognise unrealised gains, unless the gain reverses a loss previously
charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

e Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the
revaluation reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written
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down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated
gains).

e Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve or an
insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written
down against the relevant service line in the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement.

The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April
2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that
date have been consolidated into the capital adjustment account.

Depreciation

Depreciation is an accounting estimate used to charge the cost of an asset
to services over its useful economic life.

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

Category Period over which assets are depreciated
Carriageways 20-50 years

Footways and cycletracks 40-50 years

Structures (e.g. bridges) 120 years

Street lighting 40 years

Street furniture 20-50 years

Buildings 5-50 years

Vehicles, plant and 10 years unless the life of the asset is considered
equipment to be less

IT equipment 7-10 years

Depreciation is not charged on land, community or heritage assets, as they
do not have a determinable finite useful life. Assets under construction are
not depreciated until they are available for use. Assets held for sale and
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investment properties are revalued every year and therefore depreciation
is not charged on these assets.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis meaning that the asset's
value reduces equally each year over its life.

Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition until the month of
disposal.

Depreciation is generally charged on buildings as a single asset. However,
where an asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the overall cost of the asset, and the lifetime of the component is
significantly shorter than that of the asset, the major component is
depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost
being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the capital
adjustment account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible
differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for the same
way as revaluation losses.
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Minimum revenue provision

The county council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation,
revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required
to make an annual charge to revenue towards the reduction in its overall
borrowing requirement, which is calculated on a prudent basis determined
in accordance with statutory guidance. This contribution is known as the
minimum revenue provision (MRP).  Depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the MRP in the
earmarked reserves balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
capital adjustment account in the movement in reserves statement, for the
difference between the two.

Non-current assets held for sale

Where it is highly probable that property assets will be disposed of within
the next 12 months the asset is reclassified as assets held for sale.
Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale,
they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of:

e Their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale. In
this case the carrying amount is adjusted for depreciation,
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had
they not been classified as held for sale.

e Their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.
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Disposal of assets

When an asset is disposed of, the carrying amount of the asset in the
balance sheet is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal are credited to the same line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account.

The net loss or gain on disposal is not a charge against council tax, as the
cost of property, plant and equipment is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the general fund in the movement in reserves statement
and posted to the capital adjustment account (for any sale proceeds greater
than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve.

Capital receipts can only be used to fund new capital investment or, be set
aside to reduce the council's underlying need to borrow (the capital
financing requirement). However, the flexible use of capital receipts allows
revenue expenditure to be funded from capital receipts where it generates
ongoing revenue savings or transforms service delivery to reduce costs.

Where a part of the highways network is replaced, an adaptation provided
in a separate update to the Code assumes that from the introduction of the
IFRS based Code when parts of an asset are replaced or restored the carrying
amount of the derecognised part will be zero because parts of infrastructure
assets are rarely replaced before the part has been fully consumed.
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Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological,
geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and maintained
principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture.

The collection has an indeterminate life and is subject to appropriate
conservation measures, therefore, depreciation is not charged on heritage
assets.

The valuation of the county council's heritage assets has included a degree
of estimation. With respect to the museum's collection, those assets
considered to have a value of £50,000 or over have been identified and
valued as separate items. The rest of the collection involves a large quantity
of small value items for which is not considered economic to value each item
separately. Therefore, a sample of items was valued by the museums staff.
The resulting value was then used to give an estimated value of the whole
collection. It is considered that the result provides a fair reflection of the
value of the county council's holding.

The county council has a detailed acquisitions and disposal policy, further

information on which can be obtained from the county council. Disposals
will not be made with the principal aim of generating funds.

Investment property

Investment properties are those assets that are used solely to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. They are not used for service delivery.



Other notes to the financial statements

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair
value. Investment properties are not depreciated, and an annual valuation
programme ensures that they are held at highest and best use value at the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses on revaluation and disposal are
charged to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

Rental income is credited to the financing and investment income line in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

Revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrangements to have an impact on the general fund. The gains and losses
are therefore reversed out of the general fund in the movement in reserves
statement and posted to the capital adjustment account.

Fair value measurement

The county council measures some of its assets such as surplus assets,
investment properties and some of its financial instruments at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either, in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The county council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
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liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

When measuring the fair value, the county council takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance
with the following three levels:

e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets that the council can access at the measurement
date;

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Leases

Leases are classed as finance leases, where the terms of the lease transfer
the majority of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the county council grants a finance lease over a property or an item
of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet
as a disposal and replaced by a long term debtor in the balance sheet at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance income in respect
of these debtors is recognised at a constant rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of that finance lease.



Other notes to the financial statements

Reserves

The county council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy
purposes or, to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating
amounts out of the general fund balance in the movement in reserves
statement.

When expenditure is incurred which is to be financed from an earmarked
reserve, the expenditure is charged to the appropriate service revenue
account in that year. An equal amount is transferred from the reserve to
the general fund in the movement in reserves statement.

Certain reserves are held for technical accounting purposes in respect of
non-current assets, financial instruments and retirement and employee
benefits and do not represent usable resources for the county council.
These reserves are explained in the relevant notes.

Schools

The balance of control for local authority maintained schools, foundation,
voluntary aided and voluntary controlled schools are all deemed to lie with
the council, therefore schools’ assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows are
recognised in the council's financial statements as if they were transactions
of the council.

Schools’ non-current assets (school buildings and playing fields) are
recognised on the balance sheet where the council directly owns the assets,
where the council holds the balance of control of the assets or, where the
school or the school governing body own the assets or have had rights to
use the assets transferred to them.
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Some voluntary aided and controlled schools are owned by trustees.
However, these schools are included within the council's property, plant and
equipment as the council receives the benefit from using the properties in
terms of delivery of services and also meets the costs of service provision.

Capital expenditure on schools is added to the balances for those schools as
reported in the property, plant and equipment note.

School assets are derecognised in full on the date that a school transfers to
academy status.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is credited to the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement based on amounts due from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency. DSG is allocated to budgets delegated to individual schools
and centrally retained council budgets. Expenditure from delegated schools
and centrally retained budgets is charged to the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement under education and children’s services.
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Note 42 - Income, expense, gains and losses on financial instruments

2022/23

The gains and losses on financial instruments recognised in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement are shown in the following tables:

Financial liabilities Financial assets Total
Amortised cost | Fair value through Amortised cost | Fair value through | Fair value through
profit and loss other profit and loss
comprehensive
income
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest expense 46.8 0 0 0 0 46.8
Loss on de-recognition 0 0 0 0.2 0 0.2
Impairment losses 0 0 1.3 0 0 1.3
Fees paid 0.3 0 0 0 0 0.3
Interest payable and similar charges 47.1 0 13 0.2 0 48.6
Interest income 0 0 (7.2) (15.9) (0.8) (23.8)
(Increases)/decreases in fair value 0 (12.8) 0 0 9.3 (3.5)
Gain on de-recognition 0 (14.1) 0 (0.9) (0.3) (15.3)
Interest and investment income 0 (26.9) (7.1) (16.8) 8.2 (42.6)
Net impact on the surplus or deficit on 47.1 (26.9) (5.8) (16.6) 8.2 6.0
provision of services
Amounts recycled to the surplus/deficit 0 0 0 (0.4) 0 (0.4)
on the provision of services
Loss on revaluation 0 0 0 182.6 0 182.6
Impact on other comprehensive income 0 0 0 182.2 0 182.2
Net (gain)/loss for the year 47.1 (26.9) (5.8) 165.6 8.2 188.2
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2021/22

The gains and losses on financial instruments recognised in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement are shown in the following tables:

Financial liabilities Financial assets Total
Amortised cost | Fair value through Amortised cost | Fair value through | Fair value through
profit and loss other profit and loss
comprehensive
income
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest expense 35.8 0 0 0 0 35.8
Loss on de-recognition 0 6.5 0 0.1 10.9 17.5
Impairment losses 0 0 (9.5) 0 0 (9.5)
Fees paid 0.5 0 0 0 0 0.5
Interest payable and similar charges 36.3 6.5 (9.5) 0.1 10.9 44.3
Interest income 0 0 (2.8) (5.6) (2.0) (10.4)
(Increases)/decreases in fair value 0 (7.3) 0 0 4.6 (2.7)
Gain on de-recognition 0 0 (2.0) (20.9) (16.6) (39.5)
Interest and investment income 0 (7.3) (4.8) (26.5) (14.0) (52.6)
Net impact on the surplus or deficit on 36.3 (0.8) (14.3) (26.4) (3.1) (8.3)
provision of services
Amounts recycled to the surplus/deficit 0 0 0 (45.7) 0 (45.7)
on the provision of services
Loss on revaluation 0 0 0 83.2 0 83.2
Impact on other comprehensive income 0 0 0 37.5 0 37.5
Net (gain)/loss for the year 36.3 (0.8) (14.3) 11.1 (3.1) 29.2
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Note 43 - Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in
the balance sheet at fair value. For most assets, the fair value is taken from
the market price. The fair values of other instruments have been estimated
by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at
31 March, using the following methods and assumptions:

e Loans borrowed by the council have been valued by discounting the
contractual cash flows over the whole life of the instrument at the
appropriate market rate for local authority loans.

e The fair values of other long term loans and investments have been
discounted at the market rates for similar instruments with similar
remaining terms to maturity on 31 March.

e The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities and of PFl scheme
liabilities have been calculated by discounting the contractual cash
flows (excluding service charge elements) at the appropriate AA-rated
corporate bond yield.

e The fair value of short term instruments, including trade payables and
receivables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
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Fair values are shown in the following table, split by their level in the fair value
hierarchy.

Fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices

Level 1

Fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for
similar instruments

Fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market

Level 2

Level 3

data such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness

Allowances for impairment have been calculated for assets held at amortised
cost by applying a forward looking 'expected loss' impairment model that
focuses on the risk that a loan will default rather than whether a loss has been
incurred.
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Fair value of financial assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

Balance sheet Fair value Fair value Balance sheet Fair value
value level Fair value value
level
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive
income
580.9 580.9 1 | Corporate, covered and government bonds 1 394.0 394.0
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss
56.4 56.4 Corporate bonds 1 53.0 53.0
241 24.1 LOBO loan investment 2 18.0 18.0
80.5 80.5 Total 71.0 71.0
Financial assets held at amortised cost
10.2 10.2 2 | Local authority bonds 2 2.2 2.0
7.2 7.7 2 | Long term bank deposits 2 10.2 9.9
26.9 31.2 2 | Lease receivables 2 25.7 23.1
7.1 6.3 2 | Long term loans to companies 2 7.1 6.6
51.4 55.4 Subtotal 45.2 41.6
712.8 716.8 Total 510.2 506.6
370.7 Assets for which fair value is not disclosed # 375.5
1,083.5 Total financial assets 885.7
26.9 Long term debtors 25.7
605.4 Long term investments 413.5
154.6 Short term debtors 199.9
132.4 Short term investments 125.8
164.2 Cash and cash equivalents 120.8
1,083.5 Total financial assets 885.7

#The fair value of short term financial assets including trade receivables is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
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The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is
now lower than that obtained when the investment was originally made. This shows a notional future profit (based on economic conditions at the end of the
financial year) attributable to the commitment to receive interest above current market rates.
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Fair value of financial liabilities

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

Balance sheet Fair value Balance sheet Fair value
value Fair value Fair value value
level level
£m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
(279.6) (294.5) 2 | Long term PWLB loans 2 (269.6) (212.0)
(1.3) (1.2) 2 | Long term creditors 2 (1.3) (0.9)
(591.4) (536.4) 2 | Long term loans 2 (593.1) (457.7)
(10.0) (10.2) 2 | Other long term loans 2 (8.2) (7.5)
(126.2) (171.4) 2 | PFI liabilities 2 (118.6) (137.0)
(1,008.5) (1,013.6) Total financial liabilities held at amortised cost (990.8) (815.1)
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss
(64.7) (64.7) 1 | Short term liabilities for short investments 1 (19.6) (19.6)
(64.7) (64.7) Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss (19.6) (19.6)
(578.4) Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed * (595.8)
(1,651.6) (1,078.3) Total financial liabilities (1,606.2) (834.7)
Recorded on balance sheet as: -
(246.5) Short term creditors (277.9)
(325.1) Short term borrowings (310.4)
(71.5) Other current liabilities (27.2)
(1.3) Long term creditors (1.3)
(881.0) Long term borrowing (870.8)
(126.2) Other long term liabilities (118.6)
(1,651.6) Total financial liabilities (1,606.2)

# The fair value of short term financial liabilities including trade payables is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying amount because the council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the
interest rate payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans as at the balance sheet date. This shows a notional future loss (based on economic conditions at the end of the
financial year) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above current market rates.
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Note 44 - Nature and extent of risks arising
from financial instruments

The council has adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and has set treasury management indicators to
control key financial instrument risks.

The council's risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out by a
central finance team, under policies approved by the council in the annual
Treasury Management Strategy.

The strategy also imposes a maximum sum and duration that the council can
invest in an institution. This is dependent upon the quality of credit rating
and in 2022/23 the investment portfolio has maintained a very high AA
credit rating.

A main principle of the credit risk strategy was to invest mainly in UK
government bonds along with corporate bonds with a high credit rating.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts
due to the council.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to the council's customers.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which
requires that deposits are not made with an institution unless it meets
identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by the three main credit
rating agencies.
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Credit risk — treasury investments

The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the council's treasury investment portfolio by

credit rating:

31 March 2022

Credit rating

31 March 2023

Long term Short term Long term Short term
£m £m £m £m

244.8 61.8 | AAA 201.8 78.7
261.9 70.6 | AA 139.2 47.1
91.5 0 | BAAL 65.2 0
598.2 132.4 | Total 406.2 125.8

7.1 0 | Credit rating not applicable 7.1 0

605.3 132.4 | Total investments 413.3 125.8

0.1 0 | Accrued interest excluded 0.2 0

605.4 132.4 | Total investments 413.5 125.8
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The maximum single commercial exposure is to UKTI
0 % 03/22/2073 at £96 million, which is lower than
individual counterparty limit of £500 million for cash
deposits. Overall the portfolio is diversified by the
use of 38 counterparties.

In the context of credit risk, non-statutory debtors
are treated as financial instruments. The council
manages aged debt within the agreed policy. Loss
allowances on treasury investments have been
calculated on the 12 month expected credit loss
model by reference to historic default data
published by credit rating agencies, multiplied by
67% to adjust for current and forecast economic
conditions. A two-year delay in cash flows is
assumed to arise in the event of default. For local
government and central government investments
these have been excluded for this loss allowance
calculation. There are minimal non-material credit
losses of less than £0.1 million due as at 31 March
2023. Most of the investments held were not below
Moody’s AA2 level except for the EDF bonds showing
as BAAL.

In 2022/23 there are no treasury investments that
have suffered a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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Credit risk: trade receivables

The impairment allowance on trade debtors has been calculated using the lifetime credit losses basis. The impairment allowance loss on other financial assets
has been calculated based on the expected 12-month credit loss, however, there have been minimal losses at 31 March.

Trade debtors Total

£m £m

Balance at 1 April 2022 (8.2) (8.2)
Impairment allowance for trade debtors (1.3) (1.3)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (9.5) (9.5)
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Liquidity risk

‘ Liquidity risk is the danger that the council will have insufficient funds in its bank account to make the payments necessary to meet its financial obligations.

The council has a comprehensive cash flow management system, which seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen,
the council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board and access to the investment portfolio, which is also
considered to be liquid. There is no significant risk that the council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.

The discounted values reflect the current financial liabilities and liquid assets as at 31 March. These include both interest accrued and principal outstanding at
the year end. Financial liabilities exclude any statutory creditors. The liquid financial assets represent treasury investments that can be sold at short notice.

Discounted values — 2022/23

Under 1 year Maturing in 1-2 Maturing in 3-5 | Maturing in 6-10 | Maturing in more Total
years years years than 10 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Borrowings (310.3) (354.9) (29.8) (56.2) (430.0) (1,181.2)
PFI liabilities (7.6) (8.2) (27.0) (60.8) (22.6) (126.2)
Creditors and other liabilities (277.9) 0 0 (1.3) 0 (279.2)
Short-term liabilities for short investments 0 0 0 0 (19.6) (19.6)
Total financial liabilities (595.8) (363.1) (56.8) (118.3) (472.2) (1,606.2)
Liquidity financial assets 128.9 58.5 189.5 18.9 210.3 606.1
Net liquidity risk (466.9) (304.6) 132.7 (99.4) (261.9) (1,000.1)
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Discounted values — 2021/22

Under 1 year Maturing in 1-2 Maturingin 3-5 | Maturing in 6-10 | Maturing in more Total
years years years than 10 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Borrowings (325.1) (40.0) (407.6) (30.2) (403.2) (1,206.1)
PFI liabilities (6.8) (7.7) (28.1) (52.4) (38.0) (133.0)
Creditors and other liabilities (246.5) 0 0 (1.3) 0 (247.8)
Short-term liabilities for short investments 0 0 0 0 (64.7) (64.7)
Total financial liabilities (578.4) (47.7) (435.7) (83.9) (505.9) (1,651.6)
Liquidity financial assets 103.0 71.1 285.0 11.3 374.7 845.1
Net liquidity risk (475.4) 23.4 (150.7) (72.6) (131.2) (806.5)

The undiscounted values reflect the current financial liabilities and liquid assets as at 31 March 2023. These include all interest and principal repayments until

maturity.

Undiscounted values — 2022/23

Under 1 year Maturing in 1-2 Maturing in 3-5 | Maturing in 6-10 | Maturing in more Total
years years years than 10 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Borrowings (331.7) (387.1) (67.7) (113.6) (665.4) (1,565.5)
PFI liabilities (18.8) (18.6) (53.7) (88.4) (25.6) (205.1)
Creditors and other liabilities (277.9) 0 0 (1.3) 0 (279.2)
Short-term liabilities for short investments (0.7) (0.7) (2.1) (3.5) (44.7) (51.7)
Total financial liabilities (629.1) (406.4) (123.5) (206.8) (735.7) (2,101.5)
Liquidity financial assets 146.7 72.0 221.2 46.8 621.9 1,108.6
Net liquidity risk (482.4) (334.4) 97.7 (160.0) (113.8) (992.9)
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Undiscounted values — 2021/22

Under 1 year Maturing in 1-2 Maturingin 3-5 | Maturing in 6-10 | Maturing in more Total
years years years than 10 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Borrowings (337.6) (27.9) (423.7) (102.9) (690.4) (1,582.5)
PFI liabilities (18.6) (18.8) (57.4) (84.3) (44.5) (223.6)
Creditors and other liabilities (246.5) 0 0 (1.3) 0 (247.8)
Short-term liabilities for short investments (1.4) (1.4) (4.2) (7.0) (90.8) (104.8)
Total financial liabilities (604.1) (48.1) (485.3) (195.5) (825.7) (2,158.7)
Liquidity financial assets 153.2 90.3 279.9 54.7 594.3 1,172.4
Net liquidity risk (450.9) 42.2 (205.4) (140.8) (231.4) (986.3)
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Market risk

Market risk is the possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of

changes in interest rates and stock movements.

The council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movement in interest rates have a complex impact on the
council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following
effects:

Borrowing at variable | The interest expense charged to the surplus or deficit
rates on the provision of services will rise

Borrowing at fixed rates | The fair value of the liabilities will fall

Investments at variable | The interest income credited to surplus or deficit on
rates the provision of services will rise

Investments at fixed | The fair value of the investments will fall

rates

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not
carried at fair value, so changes in their fair value will have no impact on the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. However, changes in
interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and
investments will be posted to the surplus or deficit on the provision of
services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments measured
at fair value will be reflected in other comprehensive income or the surplus
or deficit on the provision of services as appropriate.

There is a significant level of short term borrowing which needs to be

regularly refinanced as part of the strategy to benefit from low short term
interest rates. This gives rise to some interest rate risk, although this is
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mitigated by the ability of the council to switch from short term to long term
borrowing should the UK enter a period of rising interest rates, as the
expectation is that this would be a protracted period rather than a single
event.

As part of a balanced portfolio, the interest rate risk is further mitigated by
two factors:

e Maturing and available for sale short term investments, which could
be used to pay down debt, should it become cost effective to do so.

e Long term loans of over £481 million with both the Public Works
Loans Board and UK bond issuance, with maturity dates beyond 31
March 2028 with guaranteed interest rates.

The council's strategy takes advantage of market conditions whilst
managing interest rate risk. The treasury management team proactively
reviews interest rate exposure and the results feed into the annual budget
cycle allowing any adverse changes to be accommodated.
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The effect if interest rates were 1% higher with all other variables held constant

The following table attempts to quantify the interest rate risk. The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be the same but with movements reversed.

The table illustrates the sensitivity inherent in the current portfolio to an interest rate rise.

2022/23

£m

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 2.3
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (0.7)
Decrease in fair value of traded investments 4.3
Decrease in fair value of borrowings held for trading (3.7)
Impact on surplus on the provision of services 2.2
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate other comprehensive income investment assets 53.3
Impact on other comprehensive income and expenditure 55.5
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate loans and investments 0.3
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings (51.3)
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Information on the overall borrowing amounts held on the balance sheet along with the interest rates and maturity information is as follows:

Borrowing at Contractual rates Average rate paid Years to maturity at 31
31 March 2023 2022/23 2022/23 March 2023
£m % %

Long term borrowing
Fixed rate funding:
Public works loan board (269.6) 1.57 t0 4.625 3.508 Over 1 year to 46 years
Long term bonds (241.1) 1.625 1.625 37 years
Other long term loans (5.0) 3.8 3.8 9 years
Total fixed rate funding (515.7)
Variable rate funding:
Long term bonds (352.0) 4.872 3.202 2 years
Salix funding (3.1) 0 0
Total long term borrowing (870.8)
Short term borrowing
Fixed rate funding:
Public works loan board (10.0) 4.5 4.5 Less than 1 year
Other market loans (212.0) 0.1to 3.5 2.22 Less than 1 year
Accrued interest (5.1)
Total fixed rate funding (227.1)
Variable rate funding:
Shared investment scheme (79.7) 4.0to 4.25 2.313 Less than 1 year
Salix funding (1.8) 0 0 Less than 1 year
Other variable funding (1.8) 4.25 2.288 Less than 1 year
Total variable funding (83.3)
Total short term borrowing (310.4)
Total borrowing (1,181.2)
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Note 45 - Forward contract agreement

In 2019/20 the council entered into a forward contract agreement in which it agreed to purchase £90 million of UK government bonds at a future time for a
sale price of £150.2 million, to mitigate market risk relating to local authority loans made to other local authorities. During 2021/22 the council sold five out of
these six local authority loans and also purchased £50 million of the UK government bonds to offset these sales. In 2022/23 a further £20 million of UK
government bonds was purchased to rebalance this hedge arrangement. At 31 March 2023 the fair values represented in the comprehensive income and

expenditure statement recognised an overall gain of £6.7 million.

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss

Impact on comprehensive
income and expenditure

statement
£m £m £m
Fair value adjustment (12.8) 6.1 (6.7)

The council is exposed to interest rate movements when it invests and borrows that can affect the fair value of assets and liabilities. Through investing in other
local authorities the council was exposed to changes in the market value of those loans which in part varied due to the prevailing interest rate. Through the
undertaking of a forward contract loan which is exposed to this same risk but negatively correlated in its affect, the potential impact is effectively hedged.

The fair value through profit and loss assets relate to LOBO loan investments with other local authorities and were valued at 31 March 2023, using the
Bermudian SWAP basis, in accordance with industry standards. This methodology resulted in a decrease on the balance sheet values for these assets. There
was a decrease in market prices for the UK government bonds and therefore reduced the liability owed by the council which offset the fair value losses from
the LOBO assets resulting in a net gain of £6.7 million for these transactions.
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Defined benefit pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the
council offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually
be payable until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make
the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.

The council’s principal pension arrangement for its employees is the
Lancashire County Pension Fund, which is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension
arrangement for local authorities and related employers and is governed by
statute (principally now the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013).

The Lancashire County Pension Fund is a multi-employer arrangement,
under which each employer is responsible for the pension costs, liabilities
and funding risks relating to its own employees and former employees. Each
employer’s contributions to the fund are calculated in accordance with the
LGPS regulations. The regulations require an actuarial valuation to be
carried out every three years and require the contributions to be set with a
view to targeting the fund's solvency. The detailed provisions are set out in
the fund's funding strategy statement.

The council also participates in some other defined benefit pension
arrangements, governed under statute, but these other schemes are

unfunded.

These other arrangements relate to:
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Teachers

The council’s costs in relation to this arrangement are set by central
government as a percentage of contributing members’ pay. The related
funding risks are borne by central government. The council is, however,
responsible for paying some additional pensions to retired teachers that
were awarded at the point of retirement.

Health workers

The council’s costs in relation to this scheme are set by central government
as a percentage of contributing members’ pay. The related funding risks are
borne by central government.

NEST pension scheme

The council’s costs in relation to this scheme are set by central government
as a percentage of contributing members’ pay. The related funding risks are
borne by central government.

Governance and risk management

The liability associated with the council’s pension arrangements is material
to the council. The details in relation to each arrangement, including the
relevant provisions for governance and risk management, are set out below.

Lancashire County Pension Fund

The fund is overseen by the Lancashire Pension Fund Committee, which
reports directly to Full Council. The Head of Fund is designated as the officer
responsible for the management of the Fund. The Pension Fund Committee
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comprises twelve county councillors and seven voting co-optees
representing the further and higher education sectors, the Lancashire
borough, district and city councils, Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council,
Blackpool Council and trade unions. The Investment Panel provides
professional expert advice and makes recommendations to the Committee
in relation to investment strategy. The Panel comprises the Head of Fund
as Chair and two independent advisers.

Full details of the responsibilities of the panel and committee are published
in the Investment Strategy Statement.

Risks and investment strategy

The fund’s primary long term risk is that the fund’s assets will fall short of its
liabilities (i.e. promised benefits payable to members). The aim of
investment risk management is to balance the minimisation of the risk of an
overall reduction in the value of the fund with maximising the opportunity
for gains across the whole fund portfolio. The fund achieves this through
asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk) and keep credit risk to an acceptable level. In
addition, the fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient
liquidity to meet the forecast cash flow.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity
prices, interest and foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The fund is
exposed to market risk from its investment activities, particularly through
its equity holdings. The objective of the fund's risk management strategy is
to identify, manage and keep market risk exposure within acceptable
parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.
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Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk). The fund’s investment
managers mitigate this price risk through diversification. The selection of
securities and other financial instruments is monitored by the fund to
ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment strategy.

Interest rate risk

The fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a
return on investments. These investments are subject to interest rate risks,
which represent the risks that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the investment panel and
its investment advisors.

Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value cash flow of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
fund’s currency risk is routinely monitored by its investment advisors in
accordance with the risk management strategy.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a
financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the fund
to incur financial loss. The selection of high quality counterparties, brokers
and financial institutions minimise the credit risk that may occur through the
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failure to settle a transaction in a timely manner. Deposits are not made
with banks and financial instructions unless they meet the fund's credit
criteria. The fund has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of the
deposits placed with any class of financial institution.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the fund will not be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. The fund therefore takes steps to
ensure that there are adequate cash resources to meet its commitments,
and the fund has immediate access to its cash holdings.

Other risks

Actions taken by the government, or changes to European legislation, could
result in stronger local pension funding standards, which could materially
affect the council’s cash flow.

Amendments, curtailments and settlements

The provisions of the fund were amended with effect from 1 April 2014. For
service up to 31 March 2014, benefits were based on salaries when
members leave the scheme, whereas for service after that date benefits are
based on career average salary.

Curtailments shown in the accounting figures relate to the cost of providing
retirement benefits for members who retire early, to the extent that
provision has not already been made for the relevant defined benefit
obligations.
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Settlements shown in the accounting figures relate to the admission of new
employers into the fund, and who take on part of the council’s assets and
liabilities as a result of employing members who have accrued benefits with
the council.

Schemes for teachers and transferred NHS
staff

Governance

These arrangements are managed centrally by government
departments/agencies, and there is no material involvement for the council.

Funding the liabilities

Contributions to the arrangements are set by the government for teachers
and NHS staff pension schemes, having taken advice from the government
actuary, no liability is reflected in the council's balance sheet. The exception
to this is the additional pensions to retired teachers which were awarded at
the point of retirement, and for which the council is responsible. Only this
additional pension to retired teachers' part of the liability, which directly
falls to the council, is recognised within the council's balance sheet and
these liabilities are shown under teachers' pension scheme figures within
the following tables. The weighted average duration of these particular
liabilities is 9 years, measured on the actuarial assumptions used for IAS19
purposes.
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Investment risk

There are no investment risks in relation to these arrangements, given their
unfunded nature. The greatest single risk is that the government could
change the funding standards relating to them, which could increase the
council’s contributions to them.

Note 46 - Transactions relating to retirement
benefits

The council recognises the costs of post-employment/retirement benefits in
the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable
in the year, so the real cost of post-employment benefits is reversed out of
the general fund via the movement in reserves statement.

The following transactions have been made in the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement and the movement in reserves statement during
the year:

e In2022/23 £80.7 million was paid to the Department for Education
for teachers' pension costs. This represents 25.3% of teachers'
pensionable pay (2021/22 £75.2 million and 23.7%).

e In2022/23, the council paid £0.2 million to the NHS Pension Scheme
in respect of former NHS staff retirement benefits representing 18%
of pensionable pay (2021/22: £0.3 million and 17%).

e The council is also responsible for all discretionary pension payments
awarded to teachers, together with related increases. In 2022/23,

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

these amounted to £7.3 million, representing 2.3% of pensionable
pay (2021/22: £7.4 million and 2.3%).

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, a re-measurement of the net defined
liability gain of £1,861.7 million (2021/22: £538.4 million gain) was included.
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement is a £1,984.5 million
gain.
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Transactions relating to retirement benefits

Local Government Pension Teachers' Pension Scheme
Scheme
2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
£m £m £m £m
Comprehensive income and expenditure statement
Cost of services
Current service cost 190.3 180.0 0 0
Past service cost 0 0 0 0
(Gain)/loss from settlements and curtailments 0.6 0.4 0 0
Administration expenses 2.9 2.7 0 0
Financing and investment income and expenditure
Net Interest expense 26.3 28.3 2.6 2.2
Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services 220.1 2114 2.6 2.2
Other post-employment benefit charged to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets (excluding the amounts included in net interest expense)
(15.9) (464.0) 0 0
Experience (gains)/losses on liabilities 371.7 56.9 7.4 0.4
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (2,187.9) (90.8) (21.1) 0.9
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions 0.0 (40.8) (5.8) (1.0)
Adjustment to net defined asset/liability due to 2022 Actuarial Valuation (5.0) - - -
Total re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
Total post-employment benefit charged to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement ‘ (1,616.9) ‘ (327.3) ‘ (16.9) ‘ 2.5
Movement in reserves statement
Reversal of net charges made to the (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services for post-employment 220.1 211.4 2.6 2.2

benefits in accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions in the year
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‘ Employers’ contributions payable to the scheme ‘ 80.2 ‘ 73.3 ‘ 10.0 ‘ 10.0 ‘

Note 47 - Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the council's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
Local government | Teachers' pension Local government | Teachers' pension
pension scheme scheme pension scheme scheme
£m £m £m £m
4,310.9 0 | Fair value of plan assets 4,429.2 0
(5,317.1) (101.9) | Present value of the defined benefit obligation (3,738.3) (75.1)
(1,006.2) (101.9) | Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 690.9 (75.1)

Reconciliation of the movements in fair value of the scheme assets

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
3,795.0 | Opening balance as at 1 April 4,310.9
464.0 | Re-measurement (assets) 18.9
79.7 | Interest on plan assets 121.0
(2.7) | Admin expenses (2.9)
73.3 | Employer contributions 77.2
27.2 | Contributions from scheme participants 29.9
(125.6) | Benefits/transfers paid (125.8)
4,310.9 | Closing balance as at 31 March 4,429.2
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities

2021/22 Restated

Funded liabilities®

Unfunded liabilities*

2022/23

Funded liabilities

Unfunded liabilities

£m £m £m £m
5,156.5 154.7 | Opening balance as at 1 April 5,277.3 141.7
180.0 0 | Current service cost 190.3 0
107.3 3.1 | Interest on pension liabilities 146.3 3.8
27.2 0 | Contributions from scheme participants 29.9 0
(122.9) (13.5) | Benefits/transfers paid (121.9) (13.9)
0.4 0 | Curtailment cost 0.6 0
57.3 (0.1) | -  Experience gains/(losses) on liabilities 364.4 14.7
(90.3) 0.4 | -  Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions (2,178.5) (30.5)
(38.9) (2.9) | -  Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions 0 (5.8)

- - | - Adjustment to net defined asset/liability due to 2022 Actuarial Valuation (5.0) -
5,277.3 141.7 | Closing balance as at 31 March 3,703.4 110.0

1The 2021/22 figures have been restated to reflect the unfunded element of the LGPS liabilities.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

31 March 2022

Asset category

Quoted in active markets (Y/N)

31 March 2023

£m £m
Equities:
5.1 | Financials Y 5.2
Bonds:
17.7 | UK corporate Y
15.9 | Overseas corporate N 9.1
Property:
2.0 | Offices N 0.8

32.1 | Industrial/warehouse N 32.0

3.8 | Shops N 8.9

30.9 | Multi let commercial building N 25.0

Alternatives:

95.3 | UK private equity N 76.7
259.9 | Overseas private equity N 294.5
491.1 | Infrastructure N 689.0
576.9 | Credit funds N 642.7
187.4 | Pooled fixed income N 63.8
375.9 | Indirect property funds N 389.9

40.6 | UK pooled equity N 46.9

2,067.6 | Overseas pooled equity funds N 2,109.5
Cash:

119.6 | Cash accounts N 35.2

(11.0) | Net current assets/(liabilities) N 0

4,310.9 | Total assets 4,429.2
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in the future years
dependent on assumptions about mortality rates and salary levels. Both the Teachers' Pension Scheme and County Council Fund liabilities have been assessed
by Mercer, an independent firm of actuaries. The estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March

20109.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary are shown in the following table.

2021/22 | 2022/23
Mortality assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners
22.3 years | Male 21.5 years
25.0 years | Female 23.8 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners
23.7 years | Male 22.8 years
26.8 years | Female 25.6 years
Financial assumptions
3.3% | Rate of CPl inflation 2.7%
4.8% | Rate of increase in salaries 4.2%
3.4% | Rate of increase in pensions 2.8%
2.8% | Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.8%
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Post-employment benefit disclosure notes

Sensitivity analysis

There is a risk that changes in the assumptions (e.g. life expectancy, price inflation and discount rate) could increase the defined benefit obligation and/or the
liabilities for actuarial valuation purposes. Other assumptions used to value the defined benefit obligation are also uncertain, although their effect is less
material. The sensitivity analysis indicates the change in the defined benefit obligation for changes in the key assumptions.

Impact on the net defined

Projected service cost for

Projected net interest cost

benefit liability next year for next year

£m £m £m

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase by 0.5%) (295.7) (13.0) (19.3)
Rate of inflation (increase by 0.25%) 159.9 7.4 7.8
Rate of increase in pay growth (increase by 0.25%) 19.9 0 1.0
1 year increase in life expectancy 77.1 2.1 3.8
Change in investment returns (increase by 1%) (44.4) 0 (2.1)
Change in investment returns (decrease by 1%) 44 .4 0 2.1
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Post-employment benefit disclosure notes

Note 48 - Impact on the council's cash flows

Actuarial valuations are required to be carried out every three years. The last
actuarial valuation of the Lancashire County Pension Fund was carried out as
at 31 March 2022 to determine the contribution rates with effect from 1 April
2023 to 31 March 2026.

On 21 April 2023, the Council took advantage of the option provided by the
pension fund to make a one off payment in advance to cover its future service
and deficit recovery payments for the three years 2023/24 to 2025/26. The
value of the payment totalled £140.7 million and has the purpose of
generating a cash saving to the council.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Lancashire County
Pension Fund in addition to the pre-payment above are £62.4 million.

Guaranteed minimum pension equalisation (GMP) — historic
transfers

UK and European law require pension schemes to provide equal benefits to
men and women in respect of service after 17 May 1990 (the date of the
'‘Barber' judgement) and this includes providing equal benefits accrued from
that date to reflect the differences in guaranteed minimum pensions.

In December 2020 a further High Court ruling extended GMP equalisation
costs to historic transfers, potentially creating a further liability for pension
schemes. However, it is unclear at this point how this latest ruling may (or
may not) be relevant in the LGPS. Given the uncertainty around whether this
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applies to public sector schemes, the difficulty in obtaining the necessary
historic data and the low likelihood of a material impact for employers, no
adjustment has been included in the pension figures.
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Lancashire County Council has chosen to conduct activities through a variety
of undertakings, either through ultimate control of or in partnership with
other organisations. These are classified into the categories of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates.

The CIPFA Code of Practice requires that where an authority has material
financial interests and a significant level of control over one or more entities,
it should prepare group accounts. The aim of these statements is to give an
overall picture of the council’s financial activities and the resources
employed in carrying out those activities.

Inclusion in the Lancashire County Council Group is dependent upon the
extent of the council’s interest and control over the entity. Where an entity
is considered immaterial, it is not included in the group accounts. Details of
the council's relationships with other entities are detailed in the notes
supporting the group accounts.
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Gross
expenditure

£m
745.8
264.2
254.4
136.8
24
1,097.8
2,501.4
23.8
57.3

0
2,582.5
54
2,587.9

2021/22 restated

Gross
income

£m
(344.6)
(42.8)
(57.6)
(50.5)
(6.3)
(1,029.4)
(1,531.2)
(8.7)
(47.5)
(1,009.4)
(2,596.8)
0
(2,596.8)

Net
expenditure

£m
401.2
221.4
196.8
86.3
(3.9)
68.4
970.2
15.1
9.8
(1,009.4)
(14.3)
54
(8.9)
(85.6)
(538.4)
37.5

(586.5)
(595.4)

Adult services and health and wellbeing !

Education and children’s services *

Growth, environment and transport *

Resources 2

Chief executive services *

Schools

Cost of services ?

Other operating income and expenditure

Financing and investment income and expenditure
Taxation and non-specific grant income
(Surplus)/deficit on provision of services 2

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities (Note 6)
Group (surplus)/deficit 2

(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit pension liability/(asset)

(Surplus)/deficit on financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income and expenditure
Total comprehensive income and expenditure 2

1 The council has restructured its services during 2022/23. The 2021/22 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the new structure.
2The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Gross
expenditure

£m
791.3
321.9
269.8
158.8
0.6
1,132.7
2,675.1
103.6
77.6

0
2,856.3
(3.6)
2,852.7

2022/23

Gross
income

£m
(316.5)
(67.7)
(77.9)
(52.7)
(3.1)
(1,065.0)
(1,582.9)
(14.4)
(34.7)
(1,059.1)
(2,691.1)
0
(2,691.1)

Net
expenditure

£m
474.8
254.2
191.9
106.1
(2.5)
67.7
1,092.2
89.2
42.9
(1,059.1)
165.2
(3.6)
161.6
(111.2)
(1,861.7)
182.2

(1,790.6)
(1,629.0)



General fund /

earmarked

reserves

£m

Balance at 1 April 2022 (563.2)

Movement in reserves during 2022/23

Total comprehensive income 155.4
and expenditure

Adjustment between (110.4)
accounting basis and funding

basis under regulations

(Increase)/decrease in year 45.0
Balance at 31 March 2023 (518.2)

General fund /

earmarked

reserves

£m

Balance at 1 April 2021 (492.9)

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total comprehensive income 9.1
and expenditure !

Adjustment between (72.4)
accounting basis and funding

basis under regulations ?
Adjustments between the (7.0)
group accounts and the
council accounts
(Increase)/decrease in year *

Balance at 31 March 2022 !

(70.3)
(563.2)

1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

Capital receipts
reserve

£m
(10.3)

(10.8)

(10.8)
(21.1)

Capital receipts
reserve

£m
(8.4)

(1.9)

(1.9)
(10.3)

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

Capital grants
unapplied

£fm
(140.3)

(25.0)

(25.0)
(165.3)

Capital grants
unapplied

£fm
(142.1)

1.8

1.8
(140.3)

Total usable
reserves

£fm
(713.8)

155.4

(146.2)

9.2
(704.6)

Total usable
reserves

£fm
(643.4)

9.1

(72.5)

(7.0)

(70.4)
(713.8)

Unusable
reserves

£fm
(814.2)

(1,790.6)

146.2

(1,644.4)
(2,458.6)

Unusable
reserves

£fm
(300.2)

(586.5)

72.5

(514.0)
(814.2)

Total reserves
of the council

£fm
(1,528.0)

(1,635.2)

(1,635.2)
(3,163.2)

Total reserves
of the council

£fm
(943.6)

(577.4)

(7.0)

(584.4)
(1,528.0)

Reserves of
subsidiaries

£m
(79.9)

6.2

6.2
(73.7)

Reserves of
subsidiaries

£fm
(61.9)

(18.0)

(18.0)
(79.9)

Total reserves

£fm
(1,607.9)

(1,629.0)

(1,629.0)
(3,236.9)

Total reserves

£fm
(1,005.5)

(595.4)

(7.0)

(602.4)
(1,607.9)



Group balance sheet

31 March 2022 Note | 31 March 2023
restated
£m £m
3,231.1 | Property, plant and equipment 3,288.9
28.7 | Heritage assets 28.7
86.2 | Investment properties 8 83.9
17.4 | Intangible assets 24.4
600.3 | Long term investments 408.9
39.5 | Long term debtors 37.7
0 | Pension fund asset 690.9
4,003.2 | Long term assets 4,563.4
133.5 | Short term investments 127.0
4.0 | Inventories 3.8
229.5 | Short term debtors 276.8
19.9 | Payments in advance 27.6
164.2 | Cash and cash equivalents 120.9
551.1 | Current assets 556.1
(315.6) | Short term borrowing (303.9)
(311.6) | Short term creditors (340.2)
(68.0) | Receipts in advance (86.0)
(15.7) | Short term provisions (10.1)
(71.4) | Other current liabilities (27.2)
(782.3) | Current liabilities (767.4)
(35.6) | Long term provisions (41.2)
(11.8) | Deferred tax liability 9 (8.2)
(881.0) | Long term borrowing (870.8)
(1.3) | Other long term creditors (1.3)
(1,234.4) | Other long term liabilities * (193.7)
(2,164.1) Long term liabilities * (1,115.2)
1,607.9 Net assets ! 3,236.9
(713.8) | Usable reserves 10 (704.6)
(814.2) | Unusable reserves ! (2,458.6)
(79.9) | Subsidiary reserves 10 (73.7)
(1,607.9) Total reserves ? (3,236.9)
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1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early
payment of the pension contributions.
The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.



2021/22
restated
£m

8.9
233.7

(130.4)

112.2
(15.7)
(199.4)
(102.9)
267.1

164.2

Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services !

Adjustments to net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services
for non-cash movements *

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus/(deficit) on
the provision of services that are investing and financing

activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting

period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Note

11

11

12
13

2022/23

£fm
(161.6)
309.7

(131.8)

16.3

(5.1)
(54.5)
(43.3)
164.2

120.9

1The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the accounting entries for the early payment of the pension contributions.

The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period adjustments.
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Where figures in the group accounts differ materially
from the council’s accounts, the relevant explanatory
notes have been prepared on a consolidated basis.

The accounting policies of the council's subsidiary
company have been aligned with the council's
accounting policies.

The subsidiaries of Lancashire County Developments
(Property) Limited and Lancashire  County
Developments (Investments) Limited are consolidated
into the group accounts of Lancashire County
Developments Limited.

Lancashire County Developments Limited has been
consolidated using the acquisition accounting basis.
This is a full, line-by-line consolidation of the financial
transactions and balances of the council and Lancashire
County Developments Limited. 100% of all balances
and transactions are consolidated, with the minority
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interest recognised as an unusable reserve in the group balance sheet. To avoid overstating the
figures within the group financial statements, all inter-group transactions and balances between the
council and Lancashire County Developments Limited have been eliminated.

Lancashire County Developments Limited has the same reporting date as the council. Year-end
accounts to 31 March 2023 have been used for consolidation.

Details of the council's relationships with other entities are outlined below:

An entity could be material but still not consolidated (if all of its business is with the council and
eliminated on consolidation) — i.e. the consolidation would mean that the group accounts are not
materially different to the single entity accounts.

Company Interest = Relationship

Lancashire Renewables Limited 87.5% | Subsidiary

Marketing Lancashire Limited 100% | Subsidiary

Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Limited 33% | Joint venture (Dormant company)
Active Lancashire Limited 100% | Subsidiary

Local Pensions Partnership Limited 50% | Joint venture

Lancashire Partnership Against Crime Limited 25% | Associate

Lancashire Environmental Fund Limited 25% | Associate

Lancashire UDF Limited 100% | Subsidiary (Dormant company)
Lancashire UDF - SPV2 Limited 100% | Subsidiary (Dormant company)



Lancashire County Developments Limited has been consolidated into the
council's group accounts.

Company registration number: 01624144

Lancashire County Developments Limited is a company under the control of
Lancashire County Council within the meaning of Part V of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989.

Lancashire County Developments Limited (LCDL) is an economic
development agency for the County. It is a company limited by guarantee
and has no issued share capital. The liability of members is limited to £1. The
council controls 80% of the members’ voting rights, with the other two
members of the company (Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council and
Blackpool Council) having 10% of voting rights each. It is classed as a
subsidiary of the county council.

County Councillors have been appointed as directors on the board. The
council’s interest in LCDL is based on its contributions to the company’s
capital funding reserve, loans to the company and rights to appoint members
of the company. As a limited company, LCDL must use its profits and income
to further its business objectives.

Lancashire County Developments Limited is the holding company in the
group structure, the subsidiary company is Lancashire County Developments
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(Property) Limited which owns and manages two commercial estates in
Lancashire;

The subsidiary company Lancashire County Developments (Investments)
Limited was closed during the year as the main functions of the group were
transferred to the Lancashire County Developments (Property) Limited in
2019/20.



Notes supporting the group accounts

Note 5 - Group fees payable to auditors

2021/22 2022/23
£000 £000
Fees in respect of Lancashire County Council
93.0 | Fees incurred with regard to external audit services provided by 103.1
Grant Thornton
7.0 | Fees incurred for certification work undertaken by Grant Thornton 8.5
10.0 | Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Grant 10.0
Thornton
68.4 | Fees payable in respect of additional prior year statutory audit work 53.0
(17.2) | Reimbursement from Public Sector Audit Appointment 0
161.2 | Total fees for Lancashire County Council 174.6
Fees in respect of Lancashire County Developments Limited
25.2 | Fees incurred with regard to external audit services provided by 30.2
Beever and Struthers
13.9 | Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Beever and 4.0
Struthers during the year
39.1 | Total fees for Lancashire County Developments Limited 34.2
200.3 | Total 208.8
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Notes supporting the group accounts

Note 6 - Group taxation

Taxation expenses are only applicable to subsidiary companies of Lancashire County Council.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
0.4 | Deferred tax: origination and reversal of timing differences 0
5.0 | Capital gains (3.5)
5.4 | Total deferred tax (3.5)
5.4 | Taxation on profit on ordinary activities (3.5)

Note 7 - Group transfers to and from earmarked reserves

Balance at 31 @ Transfers out Transfers in | Balance at 31 | Transfers out Transfers in | Balance at 31

March 2021 2021/22 2021/22 March 2022 2022/23 2022/23 March 2023

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Total earmarked reserves of the council (492.9) 104.5 (174.8) (563.2) 138.6 (93.6) (518.2)
Capital funding reserve (8.7) 0 (7.0) (15.7) 0.2 0 (15.5)
Profit and loss account (18.9) 0 (3.6) (22.5) 2.2 (2.2) (21.4)
Total revenue and capital reserves of the subsidiary (27.6) 0 (10.6) (38.2) 24 (1.1) (36.9)
Total reserves (520.5) 104.5 (185.4) (601.4) 141.0 (94.7) (555.1)
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2021/22
£m
(4.5) | Rental Income from investment property
1.9 | Direct operating expenses arising from investment property
(2.6)  Total

2021/22
£m
70.1 | Balance as at 1 April
3.5 | Additions
(0.1) | Disposals
12.7 | Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
86.2 | Balance as at 31 March
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2022/23
£m

(4.8)

2.1

(2.7)

2022/23
£m

86.2

6.3

(1.0)
(7.6)
83.9

The items of income and expense shown in the
table have been accounted for in the financing and
investment income and expenditure line in the
comprehensive  income and  expenditure
statement.

There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to
realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the council’s right to the remittance
of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
council has no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment property or for
the repairs, maintenance or enhancement of the
properties.

The table summarises the movement in the value
of investment properties over the year.



The fair value of the investment property is revalued
annually as at 31 March.

The 2022/23 commercial unit valuations have been
undertaken by Cushman and Wakefield, in accordance
with the appropriate sections of the current edition of the
RICS Valuation — Global Standards, which incorporate the
International Valuation Standards and the RICS UK national
supplement (RICS Red Book).

The fair value of the properties has been primarily derived
using comparable recent market transactions on arm's
length terms.

Where the market approach is used, properties are valued
by reference to market-based evidence using observed
prices for recent market transactions for comparable
properties. Where appropriate, adjustments are made to
market price information to reflect differences in the legal,
economic or physical characteristics of the property being
valued. These include significant unobservable
adjustments to reflect differences in the nature, condition
and location of the property, tenure and encumbrances.
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Where an income approach, or market approach with significant unobservable adjustment has
been used, valuations are predominately based on unobservable inputs and accordingly are
categorised as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Details of the council’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy

are as follows.

31 March 2022

Balance
sheet value

£fm
86.2
86.2

Fair value Fair value | Property type

£fm
86.2
86.2

level

3 | Commercial units
Total

Fair value
level

3

31 March 2023

Balance
sheet value

£m
83.9
83.9

Fair value

£m
83.9
83.9



Notes supporting the group accounts

Fair value measurement of investment properties using significant unobservable inputs — level 3

Details of the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value measurement of investment property classified within
level 3 are set out in the following table together with a narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs.

Site Fair value at 31 March 2023 | Valuation technique Unobservable inputs %
£m
Lancashire business park 69.1 | Market rent Net initial yield 5.48
Reversionary yield 8.05
Nominal equivalent yield 7.00
True equivalent yield 7.29
White Cross business park 14.8 | Market rent Net initial yield 6.03
Reversionary yield 10.26
Nominal equivalent yield 9.04
True equivalent yield 9.51

Significant changes in rental income and rent growth; vacancy levels or discount rate would result in a significantly lower or higher fair value. All other factors
being equal, a higher equivalent yield or discount rate would lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset while an increase in the current or estimated future
rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value and vice versa.
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Notes supporting the group accounts

Note 9 - Deferred taxation

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

(6.4) | Balance as at 1 April (11.8)
(5.4) | Charge for the year 3.5
(11.8) | Balance as at 31 March (8.3)

Note 10 - Group reserves

The total usable reserves are shown in the table below:

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
(23.4) | General fund (23.4)
(407.6) | Earmarked reserves (386.0)
(132.2) | School reserves (108.8)
(563.2) Total earmarked reserves of the council (518.2)
(140.3) | Capital grants unapplied reserve (165.3)
(10.3) | Usable capital receipts (21.1)
(713.8) | Total usable reserves of the council (704.6)
(79.9) | Reserves of the subsidiary (73.7)
(793.7) Total usable reserves of the group (778.3)
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Taxation expenses are only applicable to
subsidiary company of Lancashire County Council.
The deferred taxation balance consists of
accelerated capital allowances.



Notes supporting the group accounts

Note 11 - Group cash flows from operating activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(35.0) | Interest received (39.3)
37.7 | Interest paid 43.4

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the
following non-cash movements:

2021/22 2022/23
restated
£m £m
74.4 | Depreciation 81.3
8.9 | Impairment and downward/(upward) valuations (27.1)
3.3 | Amortisation of intangible assets 4.9
(2.4) | Increase/(decrease) in provision for bad debts (11.1)
14.1 | Increase/(decrease) in creditors 126.4
(5.7) | (Increase)/decrease in debtors (99.1)
(1.2) | (Increase)/decrease in inventories 0.3
130.4 | Movement in pension liability * 137.8
22.7 | Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 102.5 ! The 2021/22 figures have been adjusted to correct the
(10.8) | Other non-cash items charged to the surplus or deficit on the (6.2) :g;::;g;insntries for the early payment of the pension
provision of services The adjustments are shown in detail in Note 4 — Prior period
233.7 Total’ 309.7 adjustments.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23 165



Notes supporting the group accounts

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the
following items that are investing and financing activities:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(28.5) | Proceeds from short term (not considered to be cash equivalents) (2.2)
and long term investments (includes investments in associates, joint
ventures and subsidiaries)
(6.0) | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, (16.8)
investment property and intangible assets
(95.9) | Capital grants credited to the (surplus)/deficit on the provision of (113.9)
services
(130.4) | Total (131.8)
Note 12 - Group cash flows from investing activities
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(134.9) | Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property (115.3)
and intangible assets
(5,890.0) | Purchase of short term and long term investments (2,987.0)
7.4 | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 18.1
investment property and intangible assets
5,900.0 | Proceeds from the sale of short term and long term investments 2,963.0
101.8 | Other capital grants and receipts from investing activities 116.1
(15.7) = Net cash flows from investing activities (5.1)
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Notes supporting the group accounts

Note 13 - Group cash flows from financing activities

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

1,029.0 | Cash receipts from short term and long term borrowing 1,036.3

(20.8) | Appropriate to/from collection fund adjustment account (0.6)

(1,201.1) | Repayment of short term and long term borrowing (1,065.2)

0 | Other receipts from financing activities (18.2)

(6.5) | Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities (6.8)
relating to finance leases and on balance sheet PFI contracts

(199.4) | Net cash flows from financing activities (54.5)
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2021/22
£m
161.5
15.9
177.4
(306.6)
(14.4)
(321.0)
(143.6)
(168.1)
(311.7)

200.1
1,217.8
1,417.9
1,106.2
9,605.3

10,711.5

Dealing with members, employers and others directly involved in the Fund
Contributions

Transfers in from other pension funds

Additions from dealings with members

Benefits

Payments to and on account of leavers

Withdrawals from dealing with members

Net withdrawals from dealings with members

Management expenses

Net withdrawals including fund management expenses

Returns on investments

Investment income

Profit and losses on disposal of investments and changes in the value of investments
Net return on investments

Net increase in the net assets available for benefits during the year
Opening net assets of the scheme

Closing net assets of the scheme
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Note

10

11
13

2022/23
£m
172.5
17.8
190.3
(314.5)
(18.9)
(333.4)
(143.1)
(116.8)
(259.9)

184.7
210.9
395.6
135.7
10,711.5
10,847.2



31 March 2022 Note 31 March 2023

£m £m
10,644.0 | Investment assets 13 10,786.9
55.4 | Cash deposits 13 45.9
10,699.4 Total net investments 10,832.8
19.9 | Current assets 19 19.8
(7.8) | Current liabilities 20 (5.4)
10,711.5 Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of the 10,847.2

reporting period

Note: The fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. The actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits is disclosed at note 24.

This statement of accounts is that upon which the auditor should enter his certificate and opinion. It presents fairly the position of the Lancashire County
Pension Fund as at 31 March 2023 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.
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The Lancashire County Pension Fund is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme and is administered by Lancashire County Council. The
County Council is the reporting entity for this Pension Fund.

The following description of the Fund is a summary only. For more detail,
reference should be made to the Lancashire County Pension Fund Annual
Report 2022/23 and the underlying statutory powers underpinning the
scheme, namely the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund
is administered in accordance with the following secondary legislation:

e the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 as
amended.

e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional
Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as
amended)

e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by
Lancashire County Council to provide pensions and other benefits for
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pensionable employees, whether active, deferred or retired members, of
Lancashire County Council, the unitary and district councils in Lancashire
and a range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the geographic
county of Lancashire. Teachers, police officers and fire-fighters are not
included within the Fund as they come within other national pension
schemes.

The Fund is overseen by the Lancashire Pension Fund Committee, which
reports directly to Full Council. The Head of Fund is designated as the officer
responsible for the management of the Fund.

The Pension Fund Committee comprises twelve County Councillors and
seven voting co-optees representing the further and higher education
sectors, the Lancashire borough, district and city councils, Blackburn with
Darwen Council, Blackpool Council and trade unions.

The Committee meets at least quarterly, or otherwise as necessary, with the
Investment Panel in attendance and is responsible for fulfilling the role of
Scheme Manager (which includes the administration of benefits and
strategic management of Fund investments and liabilities), the
establishment of policies for investment management, the monitoring and
review of investment activity and Fund performance and the presentation
of an annual report to Full Council on the state of the Fund and investment
activities for the year.

The Investment Panel provides professional expert advice and makes
recommendations to the Committee in relation to investment strategy. The
Panel comprises the Head of Fund as Chair and two independent advisers.

Full details of the responsibilities of the Panel and Committee are published
in the Investment Strategy Statement which is available from the Fund
website at lancashirecountypensionfund.org.uk



https://lancashirecountypensionfund.org.uk/

The investments of the Fund are managed by the Local Pensions Partnership
Investments Ltd (LPPI) and the administration functions by Local Pensions
Partnership Administration Ltd, which are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Local Pensions Partnership (LPP), a joint venture owned, in equal shares, by
Lancashire County Council and the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA).

The Lancashire Local Pension Board assists Lancashire County Council in its
role as scheme manager and provides a scrutiny role to ensure effective and
efficient governance and administration of the Fund. The Board comprises
an independent chair together with representatives acting on behalf of
employers and members. All members of the Board must be able to
demonstrate the knowledge and skills set out in the terms of reference of
the Board which are available to view on the Fund website at
lancashirecountypensionfund.org.uk

Membership of the LGPS is automatic although employees are free to opt
out of the scheme, remain in the scheme or make their own personal
arrangements outside the scheme. Employees are re-enrolled every 3 years
under the government's auto-enrolment regulations.

Organisations participating in the Lancashire County Pension Fund include:

e Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar
bodies whose staff are automatically entitled to be members
of the Fund.

e Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that
participate in the Fund under an admission agreement
between the Fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted
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bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar bodies or
private contractors undertaking a local authority function
following outsourcing to the private sector.

Membership of the Fund, as at 31 March 2023 is detailed in the following
table:

31 March 2022 Lancashire County Pension Fund 31 March 2023

305 | Number of employers with active 324
members?
157 | Number of ceased employers (no active 167
members but some outstanding
liabilities)
Number of active scheme members?
26,545 | County Council 27,275
29,142 | Other employers 29,906
55,687 | Total 57,181
Number of pensioners
27,024 | County Council 27,967
27,412 | Other employers 28,479
54,436 Total 56,446
Number of deferred pensioners?
36,583 | County Council 36,400
36,992 | Other employers 39,581
73,575 Total 75,981
183,698 Total membership 189,608

Lincludes employers for whom admission to the Fund is in progress

2March 2022 membership numbers have been adjusted to transfer 3,914 pending leavers as at that
date from active membership category to deferred membership category. An adjustment of 5,273
pending leavers has been made at 31 March 2023.


https://lancashirecountypensionfund.org.uk/

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Employee contributions are made by active members of the Fund in accordance with the LGPS
(Amendment) Regulations 2018 and range from 5.5 % to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2023. Employer contributions are
set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations. The contributions in 2022/23 are based on the valuation at 31 March 2019. The latest valuation was at 31
March 2022 for the three years commencing 1 April 2023.

Employer contribution rates for 2022/23 range from 0.0% to 30.3% of pensionable pay, with a primary rate of 17.4%, and are dependent on the assumptions
applied by the actuary when carrying out the valuation. Examples of variables which may differ between employers are demographic assumptions regarding
the age profile and life expectancy of employees, probability of dependant's pensions becoming payable and the likelihood of ill health retirements.

Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable pay and length of pensionable service. From 1 April 2014, the scheme
became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue benefits based on their pensionable pay in that year. Accrued pension is updated annually in line

with the consumer prices index. A range of other benefits are also provided including early retirement, disability pensions and death benefits.

The scheme benefits are summarised in the following table.

Service Pre 1 April 2008

Service post 1 April 2008 and pre 1 April 2014

Service post 1 April 2014

Pension Each year worked is worth 1/80™ x final Each year worked is worth 1/60" x final Each year worked is worth 1/49" x the
pensionable salary. pensionable salary. pensionable pay for that year (or 1/98th of
pensionable pay if member opts for the 50/50
section of the scheme).
Lump sum Automatic lump sum of 3 x salary. No automatic lump sum. No automatic lump sum.

In addition, part of the annual pension can be
exchanged for a one-off tax free cash payment.
Alump sum of £12 is paid for each £1 of pension
given up.
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Part of the annual pension can be exchanged
for a one-off tax free cash payment. A lump
sum of £12 is paid for each £1 of pension given

up.

Part of the annual pension can be exchanged
for a one-off tax free cash payment. A lump
sum of £12 is paid for each £1 of pension given

up.



The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the
financial year and its position as at 31 March 2023. The accounts have been
prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in United Kingdom 2022/23 which is based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report the net
assets available to pay pension benefits. They do not take account of
obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the
financial year nor do they take into account the actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits. The actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19
basis, is disclosed in note 24 to these accounts.

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2022/23, the Fund is required to disclose information setting out
the impact of an accounting change required by a new accounting standard
that has been issued on or before 1 January 2023 but not yet adopted by the
Code. There are no such accounting changes to be disclosed for 2022/23.
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Following the end of the year the Fund has continued with investing activities
in line with the Fund's investment strategy. As a result, the Fund's investment
assets continued to increase in the year to 31st March 2024 to £11.73bn.
(Note: the March 2024 value has not yet been audited). Further information
on the investment strategy can be found on the Fund's website at
https://lancashirecountypensionfund.org.uk/.

Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are
accounted for on an accruals basis. Member contributions are made in
accordance with the LGPS (Amendment) Regulations 2018 using common
percentage rates for all schemes which rise according to pensionable pay.
Employer contributions are set at the percentage rate certified by the fund
actuary, in the payroll period to which they relate. Some employers exercise
an option to pay future service rate contributions earlier than the due date,
up to a period of 3 years in advance. These early contributions are
recognised in the Fund account on receipt.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates
on which they are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the
Fund actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date.



Employers' augmentation contributions and pension strain contributions are
accounted for in the period in which the liability arises. Any amount due in
the year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Amounts not
due until future years are classed as long term financial assets.

Transfers in and out relate to members who have either joined or left the
scheme.

Transfer values represent amounts received and paid during the period for
individual members who have either joined or left the Fund during the
financial year and are calculated in accordance with the appropriate
legislation.

Individual transfers in or out are accounted for when received or paid, which
is when the member liability is accepted or discharged.

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional
voluntary contributions to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a
receipts basis and are included in transfers in.

Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues, using the
effective interest rate of the financial instrument as at the date of acquisition
or origination. Income includes the amortisation of any discount or
premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying
amount of the instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an
effective interest rate basis.

Lancashire County Council — Statement of accounts 2022/23

Income (distributions) from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue.
It is the policy of the Fund to reinvest distributions on the LPPI Global
Equities, these distributions are recognised as investment income and the
subsequent reinvestments are recorded as a purchase.

Rental income from leases on properties owned by the Fund is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Any lease incentives granted
are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term
of the lease. Property expenditure is recognised on an accruals basis and is
deducted from rental income to report net income from properties.

Any property income not received by the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Distributions from pooled property funds are recognised on receipt within
pooled property income.

Changes in the value of investments (including investment properties) are
recognised as income in the Fund account and comprise all realised and
unrealised profits or losses during the year.



Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be
due as at the end of the financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are
disclosed on the net assets statement as current liabilities.

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule
36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on
interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments
sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the
country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Tax is accounted for as a
fund expense as it arises.

The Fund discloses its pension fund management expenses on an accruals
basis and in accordance with the CIPFA guidance "Accounting for Local
Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses (2016)". Management
expenses are broken down into the following categories:

e Administrative expenses

e Oversight and governance costs
¢ Investment management expenses

Administrative expenses consist of the following:
e Expenses related to LGPS members and pensioners. These
include all activities the Fund must perform to administer

entitlements and provide members with scheme and benefit
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entitlement information. Examples of this include pension
allocations, benefit estimates, payment of benefits, processing
of the transfer of assets, commutation, communications with
members and pensioners, and annual benefit statements;

e Expenses related to interaction with scheme employers e.g.
data collection and verification, contributions collection and
reconciliation, the employer’s help desk or other employer
support, and communications with employers; and

e Associated project expenses.

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Oversight and governance expenses include the following costs:

e Investment advisory services (strategic allocation, manager
monitoring etc.);

¢ Independent advisors to the pension fund;

e Operation and support of the pension fund committee (i.e.
those charged with governance of the pension fund), local
pensions board, or any other oversight body;

e Governance and voting services;

e Costs of compliance with statutory or non-statutory internal or
external reporting (annual reports and accounts, etc.);

e legal, actuarial and tax advisory services;

e Non-custodian accountancy and banking services; and

e Internal and external audit.

All administering authority staff costs associated with governance and
oversight are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management,



accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and
charged as expenses to the Fund. All oversight and governance expenses are
accounted for on an accruals basis.

Investment management expenses are defined as any expenses incurred in
relation to the management of pension fund assets and financial instruments
entered into in relation to the management of fund assets. This includes
expenses directly invoiced by investment managers, custody fees and any
fees payable to fund managers which are deducted from fund assets
together with a recharge of costs incurred by Lancashire County Council in
provision of treasury management services to the Fund. Transaction costs
for all categories of investment, other than directly held property, are
included within investment management expenses. All investment
management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

External investment manager and custodian fees are agreed in the respective
mandates governing their appointments. Broadly, these are based on the
market value of investments under their management and therefore
increase or reduce as the value of these investments change.

A number of the fee mandates in place include an element that is
performance related.

Where an investment manager's fee note has not been received by the net
assets statement date, an estimate based upon the latest available market
value of their mandate as at the end of the year is used for the inclusion in
the fund account. In 2022/23, 3.1m of fees is based on such estimates
(2021/22: £16.8m).
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Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis
as at the reporting date. A financial asset is recognised in the net assets
statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition
of the asset. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the asset are recognised in the fund account.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been
determined at fair value in accordance with the requirements of the Code
and IFRS13. For the purpose of disclosing levels of fair value hierarchy, the
Fund has adopted the classification guidelines recommended in Practical
Guidance on Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association, 2016).
More details can be found at note 16.

The Fund's property portfolio includes directly owned properties which are
leased commercially to various tenants. The risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties remain with the Fund and therefore the properties are
retained on the net asset statement at fair value.

The properties were valued at open market value at 31 March 2023 by
independent property valuers Avison Young in accordance with the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation — Global Standards
effective from 31 January 2022.



Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign
currencies have been accounted for at the spot market rates at the date of
transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value cash
balances held in foreign currency bank accounts, overseas investments and
purchases and sales outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Any
gains or losses are treated as part of a change in market value of investments.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market.

The Fund's financial assets comprise of trade and other receivables and cash
deposits and are recognised in the net asset statement at amortised cost.

Cash comprises cash in hand and on demand deposits and includes amounts
held by the Fund's external managers.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of
changes in value.

The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value at the reporting date. A
financial liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the
Fund becomes party to a liability. From this date any gains or losses arising
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from changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised in the fund
account as part of the change in value of investments.

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a
triennial basis by the scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 and relevant actuarial
standards.

As permitted under the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial
present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the net
assets statement (note 24).

Lancashire County Pension Fund provides an additional voluntary
contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of which are invested
separately from those of the Fund. The AVC providers to the Pension Fund
during the year were Prudential and Utmost Life and Pensions. AVCs are paid
to the AVC provider by employers and are specifically for providing additional
benefits for individual contributors. Each AVC contributor receives an annual
statement showing the amount held in their account and the movements in
the year.

AVCs are not included in the Pension Fund accounts in accordance with
section 4(1) (b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed for information in
note 18.



The LPPI Global Equities Fund has been categorised at level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy as the NAV provided to the fund is the accumulation of the quoted
prices of the underlying assets as of 31 March 2023. All the underlying assets
are level 1 quoted securities and no adjustments have been made to the NAV
such as for fees on exiting the fund.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts.
Estimates and assumptions are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and future expectations. The nature of
estimation means that actual outcomes could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the net assets statement at 31 March 2023 for which there is a

significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming year are set out in
the following table.
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Item

Private equity and
infrastructure investments

Long-term credit
investments

Indirect core property
investments

Actuarial present value of
promised retirement
benefits

Uncertainties

Private equity and infrastructure investments are valued at fair value in
accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital
Valuation Guidelines or equivalent. These investments are not publicly listed
and as such there is a degree of estimation involved in the valuation.

Long-term credit investments are valued as the Fund's percentage share of
the independently audited Net Asset Value of each individual strategy as
provided by the relevant manager. In some cases the underlying
investments will be classified as level 3 investments, defined in note 16 as
those investments for which valuation involves at least one input which is
not based on observable market data.

Indirect properties are valued at the current open market value as defined
by the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards. These investments are not
publicly listed and as such there is a degree of estimation involved in the
valuation.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of
complex assumptions relating to relating to future experience - the main
assumptions would be the discount rate used relative to assumed inflation
(essentially the assumed real rate of return on pension fund assets), the rate
at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages and
future mortality rates. A firm of consulting actuaries (Mercer) is engaged to
provide the authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be
applied.

Areas of uncertainty highlighted by the actuary include Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation, the impact of COVID19 / Ukraine,
and the court of appeal ruling on the Sergeant and McCloud cases and
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Impact if actual results differ from assumptions

The market value of private equity and infrastructure
investments in the financial statement's totals £2,595.8m
(2021/22: £2,318.3m).

Notes 16 and 17 provide information on the sensitivity of the
value of these investments to currency fluctuations, market
and other price risks.

The market value of long-term credit investments in the
financial statements totals £1,626.0m (2021/22: £1,416.7m
excluding investment in loans secured on real assets).

Notes 16 and 17 provide information on the sensitivity of the
value of these investments to currency fluctuations, market
and other price risks.

Indirect property investments in the financial statements total
£910.8m (2021/22: £944.6m).

Notes 16 and 17 provide information on the sensitivity of the
value of these investments to currency fluctuations, market
and other price risks. Indirect core property is included within
the property and property funds, and total property headings
in the sensitivity note.

The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured. For instance, a 0.25% reduction
in the discount rate assumption would increase the value of the
liabilities by approximately £401m. A 0.5% increase in assumed
earnings inflation would increase the value of the liabilities by
approximately £103m and a 1 year increase in assumed life
expectancy would increase the liabilities by approximately
£189m.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a
number of complex assumptions relating to future experience
— the main assumptions would be the discount rate used



current high levels of inflation. Further information can be found in note 24
to these accounts.
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relative to assumed inflation (essentially the assumed real
return on pension fund assets), the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages and future
mortality rates. A firm of consulting actuaries (Mercer) is
engaged to provide the authority with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.



2021/22
£fm
67.7

86.9
5.0
1.9

93.8

161.5

59.9
80.9
20.7
161.5

By category

Members

Employers:

Normal contributions?

Deficit recovery contributions!
Augmentation contributions 2
Total employers contributions
Total contributions receivable
By type of employer

County Council !

Scheduled bodies !

Admitted bodies

2022/23
£m
73.4

91.2
6.3
1.6

99.1

172.5

62.7
88.6
21.2
172.5

! Following the actuarial valuation in 2019, the Fund gave some employers the option of paying their 3-year future
service rate and deficit contributions up front. A number of employers opted to do this and as a result the normal and
deficit recovery contributions for the year ended 31 March 2021 included £87.3m in relation to 2021/22 and £88.4m in

relation to 2022/23.

2 Augmentation contributions comprise additional pension benefits awarded by employers to scheme members in line
with the general conditions of employment.
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Pension fund accounts and explanatory notes

Note 7 - Transfers in from other pension funds

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

15.9 | Individual transfers in from other schemes 17.8
15.9 17.8

Note 8 - Benefits payable

2021/22 2022/23
£m By category £m
253.1 | Pensions 266.5
44.6 | Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 43.7
8.9 | Lump sum death benefits 4.3
306.6 Total benefits payable 314.5
By type of employer
127.1 | County Council 130.5
153.8 | Scheduled bodies 158.6
25.7 | Admitted bodies 254
306.6 314.5
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Pension fund accounts and explanatory notes

Note 9 - Payments to and on account of leavers

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

1.0 | Refunds to members leaving service 0.7

13.4 | Individual transfers 18.2

14.4 18.9
Note 10 - Management expenses

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

4.1 | Fund administrative costs 4.2

162.6 | Investment management expenses? 110.9

1.4 | Oversight and governance costs 2 1.7

168.1 116.8

1The decrease in investment management expenses in 22/23 is mainly due to a decrease in the performance of the fund's assets.

2Qversight and governance costs above include external audit fees which amounted to £51,036 (2021/22: £37,423). Additional fees of

£25,800 were paid to the external auditor for IAS19 assurance work on behalf of Fund employers within the PSAA regime.
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Total Management

Performance

Transaction

fees? related fees costs’
£m £m £m £m
Pooled investments 97.7 66.9 27.0 3.8
Pooled property investments 12.8 10.2 1.0 1.6
Property 0.2 0.2 -
Cash deposits 0.1 0.1
110.8 77.4 28.0 5.4
Custody fees 0.1
110.9
Total Management Performance Transaction

Fees Related fees? Costs’
£m £m £m £m
Pooled investments 148.1 84.7 61.8 1.6
Pooled property investments 9.8 6.4 0.3 3.1
Property 4.5 0.2 4.3 -
Cash deposits 0.1
162.5 91.3 66.4 4.7
Custody fees 0.1
162.6

1Transaction costs are not directly invoiced to the Fund and are included within the net asset value of investments by investment managers. In accordance with CIPFA guidance these fees are identified and
reported through the Fund account.

2 Fund value based management fees include costs invoiced directly to the Fund by investment managers and fees accounted for by investment managers within net asset value and recognised in the fund account
in accordance with CIPFA guidance. Fees are charged as a percentage of the value of assets held by each manager. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments
sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of investment acquisitions and in the proceeds from the sales of investments.
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Pension fund accounts and explanator